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Holcim Philippines, Inc. Phone +63 459 3333
7F Venice Corporate Center www.hoicim.com,ph
No. 8 Turin Street, McKinley Town Center

Fort Bonifacio |
Taguig City 1634 ~
Philippines

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS I
' May 24, 2019
10:00 AM, Philippine Time

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of HOLCIM
PHILIPPINES, INC. (the “Company”) which will be held on May 24, 2019 at Marquis Events Place
Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City, 1634, at 10:00 am, Philippine time. The Agenda of the
meeting is as follows:

1. Callito Order

2. Proof of Notice and Determination of existence of quorum

3. Approval of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders' meeting held on May 18,
2018

4. Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the period ended December 31, 2018

5. Approval of Amendment to Article Second of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation

Approval and Ratification of all acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of the Board,

Committees and Management since the last annual stockholders’ meeting

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other Matters

0. Adjournment

bl

These items are fully discussed in the Information Statement, which will ‘be sent to you
together with this Notice. Only stockholders of record in the books of the Company at the close of
business on April 24, 2019 will be entitied to notice of, and to vote, at the meeting. A list of
stockholders entitied to vote will be available for inspection at the office of the Company, 7" Floor,
Venice Corporate Center, 8 Turin Street, McKinley Town Center, McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig
City 1634, Metro Manila, Philippines fifteen (15) days prior to the Annual Meeting.

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

E. DUGAN
Corporak Secretary

REGISTRATION OF STOCKHOLDERS WILL START AT 9:00 AM.

Strength. Performance. Passion.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIO V' 207!
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE"

Check the appropriate box:

[v] Preliminary Information Statement
[ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter:  Holcim Philippines, Inc.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization: Manila, Philippines

SEC Identification Number: 026126

BIR Tax ldentification Code: 000-121-507-000

Address of Principal Office/Postal Code: 7th Floor, Two World Square

McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City 1634, Philippines
Registrant’s telephone number,
including area code: (632) 459-3333

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:

May 24, 2019, Friday, at 10:00 A.M.
Marquis Events Place
Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City, 1634

Approximate date on which the
Information Statement is first to be sent
or given to security holders: May 3, 2019

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Securities Regulation Code or
Sections 4 and 8 of the Revised Securities Act (information on number of shares and
amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding or Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Common Shares 6,452,099,144

Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes __ X No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein: Philippine Stock Exchange — Common Shares



HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

INFORMATION STATEMENT

WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM1. DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF ANNUAL MEETING
OF SECURITY HOLDERS (THE ANNUAL MEETING)

(a) Date: May 24, 2019, Friday
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Piace: Marquis Events Place

Rizal Drive, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City, 1634

Principal office: 7th Floor, Two World Square
McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio
Taguig City 1634, Philippines

(b)  Approximate date on which copies of the Information Statement are first to be sent or
given to Security Holders:

May 3, 2019

ITEM2. DISSENTERS’ RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

Pursuant to Section 80 of the Corporation Code, (1) in case of amendment to the articles of
incorporation that has the effect of changing or restricting the rights of any stockholder or class
of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares
of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence, (2) in case of lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation Code, (3) in case of merger or
consolidation, and (4) in case of investment of corporate funds for any purpose other than the
primary purpose of the Company, any stockholder of the Company shall have the right to
dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares.

As provided in Section 81 of the Corporation Code, this appraisal right may be exercised by
any stockholder who shall have dissented to such corporate action, by making a written
demand on the Company within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken, for
payment of the fair value of his shares. Failure to make the demand within such period shall
be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right.

Within ten (10) days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder shall
submit to the Company the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares for notation thereon
that such shares are dissenting shares. His failure to do so shall, at the option of the Company,
terminate his appraisal rights. No demand for payment as aforesaid may be withdrawn by the
dissenting stockholder uniess the Company consents thereto.



If the corporate action is implemented, the Company shall pay to the stockholder, upon
surrender of the certificate or certificates of stock representing the stockholder's shares, the
fair value thereof as of the day before the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or
depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of
the shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of
whom shall be named by the stockholder, another by the Company, and the third by the two
(2) thus chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award
shall be paid by the Company within thirty (30) days after such award is made. No payment
shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained
earnings in its books to cover such payment. Upon payment by the Company of the agreed or
awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the Company.

As of the date of this Information Statement, no matter will be presented for stockholders’
approval during the Annual Meeting that may occasion the exercise of the right of appraisal.

ITEM 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No director or officer of the Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year, or any
nominee for election as director, or any of their associates, has any substantial interest, direct
or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Annual
Meeting, other than election to office.

No director of the Company has informed the Company in writing that he intends to oppose
any action to be taken by the Company at the Annual Meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

(&) Voting securities entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting

As of December 31, 2018, there are 6,452,099,144 shares of the Company’'s common stock
outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. One share is equivalent to one vote
except in the election of directors where one share is entitled to as many votes as there are
directors to be elected.

(b) Record Date

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 24, 2019 (the Record Date)
acting in person or by proxy on the day of the Annual Meeting are entitled to notice of, and to
vote at, the Annual Meeting.

(c) Election of directors and voting rights (Cumulative Voting)

Cumulative voting is allowed for election of members of the Board. Please refer to item 19(b)
(Voting Procedures).

(d)  Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management
(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
The table below shows persons or groups known to the Company as of December 31,

2018 to be directly or indirectly the record or beneficial owner of more than 5% of the
Company’s voting securities:



Exchange Plaza
Ayala Avenue, Makati City
(Filipino)

Stockholder

Common | Union Cement Holdings Union Cement 3,906,425,506 60.55%
Corporation (“UCHC") Holdings Corp.
7th Floor, Two World (same as record
Square, McKinley Hill owner)
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
(Filipino)
Stockholder
Common | Holderfin B.V. Holderfin B.V. 1,168,450,996 18.11%
(“Holderfin") (same as record
De Lairessestraat 129Hs | owner)
1075 HJ Amsterdam
The Netherlands
(Dutch)
Stockholder
Common | Sumitomo Osaka Cement | Sumitomo Osaka 594,952,725 9.22%
Co., Ltd. (*Sumitomo”) Cement Co., Ltd.
1, Kanda Mitoshiro-cho (same as record
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo owner)
101-8677 Japan
(Japanese)
Stockholder
Common | Cemco Holdings, Inc. Cemco Holdings, Inc. 456,689,560 07.08%
(“Cemco”) (same as record
815/816 Tower One & owner)

The respective Board of Directors of each of UCHC, Holderfin, Sumitomo and Cemco
has the power to decide how their shares in the Company are to be voted. The
Company only has common shares outstanding. As of December 31, 2018, the
Company'’s foreign stockholders hold 29.84% of the common shares.

(2

Security Ownership of Management

The table below shows the securities beneficially owned by all directors and executive
officers of the Company as of February 22, 2018:




SN

Common | Tomas |. Alcantara 1(D) |  Filipino R 0.00%
Common | Martin Kriegner 1(D) Austrian R 0.00%
Common | John William Stull 1(D) American R 0.00%
Common | Rajani Kesari 1(D) Indian R 0.00%
Common | Simeon V. Marcelo - 4,2612(3; Filipino R 0.00%
Common | Yasuo Kitamoto 1(D) Japanese R 0.00%

Total 54,268 0.00%

Directors and officers as a group hold a total of 54,268 common shares, equivalent to

approximately 0.00% of the Company’s issued and outstanding capital stock.

(e)  Voting Trust Holders of 5% or more

No person holds 5% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of stock of the Company
under a voting trust or similar agreement.

) Changes in Control

There were no material changes in the control of the Company since the beginning of the
Company’s last calendar year. UCHC still holds the controlling interest in the Company.

ITEM 5.

(@) The Board of Directors

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Board is responsible for the overall management and direction of the Company. The
Board meets regularly every quarter, or as often as required, to review and monitor the
Company’s financial position and operations. Each Board member serves for a term of one
year or until his successor is duly elected and qualified. None of the members of the Board
owns more than 2% of the total outstanding shares of the Company.

The following are the members of the Board:

Chairman Tomas |. Alcantara 72 Filipino
Vice Chairman Martin Kriegner 57 Austrian
Director John William Stull 58 American
Director Rajani Kesari 47 Indian
Independent Director Simeon V. Marcelo 65 Filipino
independent Director Yasuo Kitamoto 58 Japanese




Set forth below are the business experience of the Board during the last five years:

Tomas I. Alcantara, 72, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from
Ateneo de Manila University, a Master's in Business Administration degree from
Columbia University, USA and attended the Advance Management Program of the
Harvard Business School. He is presently the Chairman and President of Alsons
Consolidated Resources, Inc.,, and of several power and property development
companies in the Alcantara Group. He is Chairman of the Eagle Ridge Golf &
Country Club, Inc. and Philweb Corporation, Mr. Alcantara was Undersecretary for
the Industry & Investment Group of the Department of Trade and Industry and the Vice
Chairman and Managing Head of the Board of Investments from July 1986 to March
1995. He was also Special Envoy of the Philippine President to APEC in 1996. He was
elected Director of the Company on July 4, 2003.

Martin Kriegner, 57, holds an MBA from the University of Economics in Vienna
and a Doctorate degree from Vienna University Law Centre. He joined the Lafarge
Group in 1990. In 1995, Mr. Kriegner was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of
Lafarge Perlmooser AG, Austria. He served as Country CEO of Lafarge Austria from
1998 to 2001 and Lafarge India from 2002 to 2005 and 2012 to 2015. Mr. Kriegner
was Lafarge Regional President, Asia and South West Asia, and was a member of the
Lafarge Executive Committee from 2005 to 2012. Mr. Kriegner served as
LafargeHolcim Area Manager for Central Europe from 2015 to 2016. He is presently
LafargeHolcim Group’s Head of India and South East Asia and a member of the
LafargeHolcim Group Executive Committee. He was elected as director of the
Company on August 18, 2016.

John William Stull 58, is an accomplished leader with deep knowledge of the building
materials industry. Prior to being assigned to Holcim Philippines, Inc. in April 2018, he
was the CEO for LafargeHolcim’s Cement Operations in the United States from 2015.
Before that he served in various positions across the Group including responsibility for
the US as well as markets in sub-Saharan Africa and Latin America. Mr. Stull received
his Bachelor of Science in chemical engineering from the University of Akron in Ohio
and earned an Advance Management Degree from Harvard University in
Massachusetts.

Rajani Kesari, 47, is a Certified Public Accountant licensed in the USA. She is a
senior management and finance professional with more than 30 years’ experience.
Prior to joining the LafargeHolcim Group, she worked for Schneider Electric for 9
years during which she led the Finance teams of East Asia & Japan Zone and
Greater India Zone. During her tenure she has supported significant growth in India
and strong profitability in East Asia & Japan. Ms. Rajani was with Dr. Reddy’s for
more than 10 years where she held roles of Strategic Planning Head & CFO for
European business, CFO of API business, Chief Internal Auditor of the Group
reporting to the Audit Committee Chairman and Head of Global tax. Ms. Kesari aiso
worked with KPMG in Dubai handling both manufacturing and banking clients.

Simeon V. Marcelo, 65, graduated among the top of his class at the University
of the Philippines - College of Law and placed 5th in the 1979 bar examination.
He served as Solicitor General from February 2001 to October 2003 and was
Ombudsman from October 2003 to November 2005. From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Marcelo
served as Executive Secretary of the Asian Development Bank Administrative
Tribunal and from 2008 to June 2014, was a member of the World Bank's
Independent Advisory Board (on good governance and anti- corruption matters).
Mr. Marcelo was aiso elected as the President of the Philippine Bar Association
from 2009 to 2010. During its Centennial Year 2013, the University of the
Philippines Alumni Association conferred upon him the Distinguished Alumni Award in
Public Service. He is the Chief Executive Officer of Cruz Marcelo & Tenefrancia
Law Offices. Mr. Marcelo was elected as independent director of the Company in 2014.



Yasuo Kitamoto, 58, holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Doshisha
University in Kyoto, Japan. He is currently General Manager responsible for
International Business of Sumitomo Osaka Cement Co., Ltd. prior to his current
position, he was Deputy General Manager, General Affairs Department in 2005
and General Manager, Corporate Planning Department in 2008 of Sumitomo Osaka
Cement Co., Ltd.

Directorships in other reporting companies

The following are directorships held by the Company's directors in other reporting companies
during the past five years:

Name of Director Name of Reporting Company

Tomas |. Alcantara Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc.
Eagle Ridge Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Nomination of Directors for 2019-2020

The directors of the Company elected at the Annual Meeting shall hold office for one year and
until their respective successors have been elected and qualified.

The following are the nominees to the Board of Directors:

1. Tomas |. Alcantara
2. Martin Kriegner

3. John William Stull
4. Rajani Kesari

The Company has no reason to believe that any nominees to the Board of Directors will be
unwilling or unable to serve if elected as a director.

The nominees for independent directors possess the qualifications and none of the
disqualifications of independent directors under relevant rules of the Securities Regulation
Code (the “SRC”) and its implementing rules and regulations (the “SRC Rules”).

The matter of the nomination and election of Independent Directors form part of a set of
guidelines from the Corporate Governance Committee. These guidelines define the
qualifications, disqualifications, and procedures for the screening and short listing of
candidates nominated to the Board.

The members of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

1. Martin Kriegner - Chairman

2. Tomas 1. Alcantara - Member

3. Simeon V. Marcelo - Member (Independent Director)
4. Yasuo Kitamoto - Member (Independent Director)

For this Annual Meeting, the Corporate Governance Committee shall screen and evaluate the
candidates for Independent Directors, using the committee’s guidelines, pertinent provisions of
the Company’s Manual on Good Corporate Governance, its By-Laws and relevant issuances
under the SRC and the SRC Rules.



On June 15 2012, the SEC approved the amendments to the Company's By-laws
incorporating the procedures for the nomination and election of independent directors in

accordance with SRC Rule 38, as amended.

(b) The Executive Officers

The Company’s executive officers are likewise elected
one year and until their respective successors have bee

Company own more than 2% of the total outstanding shares of the Company.

The Company’s executive officers are set forth below:

annually by the Board and serve for
n elected. None of the officers of the

President/ Chief Executive Officer John William Stull 58 American

SVP, Chief Financial Officer/ Treasurer | Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas 52 Filipino

SVP, Head of Sales William C. Sumalinog 49 Filipino

SVP, Head of Cement Industrial Neils Ledinek 48 Austrian

Performance

SVP, Head of Marketing Ramakrishna Maganti 49 indian

SVP, Head of Organizational Human Bernadette Tansingco 44 Filipino

Resources

SVP, Head of Aggregates, Construction | Frederic Fabien 47 French

Materials, and Infrastructure

VP, Head of Corporate Communications | Anne Claire M. Ramirez 40 Filipino

VP, Head of Health, Safety & Security Richard C. Cruz 36 Filipino

VP - Head of Strategy Zoe Verna M. Sibala 44 Filipino

VP, General Counsel/ Corporate Belinda E. Dugan 50 Filipino

Secretary/ Compliance Officer

VP, Head of Geocycle and Head of Frederic Vallat 59 French

CAPEX

VP, Plant Manager — Lugait Bobby Garza 61 Filipino

VP, Plant Manager — Davao Xavier Arul Kennedy 55 Indian
Savarimuthu

VP, Plant Manager — La Union Erafio Santos 55 Filipino

VP, Plant Manager — Bulacan Geert Kuiper 54 Australian

VP, Head of Sales (GMR) Edwin Villas 45 Filipino




VP, Head of Sales (Mindanao) Allan Valencia 54 Filipino
VP, Head of Sales (CPR) Ernesto Paulo Tan 42 Filipino
VP, Head of Sales Albert Leoveras 45 Filipino

The business experience of Mr. John William Stull during the last five years is provided
above. Below sets forth the business experience of the Company’s other executive
officers during the last five years:

Jesusa Natividad L. Rojasis the Company's Chief Financial Officer. She holds a
degree in Accounting from Xavier University and obtained her Master's degree in
Development Finance and Banking from American University in Washington, DC as a
Fullbright-Humphrey Fellow. Ms. Rojas is a Certified Public Accountant and a
Certified Management Accountant. She held various positions in Finance in Del Monte
Pacific Ltd from 2003 to 2007. Ms. Rojas then served as Chief Financial Officer of S&W
Fine Foods International Ltd. from 2008 to 2010. Prior to joining the Company in
September 2016, she also served as Chief Financial Officer of Del Monte Philippines,
Inc.

William C. Sumalinog is the Senior Vice President, Head of Sales. William holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Engineering from the University of Cebu
where he graduated with leadership honors in 1992. Prior to his current role, Mr.
Sumalinog was the Company’'s Regional Operating Head for various areas in
Mindanao and Visayas. He joined Alsons Cement Corporation in 1998 where he
occupied various key positions in sales.

Neils Ledinek, is the Senior Vice President, Head of Cement Industrial Performance.
Mr. Ledinek has a diploma in Ing. from Montan Universitaet Leoben, Austria and has
earned a degree in Master of Science in Engineering Management from Oakland
University in year 2000. Mr. Ledinek has worked for Lafarge since October 1998 and
has served as Cement Plant Manager of Lafarge Cement, Cizvoke Plant, Czech
Republic from September 2009- June 2013 and of LafargeHolcim, Ferzikovo Plant,
Russia from July 2013 to March 2016. In April 2016, Mr. Ledinek was named Head of
Transformation of APAC based in Singapore responsible for managing eight senior
managers and subject matter experts including former plant managers, plant
production and maintenance managers, and technical experts. As Head of
Transformation, he successfully completed a global pilot project resuiting to a net
benefit of several million USD in an underperforming, sol-out cement plant in
Southeast Asia in 2017.

Ramakrishna Maganti, is the Senior Vice President, Head for Marketing &
Innovation. He holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering, MBA in Marketing from the
Indian Institute of Management and a degree in Strategic Marketing Management from
Harvard Business School. Mr. Maganti brings more than 20 years of combined
experience in global marketing, brand development, digital transformation, and project
management. Prior to joining Holcim Philippines, Inc. he held various leadership and
management positions in LafargeHolcim India, Malaysia, France and the most recently
in Singapore as Head of Sales and Marketing for Asia Pacific Region. Mr. Maganti
worked for Philips NV a global consumer lifestyle and healthcare firm before joining the
LafargeHolcim Group in 2006.




Bernadette Tansingco is the Senior Vice President, Head of Organization and Human
Resources. She has 25 years of experience in the Company's human resources
division with key roles heading talent management and organization development. In
2014, she helped in transforming Holcim Philippines’ business support functions into the
Holcim East Asia Business Service Centre, LafargeHolcim Asia Pacific's shared
services where she was appointed human resource head. Ms. Tansingco holds a
Psychology degree from the De La Salle University and has completed leadership and
management programs from the IMD Business School of Switzerland, Penn State
University in the USA and the Asian Institute of Management.

Frederic Fabien is the Senior Vice President, Head for Aggregates and Construction
Materials and Infrastructure. He holds a degree of MSc Engineering from Ecole Centrale
Paris, France. Before joining the Company, Mr. Fabien served as Head of Ready-Mix
Concrete Business Unit of Holcim Indonesia. Mr. Fabien also served as Sales Director,
Building Segment of LafargeHolcim Morocco from July 2011 to July 2015.

Ann Claire M. Ramirez is the Vice President, Head of Corporate Communications. She
was the Head for Marketing when she joined Holcim Philippines, Inc. in January 2015.
She first joined a local food company, SAFI-UFC (now known as NutriAsia) in 1999,
focusing on brand management of catsup brands. Prior to joining Holcim, she worked
for Energizer Philippines, Inc. where she managed the Company’s Marketing
Department. Ms. Ramirez has a degree of Bachelor of Science in Economics from the
University of the Philippines, Diliman.

Richard C. Cruz is the Vice President, Head of Health & Safety. Mr. Richard Cruz
joined Holcim Philippines, Inc. in May 2008 as Laboratory Engineer for AFR. In March
2010 he was appointed as Safety Officer responsible for delivering and maintaining
safety systems and initiatives across all plants. From 2010 until his nomination for
appointment as Head of Corporate Occupational Health and Safety, he served as
Safety Manager for HPI's Commercial and Other Sites.

Zoe Verna M. Sibala is the Vice President, Head of Strategy. Ms. Sibala holds a
master’s degree in Business Administration from the Graduate School of Business, De
la Salle University and a degree in Economics from the University of the Philippines. In
January 2010, she joined Lafarge as a Finance Manager of Batong Angono
Aggregates Corporation and later on became the commercial controller of the
Lafarge’s cement product line — Lafarge Cement Service Philippines, Inc. Prior to being
appointed as Head of Strategy of Holcim Philippines, Inc. she served Lafarge Republic
Aggregates, Inc. as Project Manager from July 2014 to December 2014 and as
Strategy and Business Development Manager from January to December 2015.

Belinda E. Dugan is the General Counsel, Vice President - Corporate Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company. She obtained her Juris Doctor degree from Ateneo
Law School and has over 23 years of experience with various muitinational firms and a
consulting company. Prior to joining Holcim Philippines, Inc. she was Vice President for
Legal Management Services of Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. (AEV) from October 2015
to October 2017. She served as Assistant Vice-president for Legal and Compliance of
SN Aboitiz Power from May 2009 to October 2015.

Frederic Vallat has vast experience in business development and waste management.
He joined Lafarge Chongqing — People’s Republic of China in June 2006 and served as
the Chine-Japan-Korea Industrial Ecology Vice President until April 2011. From April
2011 to December 2012, he served as Industry Ecology Technical Director of Lafarge
Shui On, People’s Republic of China and as West Asia and South East Asia Industrial
Ecology Technical Director of Lafarge Asia, Malaysia from January 2013 to October
2015 where he supported the business development of seven countries. Prior to joining
Holcim Philippines, Inc., he served as Geocycle APAC Head of Investment and
Operation of LafargeHolcim — Singapore.
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Bobby Garza is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Lugait. Prior to being appointed
as Plant Manager in 2012, he previously served as production manager of the Holcim La
Union plant from 2010 and Area Coach for Manufacturing Excellence of the Bulacan
plant. He joined the Company in 1995 as Quarry Manager of La Union plant. Mr. Garza
is a registered Mining Engineer and a graduate of the Mapua Institute of Technology,
Manila.

Xavier Arul Kennedy Savarimuthu is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Davao.
He holds a bachelor's degree from the Indian Institute of Ceramics and an MBA from
Alagappa University, Institute of Ceramic Technology. Prior to joining Holcim
Philippines, inc. as Plant Manager of Bulacan Plant in 2017, he was the Asia Pacific
Regional Head for Production, Process and Automation of Holcim Technology based in
Singapore. He also served as team leader for Process, Operations and Automation of
Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and Beijing, China in 2015 after the
merger of Lafarge and Holcim.

Erafio Santos is the Vice President, Plant Manager of La Union Plant. Mr. Santos
served in various leadership capacities across several Holcim Philippines facilities. He
joined the Company in November 1987 as Superintendent-Electrical. In September
2008, he was promoted as a manager and served as such until his promotion as Plant
Manager of the La Union Plant.

Geert Kuiper is the Vice President, Plant Manager of Bulacan. Prior to his current role,
he was the Maintenance Expert for Asia Pacific Cement industrial Performance of
LafargeHolcim Singapore. Mr. Kuiper was the Head of Maintenance, Regional
Manufacturing Services of Holcim Technology-Singapore from October 2014 to January
2016. Prior to joining the Holicim Group in 2014, he held various leadership roles in
Cement Australia. Mr. Kuiper has over 20 years of experience in maintenance and
production management and project engineering in heavy industrial operation. He holds
a Bachelors’ degree in Engineering from the University of Praetoria in South Africa.

Edwin Villas is the Vice President, Head of Sales for Greater Manila Region. He joined
the Company in September 1997 as Strategic Sourcing Specialist. He served as the
Company’'s Procurement Manager from October 2007 to August 2010 and was laterally
transferred as Area Sales Manager for South Luzon in August 2011. Prior to his
appointment as Head of Institutional Sales in May 2016, he served as the Head of
Institutional Sales in May 2016 and thereafter as Manager, National Sales, Bulk.
Institutional Sales. He is a certified Information Systems Auditor and a certified
Professional for Supply Management. He has a degree in Computer Science from the
Philippine Christian University.

Allan Valencia is the Vice President, Head of Sales for Mindanao. He has more than
two decades of experience in cement sales, technical services and ready mix concrete
operations. His career highlights include the development and market launch of the
Holcim Philippines' blended and masonry cement lines and the establishment of its
ready-mix concrete business. Mr. Valencia is a licensed civil engineer and received his
degree in this field from the Mindanao State University. He joined the Company in
October 1991 as Product Manager for Visayas and Mindanao regions. Prior to his
appointment as Vice President, he served as the Head of Regional Sales Channel
(Vismin).

Ernesto Paulo Tan is the Vice President, Head of Sales (CPR). He joined the
Company in December 2015 as Head-Regional Commercial Sales of North Luzon. He
served as the Zone Manager of JT International Philippines, Inc. from February 2012 to
November 2015 where he was responsible for overall Luzon general trade performance,
and as Sales and Marketing Head and Acting Market Manager from January 2011 to
December 2011.He holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the
University of the Philippines.

1



Albert Leoveras is the Vice President, Head of Sales. He has 15 years of experience
in managing Sales Team, Distributors and key accounts sales. Prior to joining the
Company, he was the Field Operations Manager and ‘Regional Manager of Japan
Tobacco International from 2012 to August 2015 and Sales Division Head of the Non-
food Division of Wills International Sales Corporation.

(c)  Family Relationships

None of the members of the Board of Directors nor any Executive Officer of the Company is
related by affinity or consanguinity.

(d) Independent Directors

Messrs. Simeon V. Marcelo and Yasuo Kitamoto are the Company’s Independent Directors.
They are neither officers nor substantial shareholders of the Company.

(e) Warrants and Options Outstanding

There are no warrants or options granted by the Company to any of its directors or executive
officers.

H Involvement of Directors and Officers in Legal Proceedings

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the present members of the Board of
Directors or the Executive Officers are not, presently, or during the last five (5) years, involved
or have been involved in criminal, bankruptcy or insolvency investigations or proceedings,
except for the pending legal proceedings described in Annex A hereof.

(g) Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

For a detailed discussion of other material related party transactions, please see Note 29 -
Related Party Transactions to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in ltem 11.

Except for the transactions discussed in Note 29 - Related Party Transactions to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 11, there were no other material
related party transactions during the last three financial years, nor are there any
material transactions currently proposed between the Company and any: (i) director, officer,
direct or indirect owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares in the Company; (ii) close
family member of such director, officer or owner; (iii) associates of the Company; (iv)
enterprises controlling, controlled by or under common control with the Company; or (v)
enterprises in which a substantial interest in the voting power is owned, directly or
indirectly, by any director, officer or owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares in
the Company or any close family member of such director, key officer or owner, or
collectively, the Related Parties.

There was no outstanding indebtedness at any time during the last three (3) financial years
that was owed to the Company and/or its subsidiaries by any Related Party.

(h)  Disagreement with a Director
No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board since the date of the

last annual stockholders’ meeting because of a disagreement with the Company on any matter
relating to the Company’s operations, policies or practices. '
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ITEM 6. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Company has locai and expatriate executives. Expatriates are hoiding positions that are
technical and advisory in nature. The compensation of local executives is benchmarked
against the established Focus Group (FG*). At 100% performance attainment of the
Company'’s financial and business %oals, the executive compensation is targeted to be at
median (P50) of the FG and at the 3™ quartile for performance attainment of 110% and above.
Expatriates are paid in accordance with the international Assignment compensation guidelines
of LafargeHolcim.

The compensation received by the Executive Officers represents salaries, bonuses and
benefits.

* The Company’s Focus Group (FG) is composed of local and multi-national companies with
annual gross revenues of PHP 5 - 50 billion and 500 to 5,000 employees.

The following table shows the compensation of the Company’s Executive Officers serving as of
December 31, 2018.

Executive Compensation (in Php)

Name and Principal Position

The CEO and five most highly 2019* | 60,553915| 6,738,560 59,810,061
compensated Executive Officers:

= John William Stull - President and
Chief Executive Officer

= Frederick Fabien — SVP —~ Head,
ACM & Infrastructure

= Ramakrishna Maganti — SVP — 2018 60,553,915 6,738,560 59,810,061
Head, Marketing & Innovations

= Jesusa Natividad L. Rojas — SVP —
Head, Chief Finance Officer

= William C. Sumalinog — SVP —
Head, Sales

* Bernadette L. Tansingco — SVP —
Head, Organization & Human 2017 60,068,285 | 12,871,846 34,004,724
Resources

2019™ | 97,152,715 | 14,794,950 112,184,355

All other Executive Officers and

D 2018 | 97,183,715 | 14,794,950 112,184,355
irectors as a group unnamed

2017 | 40,436,702 | 26,720,529 144,193,160

Benefits of the CEO and five (5) most highly compensated Executive Officers include
retirement service cost

All other Executive Officers and Directors as a group unnamed in 2018 include all incumbents
in the Leadership Team with the rank of Vice President. This also includes the pro-rate
salaries, bonuses and benefits of other repatriated expatriates.

*Estimated compensation of executive officers for the ensuing year is assumed to approximate
the 2018 level. Bonuses given are driven by actual performance of the company; hence,
estimate may vary from actual.

** Benefits of All Other Executive Officers and Directors include retirement and separation
benefits of Executives.

Other than directors’ per diem, the directors of the Company do not receive any other
compensation from the Company, including any of the following arrangements:

a. Standard arrangement and any other material arrangements;
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b. Employment contract (between the Company and named executive officers);
c. Compensatory plan or arrangement;

d. Outstanding warrants or options; and

e. Adjustments or amendments on the price of stock warrants or options.

ITEM7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

For year 2019, the accounting firm of Navarro, Amper & Co. (Deloitte) is being recommended
for reappointment by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting. Deloitte has accepted the
Company’s invitation to stand for appointment this year.

Deloitte has been the Company’s independent public accountant/external auditor for starting
2017. Representatives of said firm are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company complies with SRC Rule 68, Part |, item 3(B)(iv)(ix) on the 5-year rotation of the
External Auditor and the two-year cooling-off period on the re-engagement of the same signing
partner or individual auditor. The Company engaged Deloitte for the examination of the
Company’s financial statements starting the year 2017. Previously, the Company engaged Mr.
Gemilo San Pedro of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) for the examination of the Company’s
financial statements for the years 2009 to 2011. He was replaced by Ms. Catherine E. Lopez,
for the years 2012 to 2015, and, Mr. Roel E. Lucas, for the year 2016.

Audit and Audit-Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for professicnal services rendered by Deloitte in 2018 and 2017
were PhP8.0 million and PhP6.7 million. These fees, inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses,
cover services rendered by the external auditor for audit of the financial statements of the
Company and other services in connection with statutory and regulatory filings for years 2018
and 2017.

Tax Fees & Other Fees

The Company did not engage Deloitte for tax and other services in 2018 and 2017.

There was no event in the past five years where Deloitte or its predecessor, SGV, and the
Company had any disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

The audit findings are presented to the Company’s Audit Committee, which reviews and
makes recommendations to the Board on actions to be taken thereon. The Board passes upon
and approves the Audit Committee’s recommendations.

The members of the Audit Committee of the Company are as follows:

1. Yasuo Kitamoto - Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Simeon V. Marcelo - Member (Independent Director)
3. Rajani Kesari - Member

ITEM8. COMPENSATION PLANS

No action is to be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.
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C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ITEM 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Not applicable.

ITEM 11. FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

The consolidated audited financial statements of the Company for the period ended on
December 31, 2018 is attached as Annex B. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations are incorporated in the Management Report.

Representatives of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte, are expected to be present at the

Annual Meeting, and they will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so

and are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions from the stockholders.
The Company has had no material disagreement with Deloitte on any matter of accounting
principle or practices or disclosures in the Company'’s financial statements.

ITEM 12. MERGERS, CONSOLIDATIONS, ACQUISITIONS AND SIMILAR MATTERS

Not applicable.

ITEM 13. ACQUISITION OR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

Not applicable.

ITEM 14. RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Company is not taking any action, which involves the restatement of any of its assets,
capital or surplus account.

D. OTHERMATTERS

ITEM 15. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS AND OTHER PROPOSED ACTION

There is no action to be taken with respect to any report of the Company or of its directors,
officers or committees, except the approval of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders’
meeting, and the Annual Report of the Company for 2018.

Other proposed actions include ratification of all acts, investments, proceedings and
resolutions of the Board, the Board Committees and the acts of the officers and management
since the date of the last annual meeting. The matters for stockholders’ ratification are acts of
the Board, the Board Committees, officers and management from the previous stockholders’
meeting up to the date of the Annual Meeting which were entered into or made in the ordinary
course of business and transactions and the following transactions, covered by appropriate
disclosures with the PSE and SEC:
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March 1, 2018

An advisory on the following matters approved in the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors held on February 27, 2018:

(a) Postponement of the Company’s annual stockholders’ meeting
from the second Thursday of May to May 18, 2018, and setting of
the record date at April 18, 2018;

(b) Nomination of Navarro Amper & Co. as external auditor for 2018;
and

(c) Approval of audited financial statements for fiscal year 2017.

April 6, 2018

An advisory on the notice, agenda, venue, and time of the annual
stockholders’ meeting to be held on May 18, 2018.

April 25, 2018

An advisory on the following matters:

(a) Resignation of Ms. Sapna Sood as director, President, and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Mr. Daniel Bach as director;

(b) Election of Mr. John Wiliam Stull and Mr. Mario Gross as
directors to serve the unexpired term of Ms. Sood and Mr. Bach;

(c) Appointment of Mr. Stull as President and Chief Executive Officer;

(d) Appointment of Mr. Richard Cruz as Head of Corporate Health,
Safety, and Security; and

(e) Approval of the retirement of Ms. Carmela Dolores Calimbas
(Head of Organizational Health, Safety and Security).

May 18, 2018

An advisory on the results of the Company’s regular meeting of the
Board of Directors, annual stockholders’ meeting, and organizational
meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 18, 2018.

June 7, 2018

An advisory on the attendance of the Company’s directors and key
officers in a corporate governance seminar conducted by the Risks
Opportunities Assessment and Management, Inc. in compliance with
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Memorandum Circular
No. 20, Series of 2013.

June 25, 2018

An advisory on the results of special meeting of the Board of
Directors held on June 22, 2018 accepting the resignation of Mr.
Roman Menz as Senior Vice President, Head of Manufacturing, and
Ms. Mary Grace Sanchez, as Data Privacy Officer and the
appointment of Ms. Ramakrishna Maganti as Senior Vice President,
Head of Marketing and Innovation, Mr. Frederick Vallat as Vice
President, Head of Geocycle and Head of CAPEX, and Ms. Belinda
E. Dugan as Interim Data Privacy Officer.
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August 31, 2018

An advisory on the order given by the Department of Trade and
Industry — Bureau of Product Standards directing: (a) the forfeiture of
the surety bonds in the total amount of Php 8,145,920.50 posted by
the Company in connection with its application for issuance of
Statements of Confirmation (SOC) for Type 1 cement covered by
Bills of Lading No. HPPH 152-1, HPPH 153-1, HPPD 1554-1 and
HPPH 158-1, and (b) issuance of product recall for the
aforementioned goods.

October 9, 2018

An advisory on the order of the Department of Environment and
Natural Resources ("DENR”) — Pollution Adjudication Board (‘PAB")
requiring the Company to fuffill its environmental compliance
obligation in the amount of Php 3,000,000.00 in connection with
DENR PAB Case No- NCR F01008-18 entitied "In the Matter of the
Water/ Air Pollution Control and Abatement Case versus Holcim
Philippines, Inc., - Bicutan Batching Plant, Holcim Philippines, Inc.”

October 18, 2018

An advisory on the payment to the SEC of the penalty incurred in
connection with the Company’'s non-compliance with the SEC
prescribed website template for publicly listed companies.

October 18, 2018

An advisory on the order of the DENR - PAB requiring the Company
to satisfy an environmental compliance obligation under Republic Act
No. 9275 in the amount of Php 3,600,000.00 in connection with the
17,400 MT of coal that were washed out to the Bagbag shoreline, La
Union on July 13, 2018 after the embankment at the stockpile area
was breached by torrential rains.

October 19, 2018

An advisory on the Company'’s receipt of (i) the petition for interim
protection filed by Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. (“Seasia”) under
A.M. No. 07-11-08 SC or the Special Rules of Court on Alternative
Dispute Resolution with Branch 95 of the Regional Trial Court at
Mariveles, Bataan (‘Bataan RTC”); and (i) an Order dated 11
October 2018 issued by Bataan RTC granting Seasia’s motion for
the ex-parte issuance of a temporary protection order in the form of
a writ of preliminary attachment.
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December 3, 2018 | An advisory on the following matters approved in the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors held on November 29, 2018: .

(a) Approval of investment of CHF 297M for the installation of an
integrated plan in Bulacan and new clinker line system for Lugait;

(b) Closure and dissolution of the Company's wholly-owned
subsidiary, Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc.,

(c) Acceptance of resignation of Mr. Mario Gross as director and
memer of the Audit Committee

(d) Election of Ms. Rajani Kesari as the replacement of Mr. Gross to
serve his unexpired term as director;

(e) Resignation of Ms. Belinda E. Dugan as Data Protection Officer;

(f)y Appointment of Ms. Leighna Katrina Sitoy-Abarquez as Data
Protection Officer and Mr. Niels Ledinek as Senior Vice President,
Head of Cement Industrial Performance; and

(g) Change in the designation of several officers from “Assistant
Vice President” to “Vice President”.

March 20, 2019 An advisory on the following matters approved in the special
meeting of the Board of Directors held on March 20, 2019:

(a) Approval of amendment of Articles of incorporation to provide for
an additional secondary purpose: to enable the Company to provide
soil stabilization solutions and ancillary services to its customers
such as initial soil testing, soil preparation, hydraulic binder
application, soil-binder mix compaction and frading, finishing, chip
sealing, stabilized soil performance resting and other similar
services.

(b) Resignation Ms. Leighna Katrina Sitoy-Abarquez as Data
Protection Officer effective on Aprit 6, 2019

(c) Appointment of Ms. Beatrix R. Guevarra as Data Protection
Officer effective on April 6, 2019

The approval of the minutes, Annual Report and audited financial statements for the period
ended December 31, 2018, and ratification of all acts, proceedings and resolutions of the
Board, the Board Committees and the acts of the officers and management since the date of
the last annual meeting require the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Annual
Meeting by the stockholders entitled to vote.

ITEM 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

There is no action to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted
to a vote of security holders.

ITEM 17. AMENDMENT OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS

The Company is presenting for stockholders’ approval the amendment of the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation providing for an additional secondary purpose to enable the Company

to provide soil stabilization solutions and anciliary services to its customers such as initial soil
testing, soil preparation, hydraulic binder application, soil-binder mix compaction and frading,
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finishing, chip sealing, stabilized soil performance resting and other similar services. The
amendment is being proposed in order to add an activity that complements the business of the
Company.

iTEM 18. OTHER PROPOSED ACTION
The following actions are also proposed to be taken up during the Annual Meeting:

1. Election of directors for 2019-2020; and
2. Appointment of external auditor.

ITEM 19. VOTING PROCEDURES
(@)  Matters for Stockholders’ Approval

As provided in Article 1, Section 4 of the By-laws, a quorum at any meeting of stockholders
shall consist of a majority of the entire subscribed capital stock of the Company represented in
person or by proxy, and a majority of such quorum shall decide any question that may come
before the meeting, except the matters in which Philippine laws require the affirmative vote of a
greater proportion. A majority of the quorum at the Annual Meeting shall decide the matters to
be taken up at the meeting.

The affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least two thirds (2/3) of the outstanding
capital stock of the Company shall be necessary for the approval of the proposed amendment
to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

(b)  Election of directors

Pursuant to the Corporation Code, every stockholder entitled to vote shall have the right to
vote in person or by proxy the number of shares of stock standing, as of the record date, in his
own name in the stock and transfer book of the Company; and said stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate
said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
multiplied by the number of his shares owned, or he may distribute them on the same principle
among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by
him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the
Company multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. By way of illustration, the formula
may be stated as follows:

Number of shares held on record x Seven (7) = Total votes that may be cast.

Stockholders of record are entitied to one vote per share. Voting may be done viva voce, by
show of hands or by balloting.

In accordance with Article 1, Section 3 of the Amended By-laws, stockholders may vote at all
meetings the number of shares registered in their respective names, either in person or by
proxy duly given in writing and duly presented to the Corporate Secretary for inspection and
recorded at or prior to the opening of said meeting. No proxy bearing a signature which is not
legally acknowledged shall be recognized at any meeting unless such signature is known and
recognized by the Secretary of the meeting.

All proxies shall be in writing, signed by the stockholders and filed in the office of the Corporate
Secretary at least five (5) days before the meeting.

The external auditor of the Company, Deloitte, is authorized to count votes on any matter
properly brought to the vote of the stockholders, including the election of directors.
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The agenda for the Annual Meeting is as follows:

1.
2.
3

= ©0om~

Call to Order

Proof of Notice and Determination of existence of quorum

Approval of the minutes of the previous annual stockholders’ meeting held on
May 18, 2018

Approval of the Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the period ended December 31, 2018

Approval of Amendment to the Second Article of the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation

Approval and Ratification of all acts, contracts, investments and resolutions of
the Board, Committees and Management since the last annual stockholders’
meeting

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other Matters

Adjournment

(This space intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.)
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SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the
City of Taguig, Metro Manila, on __APR 8 7019 .

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

By:

Belinda E. Dugan
Genkral Counsel &
Corpyrate Secretary
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

MANAGEMENT REPORT

I CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Holcim Philippines, Inc.’s (HP1 or the Company) consolidated audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2018 attached to the Information Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

L. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There was no event in the past five years where Navarro Amper & Co. (Deloitte) or its
predecessor, SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., and the Company had any disagreement with
regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

IR MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS BASED ON THE CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Review of CY 2018 Operations vs. CY 2017

In 2018, the Country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 6.2%*, lower than the
6.7% growth in 2017. Among the major economic sectors, Industry had the fastest growth
while Services decelerated as compared from prior year and Agriculture sector further
declined.

The Company’s revenue increased to PhP35.6 bio or 2.54% higher compared to 2017
arising from the combined effect of higher sales volume and steady prices hinged on
increasing demand from public and private infrastructure projects amidst the tighter
market competition. Sales performance was affected by soft market demand particularly
the first three quarters of the year although volumes started to pick-up towards the end of
the year. Although the Company was able to mitigate some of higher production costs
through business efficiencies and productivity measures, consolidated Operating EBITDA
declined to PhP4.9 bio from PhP5.4 bio. With higher interest expenses from short-term
loans related to capital expenditures especially from expansion projects, Net income after
tax stood at PhP2.5 bio compared with PhP2.7 bio of last year. Despite this, the
Company continues to ramp up and upgrade its facilities particularly its cement and
clinker production capacities to sustain its investment and expansion plans in the country
coupled with various cost improvement initiatives to mitigate impact of higher costs.

*Source: Philippine Statistics Authority
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Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”)

The comparative financial KPI for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as

follows:
r For the Calendar Year
Financial KP! Definition ended December 31
2018 2017
Profitability
Return on Assets (ROA) Net income 6.5% 7.8%
Ave. Total Assets ' '
. Net income o 0
Return on Equity (ROE) Ave. Total Equity 10.7% 11.1%
. . Operating EBITDA o o
Operating EBITDA Margin Net Sales 13.7% 15.7%
Liguidity
. . Net Financial Debt o o
Gearing Ratio Total Equity 16.7% 12.2%
Operating EBITDA
EBITDA N(‘i‘tr“"‘e"se; est Cover Net Interest 176 63.5

Profitability

While lower compared with last year, the profitability indicators remain to be at good levels
remaining positive.

Liquidity

The Company’s liquidity position remained strong evidenced by significant cash balance.

Significant Disclosures

Please refer to the Annual Report for 2018 for the significant disclosures made by the
Company during the year. Other than those mentioned in Annual Report, the Company is
not aware of the following:

1.

3.

4,

Unusual items that materially affect the Company's consolidated assets,
liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or
incidents.

Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the
current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial
years that have a material effect in the current period.

Issuances and repurchase of equity securities.

Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last
annual balance sheet date.



5. Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are
material to an understanding of the current period.

6. Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties that will
result in or likely decrease its liquidity in @ material way. The Company does
not anticipate having within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity

problems nor does it anticipate any default or breach of any of its existing
notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or financial arrangements requiring it
to make payments. With the improvement in the Company's operating
performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the next
interim period.

7 Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the
Company.

8 Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or
contingent), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the year.

9. Material commitments for capital expenditures.

10. Known ftrends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net
income from continuing operations.

11. Significant elements of income OF loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations.

12. Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements
Accounting Policies and Principles

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the consolidated
statements of profit or 10sS and other comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2018 have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards applied on a consistent basis. The detailed accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 5 — summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Seasonality Aspects of the Business

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Group are
affected by seasonality. Net sales are generally higher in dry months from February to
May and lower during the rainy months of June to November. Low sales aré also
experienced during December due to holidays until early January. Unpredictable weather
could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous periods coupled
with any unforeseen circumstances like disruptions in productions.



Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

General Risk Management Approach

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company. The Company does not enter into other derivative or
financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse
approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by
management. It provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific risk areas such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity
requirements.

The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents and loans payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise funds for the Company’'s operations. The Company also has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, advances to
employees, guarantee deposits, restricted cash and trade and other payables which arise
directly from operations.

The main risks arising from the Company'’s financial instruments are market risks {(which
include foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors (BOD) reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarized below. The Company's accounting policies in relation to
financial instruments are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Risks

The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and
equity price risks. To manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters
into derivative financial instruments, when necessary. The Company’s objective is to
reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with
changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity price.

Foreian Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods
and services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso
that leads to currency translation effects. Of the Company’s revenues, approximately nil
and 0.03% were denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2018 and
2017, respectively.

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However,
income may primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount
of capital expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the
Company may enter into derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be
designated either as cash flow hedges or fair value hedges, as appropriate.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had minimal assets and liabilities exposed to
foreign currency risks.



interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow
interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements
of its debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest
rate exposure is mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net
debt. To manage this mix, the Company may enter into derivative transactions, as
appropriate. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had minimal exposure to
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as
agreed. To manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of
customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company does
not expect any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit
ratings. In addition, the Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any
single counterparty or group of counterparties.

The maximum and minimum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. Itis the Company's
policy that all third-party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which
consist of due from related parties, advances to employees, available for sale (AFS)
financial assets, and guarantee and refundable deposits, the Company’s exposures arise
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.

The Company's exposure to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is
disclosed in Note 18 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
its contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation
exposes the Company to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in
payment defaults of financial commitments. The Company monitors this risk using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations. The Company’s objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank credit
facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. It is responsible for its own cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and guidelines
approved by management and in certain cases at the BOD level.



The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are
short-term in nature and unused credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements at all times.
in addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make efficient use of
the financial markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company has unutilized credit facilities of PhP9.5 billion and PhP9.4 billion, respectively.

The Company's financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
disclosed in Note 18 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Capital Management Policy

The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company
as its capital. The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to secure the
Company'’s ongoing financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater to
its growth targets to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-optimized capital structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the
changes in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion
program and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is
calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance
sheets as shown in the table below:

2018 2017
Loans payable - Third party 15,200,000 R -
Loans payable - Group 3,925,850 4,177,902
Customers' deposits 496,305 497,035
Financial debt 9,622,155 4,674,937
Less cash and cash equivalents 5,399,853 1,945,797
Net financial debt 4,222,302 2,729,140
Total equity 25,273,162 22,354,748
Gearing ratio 16.7% 12.2%

The Company’s target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100 percent.
Total equity grew by 12.5% in 2018 as a result of increase in other comprehensive income

Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Increase in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to higher cash flow from
operations and proceeds from ST loans used for capital expenditures spending.

Trade and other receivables

Receivables increased mainly due to from higher due from related parties compared to
previous year.



Other current assets

Decrease was mainly attributable to decrease in advances to suppliers and amortization
of prepaid expenses.

Investments

Decrease was mainly due to the dividends received net of share from unrealized income
from HMDC group.

Property, Plant and Equipment - net

Increase was mainly from additional capital expenditures net of disposal of assets from
ECLI and HUBB.

Retirement benefit assets — net

Increase from gain / recognition of additional retirement fund assets this year net of
present value of defined benefit obligations.

Other Non-Current Assets

Increase was mainly due to additional deposit for future obligation, re-class from short to
long-term financial receivable from a related party, and higher guarantee deposits to
suppliers.

Intangibles assets — net

Decrease was mainly due to amortization recognized for the year. No additional intangible
assets recorded within the year.

Loans Payable

Decrease was mainly due to additional loan from external and related parties net of
settlements / payments made within the year.

Trade and Other Payables

Increase in trade and other payables were mainly driven by higher trade payables and
advances from customers.

income Tax Payable

Increase was due to higher taxable income by reason of increase in non-deductible
expenses for the year ended December 2018 as compared to year ended December
2017.

Provisions

Decrease in provisions was mainly due to settlement of tax provisions during the period

Deferred tax liabilities

Mainly attributable to recognized gain from additional retirement fund asset, collection of
foreign currency-denominated receivables resulting to unrealized foreign exchange gain,
and amortization of deferred tax on revalued property.



Reserves
Decrease is mainly due to accrual of share-based remuneration for the year.

Re-measurement gain on retirement benefits — net

The increase was due to recognized gain from additional retirement fund asset, updated
actuarial assumptions and adjustments which were considered in the retirement liability
calculation.

Retained Earnings
Decrease was due to lower net income realized for the year.

Non-controlling inferests

Increase was mainly due to share from remeasurement gains on retirement benefits of
HPMC.

Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts
Revenues
Higher revenue mainly driven by higher sales volume and steady prices hinged on
increasing demand from public and private infrastructure projects amidst the tighter

market competition.

Cost of Sales

Increase was mainly due to higher production volumes and input costs particularly usage
of imported coal, clinker and cement to support volume sold net of implemented
operational efficiencies and margin optimization initiatives.

General and administrative expenses

Decrease was mainly due to lower third party / outside services costs net of higher
personnel costs from restructuring and various cost savings initiatives across all functions.

Selling Expenses

The decrease was mainly due to lower third-party costs net of higher personnel expenses
from Commercial transformation initiative.

interest and Financing Charges

The increase was due to interest expense from short-term external and intercompany
loans to support capital expenditures spending.

Other income — net

Decrease was due to absence of one-time gain from the disposal of assets recognized
last year.

Foreign Exchange Gains ( Losses) — net

Decrease was due to decrease in foreign currency denominated assets which were
revalued at year-end.



Provision for Income Tax

The decrease was mainly due to lower taxable income for the year.

(This space intentionally left blank. Review of CY 2017 Operations vs. CY 2016 to follow.)



Review of CY 2017 Operations vs. CY 2016

in 2017, the Country’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew by 6.7%*, lower than the
6.9% growth in 2016. Among the major economic sectors, Industry had the fastest growth
followed by Services. Agriculture sector also grew compared to prior year.

The Company’s revenue decreased to PhP34.7 bio, or 13.9% lower compared to 2016
arising from the combined effect of lower sales volume and price amid the tighter market
competition. Sales performance was affected by soft market demand particularly the first
three quarters of the year although sales volume started to pick-up in the last quarter of
the year. The Company achieved a consolidated operating EBITDA of PhP5.4 bio, or
49 6% lower than 2016 mainly due to low topline performance and higher cost of goods
sold. Net income after tax stood at PhP2.7 bio compared with PhP8.8 bio, or 60.7% lower
than last year. Despite this, the Company continues to ramp up and upgrade its facilities
particularly its cement production capacities to sustain its investment and expansion plans
in the country coupled with various cost improvement initiatives to mitigate impact of
higher costs.

*Source: Philippine Statistics Authority

Key Performance Indicators

The comparative financial KP! for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

Financial KP! Definition For the Calendar Year
ended December 31
2017 2016

Profitability

Return on Assets (ROA) Net Income 7.8% 20.2%
Ave. Total Assets

Return on Equity (ROE) Net income 11.1% 26.7%
Ave. Total Equity

Operating EBITDA Margin Operating EBITDA 15.7% 26.8%
Net Sales
Liquidity
Gearing Ratio Net Financiai Debt 12.2% -6.3%
Total Equity
EBITDA Net Interest Cover Operating EBITDA 63.5 486.5
(times) Net Interest
L
Profitability

While lower compared with last year, the profitability indicators remain to be at good levels
remaining positive.

Liguidity

The Company’s liquidity position remained strong as evidenced by significant cash
balance.
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Significant Disclosures

Please refer to the Annual Report for 2017 for the significant disclosures made by the
Company during the year. Other than those mentioned in the Annual Report, the
Company is not aware of the following:

1.

10.

1.

12.

Unusual items that materially affect the Company’s consolidated assets,
liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows because of their nature, size or
incidents.

Changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim periods of the
current financial year or changes in estimates of amounts in prior financial
years that have a material effect in the current period.

Issuances and repurchase of equity securities.

Material changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last
annual balance sheet date.

Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are
material to an understanding of the current period.

Known trends, demands, commitments, events and uncertainties that will
result in or likely decrease its liquidity in a material way. The Company does
not anticipate having within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity
problems nor does it anticipate any default or breach of any of its existing
notes, loans, leases, other indebtedness or financial arrangements requiring it
to make payments. With the improvement in the Company’s operating
performance, it expects to meet all financial loan covenants for the next
interim period.

Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the
Company.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or
contingent), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the year.

Material commitments for capital expenditures.

Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable impact on net sales, revenues, net
income from continuing operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations.

Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
Accounting Policies and Principles

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the consolidated statements of
income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2017 have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
applied in a consistent basis. The detailed accounting policies are disclosed in Note 5 —
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Seasonality Aspects of the Business

Like any other company in the construction industry, the operations of the Company are
affected by seasonality. Net sales are generally higher in dry months from February to
May and lower during the rainy months of June to November. Low sales are also
experienced during December due to holidays until early January. Unpredictable weather
could also significantly affect sales and profitability compared to previous periods coupled
with any unforeseen circumstances like disruptions in production.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

General Risk Management Approach

The Company is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Company. The Company does not enter into other derivative or
financial transactions which are unrelated to its operating business as a risk-averse
approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Company is governed by policies approved by
management. It provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific risk areas such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, counterparty
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing assets in excess of liquidity
requirements.

The Company’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents and loans payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise funds for the Company's operations. The Company also has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, advances to
employees, guarantee deposits, restricted cash and trade and other payables which arise
directly from operations.

The main risks arising from the Company'’s financial instruments are market risks {(which
include foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors (BOD) reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarized below. The Company's accounting policies in relation to
financial instruments are set outin Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Risks

The Company is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency, interest rate and
equity price risks. To manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Company enters
into derivative financial instruments, when necessary. The Company's objective is to
reduce, where appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with
changes in foreign currency, interest rate and equity price.

12



Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily from purchases of goods
and services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine Peso
that leads to currency translation effects. Of the Company's revenues, approximately
0.03% and 0.09% were denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2017
and 2016, respectively.

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited. However,
income may primarily pe in local currency whereas debt servicing and significant amount
of capital expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a consequence thereof, the
Company may enter into derivative contracts whenever necessary, which may be
designated either as cash flow hedges or fair value hedges, as appropriate.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had minimal assets and liabilities exposed to
foreign currency risks.

interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow
interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements
of its debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest
rate exposure is mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of net
debt. To manage this mix, the Company may enter into derivative transactions, as
appropriate. As at December 31,2017 and 2016, the Company had minimal exposuré to
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as
agreed. To manage this risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of
customers.

The Company constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Company does
not expect any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high credit
ratings. In addition, the Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any
single counterparty or group of counterparties.

The maximum and minimum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset.

The Company trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. tis the Company's
policy that all third-party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. in addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
pbasis to reduce the Company’s exposure to bad debts to minimal.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which
consist of due from related parties, advances to employees, available for sale (AFS)
financial assets, and guarantee and refundable deposits, the Company's exposures arise
from default of the counterparty, with @ maximum exposuré equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit risks arising from outstanding financial assets is

disclosed in Note 48 — Financial Risk Management Obijectives and Policies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
its contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation
exposes the Company to shortage of funds during slack season and may result in
payment defaults of financial commitments. The Company monitors this risk using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations. The Company’s objective is to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank credit
facilities, finance leases and purchase contracts. It is responsible for its own cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and guidelines
approved by management and in certain cases at the BOD level.

The Company maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are
short-term in nature and unused credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements at all times.
In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Company allows it to make efficient use of
the financial markets for financing purposes. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Company has unutilized credit facilities of PhP9.4 billion.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
disclosed in Note 18 — Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Capital Management Policy

The Company considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company
as its capital. The Company's objectives when managing capital are to secure the
Company's ongoing financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater to
its growth targets to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain a cost-efficient and risk-optimized capital structure.

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the
changes in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and expansion
program and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing is
calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the parent company balance
sheets as shown in the table below:

2017 2016
Loans payable ?4,177,902 P -
Customers’ deposits 497,035 483,584
Financial debt 4,674,937 483,584
Less cash and cash equivalents 1,945,797 2,125,116
Net financial debt (asset) 2,729,140 (1,641,632)
Total equity 22,354,748 26,257,333
Gearing ratio 12.2% (6.3%)

The Company's target is to maintain a gearing in the range of no more than 100 percent.
The increase in gearing ratio was due to the PhP4.2 billion short-term loans from
associates availed by the Company during the year.

Total equity decreased by 14.9% in 2017 as a result of lower operating results for the
year.
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Material Changes in Balance Sheet Accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to lower cash from operations,
higher capex spending, net of proceeds from intercompany loans.

Trade and other receivables - net

Increase mostly pertains to increase in receivables from related parties due to increase in
transfers of assets advances from the Company. This was mitigated by the decrease in
trade receivables primarily due to lower sales and improvement in DSO as a result of the
resolute coliection activities this year.

Inventories - net

increase is driven by high inventory levels of raw materials and fuels as of end of the year.

Other current assets

Increase was mainly attributable to increase in advances to suppliers and prepayment of
taxes.

Property, Plant and Equipment - net

Increase was mainly from additional capital expenditures, net of transfers of assets to
HMDC group and various disposals of property, plant and equipment under RMX
segment.

Intangibles assets — net

Decrease was mainly due to sale/transfer of software and amortization recognized for the
year.

Deferred income tax assets - net

The increase was mostly attributable to pension contributions and settlement of prior
years' tax assessment.

Other non-current assets

The decrease was mainly due to the reclassification of the current portion of long-term
financial receivable from Holcim East Asia Business Service Centre B.V. (HEABS)
relating to the transfer of intellectual property rights and leasehold improvements, to other
current assets.

Loans Payable
During the year, the Company availed various short term loans from related parties.

Trade and Other Payables

Increase in trade and other payables was an effect of the increased purchases of
inventories and accruals for rebates during the year.

Income Tax Payable

Decrease was mainly due to lower taxable income for the year ended December 2017 as
compared to year ended December 2016.
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Retirement Benefit Liabilities

Increase was mainly due to impact of benefits paid from organizational efficiency and from
updated actuarial assumptions.

Provisions

Decrease in provisions pertains to reversal of prior period’'s provisions after settiement of
tax assessments.

Reserves

Increase was due to HPI's performance compensation scheme accrual for the share-
based remuneration for the year.

Re-measurement loss on retirement benefits — net

The decrease was due to the updated actuarial assumptions and employee adjustments
which were considered in the retirement liability calculation.

Retained Earnings

Decrease was due to lower net income realized for the year and higher dividend
declaration.

Non-conirolling interests

Decrease was due to the higher share in remeasurement loss on retirement benefits than
the share in realized net income during the year.

Material Changes in Income Statement Accounts
Revenues

Decrease was mainly driven by lower volume and price from strong competition and soft
market demand.

General and administrative expenses

Decrease was mostly due to lower expenditure on third-party services as a resuit of
various savings initiatives taken across support functions.

Selling Expenses

The increase was mostly attributable to higher expenditure for advertising and promotion,
third party services, transportation and communication and other expenses incurred for
strategic commercial initiatives.

Interest and Financing Charges

The increase was due to the short-term loans availed from third party in July and from
related parties by end of 2017.

Interest and Other Financial Income

Increase was mainly attributable to increased short-term deposits.
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Other income — net

Increase was mostly attributable to the gain as a result of HPMC's transfer of MPSA to
HRDC and higher undistributed earnings from HMDC group.

Provision for Income Tax

The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of net taxable income for the year.

Information on Independent Accountant

The accounting firm of Navarro Amper & Co. (Deloitte) has been the Company’s
independent public accountant / external auditor since 2017.

Audit and Related Fees

The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Deloitte in 2018 and 2017
were PhP8.0 million and PhP6.7 million. These fees, inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses,
cover services rendered by the external auditor for audit of the financial statements of the
Company and other services in connection with statutory and regulatory filings for years
2018 and 2017.

Tax Fees & All Other Fees

The Company did not engage Deloitte for tax and other services in 2018 and 2017.

The Audit Committee’s Approval Policies and Procedures for the Above Services

The Company’s Manual of Corporate Governance provides that the audit committee shall
perform oversight functions over the Company’s internal and external auditors, ensure the
independence of both internal and external auditors from each other, and make certain
that both auditors are given unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to
enable them to perform their respective audit functions.

in relation to the audit of the Company’s financial statements, the Company's Manual of
Corporate Governance provides that the audit committee shall:

e Prior to the commencement of the audit, discuss with the external auditor the
nature, scope and expenses of the audit scope;

+ Determine the extent of the internal and external auditor's responsibility in the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company

» Review the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors;

o Evaluate and determine the non-audit work, if any, of the external auditor, and
review periodically the non-audit fees paid to the external auditor in relation to
their significance to the total annual income of the external auditor and to the
Company’s overall consuitancy expenses. The Audit Committee shall disaliow
any non-audit work that will conflict with his duties as an external auditor or may
pose a threat to his independence. The non-audit work, if allowed, shall be
disclosed in the Company’s annual report.

o Pre-approve all audit plans, scope and frequency one (1) month before the
conduct of external audit.
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Upon recommendation of the Audit Committee and approval of the Board of Directors, the
appointment of the external auditor is proposed for confirmation by the shareholders at
the annual stockholders’ meeting. In addition, the consolidated financial statements are
reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors
before its release.

Iv. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE GENERAL NATURE
AND SCOPE OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Item 1. Business

Holcim is one of the premier cement manufacturers in the Philippines and is a member
of the LafargeHolcim Group, one of the world’s leading suppliers of cement, aggregates,
concrete and construction-related services. HPI is mainly engaged in the manufacture,
sale and distribution of cement and cementitious products and the provision of technical
support on various construction-related quality control, optimization, solutions
development and skills upgrade.

The Company and its subsidiaries own four cement production facilities, one cement
grinding mill, five ports, as well as multiple storage and distribution points across the
country.

The consolidated operations of the four cement production facilities have fortified
HPI's premier position in the Philippine cement industry with a total installed clinker
production capacity of 5.2 million metric tons per year (MTPY) and cement production
capacity of 9.4 million MTPY.

HP! was the first in the Philippine cement industry to receive ISO 9002 certification
(Quality Management System Standards) from the international  Organization for
Standardization (ISO). Additionally, all four plants are ISO 14001 certified
(Environment Management System Standards) and OH&S 18001 (Occupational Health
& Safety Management) certified.

“Holcim” is one of the top selling brands and quality ieaders in the Philippines.

(1)  History and Business Development

HP! was incorporated and registered with the Philippines Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on November 12, 1964 under the name Hi-Cement Corporation
(HCC).

On February 8, 2000, the SEC approved the merger of HCC, Davao Union Cement
Corporation, and Bacnotan Cement Corporation, with HCC as the surviving entity.
Simultaneously, the SEC also approved the request for a change of corporate name from
HCC to Union Cement Corporation (UCC).

On January 11, 2001, the SEC approved the merger of Atlas Cement Marketing
Corporation, Davao Union Marketing Corporation and Bacnotan Marketing Corporation
into UCC.

On July 17, 2002, the Board of Directors of UCC approved the acquisition of 88% of the
issued and ouistanding common shares of Alsons Cement Corporation (ACC) from
Cemco Holdings, Inc. (Cemco). In consideration of such shares, new shares of UCC were
issued to Cemco, at the exchange ratio of one (1) UCC share for every 3.7 ACC shares
owned by Cemco, thus, making ACC a subsidiary of UCC.
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Pursuant to the Securities Regulation Code (SRC) and its implementing rules and
regulations, HPI undertook a tender offer in favor of the remaining 12% non-controlling
shareholders of ACC to exchange their holdings in ACC for new shares of UCC at the
same exchange ratio, with the option to accept cash at a price of PhP0.28 per ACC share,
in lieu of HPI shares. The foregoing transactions were approved by shareholders of UCC
on September 4, 2002. The Company acquired additional ACC shares representing 0.02%
equity interest in ACC after the end of the tender offer period.

On September 19, 2002, the Board of Directors of ACC approved a resolution for the
delisting of the shares of stocks of the company from the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE). The PSE approved the resolution for the delisting on December 15, 2002.

On August 17, 2004, the SEC approved ACC’s reverse stock split, increasing the par
value of ACC’s shares to PhP1,000 per share from PhPQ.50 per share. As a resuit of
additional purchases from the remaining non-controlling shareholders of ACC in 2004 and
the effect of the reverse stock split, UCC equity interest in ACC increased from 98.74% to
99.6%.

On November 30, 2004, the SEC approved the request for change in corporate name from
UCC to HPI. On January 19, 2005, the SEC also approved the change in corporate name
of ACC to Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corp. (HPMC).

On March 6, 2014, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of Holcim
Mining and Development Corporation (HMDC) (formerly Sulu Resources Development
Corp., later renamed Holcim Aggregates Corporation) o make way for additional
subscription by HP! and HPMC, in consideration of properties such as parcels of land,
mining claims and foreshore leases. On March 18, 2016, the SEC approved the increase
in authorized capital stock of HMDC to make way for subscription by the Holcim
Philippines, Inc. Retirement Fund of sixty percent of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of HMDC. Today, HMDC is an associate company of HPI, providing most of the
Company’'s raw materials from the quarries of HMDC and its subsidiaries in La Union,
Bulacan, Lugait and Davao. HMDC and its subsidiaries also leases to the Company
parcels of land and foreshore leases for the latter's operations.

As of December 31, 2018, HPI is 60.55% owned by Union Cement Holdings Corporation
(UCHC), 18.11% owned by Holderfin B.V., and 7.08% owned by Cemco while the
remainder of its shares is owned by the public. HPI common shares are listed in the PSE.

The Company’s Subsidiaries

Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation (HPMC)

HPMC was incorporated and registered with the SEC on February 7, 1968 under the
name of Victory Cement Corporation.

HPMC has 1.5 million MTPY line that was successfully commissioned in 1998 and started
commercial operation in January 1999. HPMC'’s terminal located in Calaca, Batangas,
which had been idle for several years, was rehabilitated in 2010 and resumed operations
in January 2011. Today, substantially all of HPMC’s cement manufacturing assets are
being leased by HPI.

In January 2018, HPMC renewed the bareboat agreement with HPI for the latter's vessel
requirements to transport cement to various destinations within the Philippines.

HPMC'’s subsidiary, Calamba Aggregates Company, Inc. (CACI), was incorporated and

registered with the SEC on October 15, 1992, that operated an aggregates plant in
Laguna. CACI ceased operations effective December 31, 2013.
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HPMC’s wholly owned subsidiary, Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. (BPI), was incorporated and
registered with the SEC on April 5, 1995. Today, BPI owns a bulk terminal located in lloilo
which is currently being leased by HPI.

Alsons Construction Chemicals, Inc. (ALCHEM), another subsidiary, owned a cement and
mineral admixture plant in Lugait, Misamis Oriental, was incorporated in the Philippines
and was registered with the SEC on December 23, 1996. The operation of ALCHEM was
discontinued since July 1999. ALCHEM filed an affidavit of non-operation with the SEC.

Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. (ECLI)

Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. was incorporated and registered with the SEC on August 9,
2012. On January 1, 2013, ECLI started its full operation servicing the distribution, transport
and placing of concrete, as well as transport of cement and specialty products. On November
29, 2018, the Board of Directors of HPI approved the closure and dissolution of ECLI. ECLI is
in the process of completing regulatory requirements for its eventual dissolution.

Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc. (HPBSCI)

Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc. was incorporated and registered with the
SEC on February 4, 2014. HPBSCI was set up to engage in the business of providing
business process outsourcing and other information technology-enabled services to the
Holcim Group. On February 13, 2015, HPBSC! transferred and sold its intellectual property
rights and leasehold improvements to Holcim East Asia Business Service Centre B.V. —
Philippine ROHQ.

HuBB Stores and Services Inc. (HSSI)

HuBB Stores and Services inc. was incorporated and registered with the SEC on
June 2, 2014. HSSI was set up to engage in the business of buying, selling and distributing
construction and building materials, and to operate, maintain and franchise stores for the
sale and distribution of said materials.

Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation (MGMC)
Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation was incorporated and registered with the SEC on

September 29, 1999. In August 2013, the rehabilitation of MGMC's grinding station in
Mabini, Batangas was completed. HPI is leasing and operating the said grinding station.

Bankruptcy Proceedings
The Company is not a party to any bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings.

Material Reclassification, Merger, Consolidation

The Company is not a party to any merger or consolidation for the period ending
December 31, 2018. Neither is the Company a party to any significant purchase of assets.

(2) General Business Description

HP! is engaged in the manufacture, sale and distribution of cement, dry mix mortar
products, clinker and aggregates. It also offers construction-related trainings,
consultancies, testing and other technical services to its customers. With the Company’s
production facilities, ports, storage & distribution terminals, sales offices and channel
pariners, HPl has an extensive sales and distribution footprint due to its strategically
located plants and terminals in the Philippines. The Company's product quality and
operational capability are geared toward meeting the customers’ needs.
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(a) Product Lines

HPI manufactures four (4) main cement product brands namely: Holcim Premium
(Type 1 Portland cement), Holcim 4X (Type 1 high performance Portland cement),
Holcim Excel (Type 1P Blended cement) and Holcim WallRight (Type S Masonry
cement). Its products are sold mostly in bags except for Holcim 4X (mainly bulk).
Other packaging formats include tonner, jumbo bags and bulk. HPI also sells to
cement producers a semi-finished product called clinker, which is sold only in
bulk. Moreover, it is involved in the ready-mix concrete business and selling of
aggregates. It has extended its portfolio by selling dry mix mortar products such
as Holcim Tile Adhesive, Holcim Skim Coat and Holcim Cementitious
Waterproofing.

All HPI products meet the Philippine National Standards (PNS) and the American
Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) product quality standards.

Below is a brief description of HPI's various products:
Holcim 4X

Holcim 4X is an ASTM C150 high performance Portland cement. It is specially
formulated for ready mix concrete applications. It has high compressive strength,
high workability and is compatible with commonly available admixtures. Suppiied
in bulk, Holcim 4X is mainly used for high-rise buildings and vertical structures
that require high-strength cement. It is ideal for construction that requires
optimized concrete mix designs and fast construction cycles. With the high 28-
day compressive strength of Holcim 4X, lower cement factor is needed resulting
in lower construction costs. Longer setting time results to better slump retention
and pumpability of concrete.

Holcim Premium

Holcim Premium is an ASTM Type | Portland Cement. It is used for general
concrete construction. To make Portland cement, powdered limestone, silica and
iron-rich materials are homogenized and burnt at 1500°C. The resulting material
is called clinker. Portland cement is produced by grinding clinker with a small
amount of gypsum, a set retarder. When Portland cement is mixed with water
and aggregates to make concrete, the mixture is initially flowable and easy to
place, mold and finish. Eventually, the concrete sets, hardens and produces a
strong and durable construction material.

Holcim Excel

Holcim Excel Cement is an ASTM Type IP Cement, which is Portland cement
combined with advanced mineral additives. It is sold mainly in 40-kg bags and
used for general concrete construction. Advanced mineral additives (including
granulated blast furnace slag) are inter-ground with Portland cement clinker and
gypsum to improve the workability and early strength. The product is used for the
same applications as the Portland cement described above but is preferred by
many customers because the additives improve its performance.
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Holcim WaliRight Cement

Holcim WallRight Cement is an ASTM C91 Type S Masonry Cement designed for
block laying, plastering and finishing use. It is made by inter-grinding mineral
additives and an air-entraining additive with Portland cement clinker during the
finish milling operation.The resulting cement will produce smoother, more
cohesive and more cost-effective mortars and plasters which are preferred by
masons.

Clinker

Clinker is an intermediate product in cement production. It is produced by
grinding and burning a proportioned mixture of limestone, shale and silica. When
clinker is further subjected to grinding and added with gypsum, Portland cement is
produced.

Ready Mix Concrete

Ready mix concrete (RMX) is an engineered construction material produced by
mixing cement, admixtures, water, coarse aggregates and fine aggregates. It is
produced in an RMX batching plant under controlled conditions and delivered by
transmit mixer to a customer. A producer can make concrete of various strength
grades and performance characteristics by adjusting the proportions of the
different raw materials. The manner in which ready mix concrete is purchased,
produced and delivered is defined by ASTM C94 Standard Specification for
Ready-Mix Concrete.

Over the course of its business operations, RMX has been incurring losses thus
the management has decided to cease its operations.

Aggregates

Aggregates are granular materials of mineral compositions used for various
construction applications. It is used with a binding medium to form concrete,
bitumous concrete, precast concrete, mortar, plaster and other concrete and
asphalt applications. It can be used alone for road bases, structural beddings,
railroad ballast, filter beds, backfills, etc. The grading and quality conforms to the
ASTM C33 Standard Specifications for coarse and fine aggregates.

Holcim Tile Adhesive

Holcim Tile Adhesive is a premium cement-based adhesive for tiies specially
formulated for thin-bed vertical and horizontal application. Its unique formulation
combined with Holcim cement provides for a faster, stronger adhesion, with
excellent non-slip properties.

Holcim Skim Coat

Holcim Skim Coat is a cementitious plaster specially designed to smoothen
vertical structures suitable for both indoor and outdoor use. Skim Coat is used for
rendering and smoothening surfaces prior to application of sealants or decorative
paints.

Holcim Concrete Waterproofing
Holcim Waterproofing is one-component cement-based waterproofing specially
formulated using Holcim cement, high-quality polymers and chemical admixtures

to provide superior flexible waterproofing of structures. This product is currently
being sold on a per request basis.
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The following table shows the breakdown of sales revenues by product line of the
Company for the periods indicated:

Table 1 — Revenue by Product Line

Calendar Year Calendar Year Calendar Year

Ended Ended Ended
(In Thousand Pesos)  December 31,2018 December 31,2017  December 31, 2016

Cement and R33,227,519 R31,686,117 R38,364,642
cementitious materials

Others 2,395,594 3,054 644 1,971,166
Total B35,623,113 B34,740,761 R40,335,808

(b)  Contribution of Export Sales

The amounts and percentages of revenue attributable to export sales, including
breakdown per region, for the calendar years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

Table 2 — Export Revenue

Calendar Year Calendar Year Calendar Year
Ended Ended Ended
(In Thousand Pesos) ~ December 31,2018 December 31,2017  December 31, 2016
Total Export : NIL P9,264
Revenues
% to Total Revenues NIL 0.03% 0.09%
Breakdown of Export
Revenues per Region
(in %)
Southeast Asia
Eastern Asia
Oceania NiL 0.03% 0.09%
North America
Western Europe
Middle East
Total % to Total NIL 0.03% 0.09%
Revenues

(c) Marketing and Distribution

The Company’s major domestic customers are traders, wholesalers, retailers,
contractors serving private and public projects, real-estate developers and
concrete producers. Notably, HPI has supplied a number of big commercial and
government flagship projects in the entire country.

(d) New Product
Holcim Solido, with high performance formulation Type 1P blended cement was

initially introduced during the third quarter of 2018 to pilot customers as a new
solution for roads and building construction.
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(e) Competition

(M

There are eight integrated cement manufacturers in the Philippines that include
Holcim, Republic Cement, Cemex, Taiheiyo, Northern Cement, Eagle Cement,
Goodfound and Mabuhay. These manufacturers operate a total of 16 integrated
cement plants and 3 cement grinding plants all over the country. Big Boss
Cement, a new entrant, recently opened a cement grinding plant in Pampanga
this year.

Among the local players, Holcim has the widest market reach serving customers
across the country from two integrated cement plants, one cement grinding plant
and one dry mix plant in Luzon, and two integrated cement plants in Mindanao.
Holcim also operates cement terminals in lloilo, Batangas and Manila. There are
various warehouses strategically set up in the different geographic markets to
support the company’s distribution network.

The Company has a deep portfolio of innovative solutions fostered by a wide
range of building products and solutions. It offers cement, aggregates, finishing
and concrete solutions that can help local builders execute a wide range of
projects with high performance and efficiency, from massive infrastructures to
simple home repairs.

The four cement plants of Holcim are certified to meet the ISO 9002 (Quality
Management), ISO 14001 (Environmental Management) and OH&S 18001
(Occupational Health and Safety Management) standards.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials and Supplies
Raw Materials

The Company sources most of its raw materials (limestone, pozzolan, shale) from
its associate company, HMDC and its subsidiaries which hold Mineral Production
Sharing Agreements for its quarries in various areas in La Union, Bulacan, Davao
and Lugait, Misamis Oriental. HPI also source raw materials from third party
suppliers.

Energy Supply

Being an energy-intensive process, cement production requires a reliable and
competitively priced power supply for uninterrupted and cost-effective production.

The Bulacan plant’s peak demand is currently at 35 megawatts (“MW") while La
Union plant's peak demand is currently at 15 MW. On August 12, 2011, a 15-year
Energy Services Agreement (ESA) was signed with Trans-Asia Oil and Energy
Development Corp. (TA Oil), now Phinma Energy Corporation (PEC) for the
supply of both Bulacan Line 2 and La Union plants starting in 2014. In the new
ESA, electricity supply will be coming from the 135 MW Puting Bato coal-fired
power plant in Calaca, Batangas owned by South Luzon Thermal Energy
Corporation, a joint venture company of TA Oil and Ayala’s AC Energy Holdings.
Included in the agreement is the provision of back-up supply from the Diesel
Power Plants in Bulacan (TA Power) and in Bacnotan (CIP/TA Oil). In essence,
power supply for the Company’s Bulacan and La Union Plants is assured over a
long-term period notwithstanding the uncertainties of how the Luzon grid supply
situation will move. Electricity fee is structured according to time-of-use (TOU)
rate with provisions to rate increases based on fuel purchased for the power plant.
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The Davao plant’s total power requirement is 22 MW. The plant primarily sourced
its electricity from the National Power Corporation (NPC) through the Mindanao
Grid which generates a substantial portion of its power through hydroelectric
power plants. Effective September 26, 2013, Davao plant became a captive
customer of Davao Light and Power Company, the Distribution Utility (DU) which
holds the franchise for power distribution in the area pursuant to Energy
Regulatory Commission Resolution No. 27, Series of 2010.

The Lugait plant's total power requirement is 33 MW for both lines or 27 MW with
Line 2 only. After the expiration of the Power Supply Agreement with NPC on
December 25, 2012, Misamis | Oriental Electric Cooperative (Moresco 1) took over
as the power supplier of Lugait plant pursuant to Energy Regulatory Commission
Resolution No. 27, Series of 2010. Currently, only Line 2 is operating.

Mabini Grinding plant which is a BMW capacity establishment has qualified as a
"Contestable Customer (CC)" when the Retail Competition and Open Access
(RCOA) was implemented last June 26, 2013. As a result, a 10-year Power
Supply Agreement with TA Oil was signed and took effect on June 26, 2014 in
lieu of an agreement with distribution utility Department of Energy (DOE)
Batangas Electric Cooperative, Inc. (BATELEC II).

On November 29, 2017, DOE issued a Department Circular 2017-12-0013
lowering minimum demand to 500-749 kW to qualify as a CC. This will allow
captive customers in Luzon-Visayas Grid to shift to a Retail Electricity Supplier
(RES) and avail of competitive rates from RES suppliers or from the Wholesale
Electricity Spot Market (WESM) by 26th June 2018. At the moment, no other
facilities of HPI qualified as contestable customer in Luzon-Visayas Grid aside
from La Union, Bulacan, and Mabini.

Coal and Fuel Supply

HPI uses coal for heating the Company's kiins in La Union, Bulacan, Davao and
Lugait.

HPI's imported indonesian coal requirements are covered with annual supply
contracts. These contracts form part of the Asia-Pacific (APAC) volume pooling
strategy led by LafargeHolcim Energy Solutions, a company established to
leverage the purchasing power of APAC Operating Company (OpCos) to obtain
better pricing conditions for its coal needs. The said strategy helped APAC OpCos
to leverage in both product and freight resulting in more competitive rates. Spot
purchases shall remain as an option to have a healthy balance of supply
reliability, market competitive prices and opportunity for substitute fuels.

For local coal requirements, the company entered into a 2-year contract with
Semirara Mining & Power Corporation covering 2017-2018.

HPI has an existing supply contract with Petron and SL Harbour for its Diesel and
Bunker fuel needs. Contracts started from November 1, 2017 are still valid until
October 31, 2020.

The Company has not experienced any disruption in its solid and liquid fuel
supply.

In addition, Geocycle, the waste management arm of the Company, sources
Alternative Fuels and Resources (AFR) to support fuel requirements of the
Company. AFR materials pass thru stringent pre-qualification process to ensure
no significant impact to plant operation, cement quality, environmental footprint
and safety to people. Industrial wastes from manufacturing companies are pre-
processed to turn into suitable AFR for cement kiln co-processing. Likewise,
biomass such as rice husk, waste carbon and saw dust are accepted as AFR.
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(h)

Dependence on a Single or a Few Customers

The Company employs a multi-level distribution strategy in serving the market.
This covers wholesaler and retailer intermediaries, traders, ready mix companies,
concrete products manufacturers, international and local contractors, and real-
estate developers. At the same time, HPI supports numerous large- and medium-
scale government infrastructure projects.

The aim is for the business not to be dependent on a single or a few customers
but rather achieve a well-balanced customer portfolio. The loss of one or more
customers will have no material adverse effect on the Company and its
subsidiaries taken as a whole.

Related Party Transactions

Please see Note 29 — Related Party Transactions to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for details.

(i) Trademarks, Licenses, Concessions, Labor Contracts

@

(k)

U

In 2017, applications for transfer of MPSA to HMDC and/or its subsidiary, HRDC
have been approved by the DENR.

On labor contracts, please see the discussion on employees under ltem (m).

In 2016, the Philippine Intellectual Property Office issued Certificates of
Registration to HSSI for the following trademarks: (1) *HuBB” logo; and (2) “HUB
Builders Center".

Governmental Approval of Principal Products

The Bureau of Product Standards (BPS) granted HPI the license to use the
Philippine Standard Quality Certification Mark for its principal products. All other
necessary licenses and permits required for the continuous production and sale of
HPI products have been secured by the Company, including new licenses as well
as those that have to be renewed periodically.

Research and Development
The Company is engaged in research and development for improving the
production process used in its plants and for improving the quality and strength of
its products. The Company spent a total of P110.13 million research and
development costs in last three years as follows:

Table 3 — Research and Development Costs

Amount Percentage
Period Covered (‘000 Pesos) to Revenues
CY ended December 31, 2018 B37,919 0.11%
CY ended December 31, 2017 37,780 0.11%
CY ended December 31, 2016 34,431 0.09%
Total R110,130

Costs and Effects of Compliance with Environmental Laws
The company conducts its operations consistent with sustainable development

principles and continuously improves its environmental performance to ensure
compliance to environmental laws and regulations both locally and internationally.
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The company is committed to comply with environmental laws, regulations and
standards applicable to its products and operations and subscribes to leading
industry initiatives and internal requirements. It also assesses and measures its
environmental impacts and continuously improves its processes, tools and
capabilities and promotes best practices in the industry. For example, in order to
ensure compliance to air emission standards, the plants maintain and operate
electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-cyclone and bag filters to mitigate
dust emissions. The plants are also equipped with Continuous Emission
Monitoring System (CEMS) for real time monitoring of gaseous emissions such as
nitrogen oxide (NOx) and sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions. Overall performance is
validated regularly by quarterly monitoring of multi-stakeholders and government
audits and is confirmed that HPI is compliant with the existing government
standards.

The plants are ISO 14001 certified or have an effective environmental
management system in place to ensure all environmental impacts and risks are
effectively managed and mitigated. The company continuously optimize its use of
resources through re-using, recovering andf/or recycling waste materials in own
production processes where feasible, minimizing the generation of any hazardous
and non-hazardous waste, and disposing waste using safe and responsible
methods.

The company proactively engages with stakeholders and cooperates with
legislators and regulators to ensure environmental obligations are fulfilled and
local regulations are complied.

(m) Employees

As of December 31, 2018, HPI and subsidiaries had a total of 1,203 officers and
regular employees broken down as follows:

Table 4 — Officers and Employees

Location Subsidiaries
Head Office*
Bulacan Plant
La Union Plant
Davao Plant
Lugait Plant
Calumpit
Calaca

Total 1,110 |
* Includes ECLI, RMX, HSSI and Mabini plants

The Company expects an increase in the number of employees in the first quarter
of 2018 to fill positions in Sales and Marketing department.

Strengthening of performance management and employee development
programs will continue to be the focus to support the company’s growth
objectives.

HPI cement plant supervisory and rank and file employees are unionized and all
labor unions have a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) signed with the
Company. The rank and file employees of HPI's bag plant and subsidiary ECLI
have also organized their respective unions. The Company maintains a positive
relationship with its workers by implementing policies that are fully cognizant of
the workers' rights and needs through open communication and conduct of
productive Labor Management Councils (LMC).

27



The following table shows the respective labor unions of HPI and its subsidiaries
and the expiry dates of their CBAs:

Table 5 — Labor Unions

CI;?:::;)S':L Labor Union CBA Expiry Date
Bacnotan, La La Union Cement Workers Union March 31, 2022
Union Holcim La Union Supervisory Employees Union March 31, 2024
Norzagaray, Holcim Philippines Employees Association December 31, 2020
Bulacan (HPEA)

UCC Bulacan Supervisory Employees Union February 28, 2019
(UBSEU)
Lugait, Misamis  {Holcim Lugait Employees Labor Union July 31, 2021
Oriental Holcim Lugait Supervisors Independent Union March 31, 2021
Davao City Davao Holcim Employees Workers Union March 31, 2020
Holcim Davao Supervisory Independent Union March 31, 2020
Calumpit, Bulacan |Holcim Paper Bag Plant Employees Association | December 31, 2023
— FFW Chapter
Norzagaray, Excel Concrete Logistics, Incorporated Workers March 31, 2023
Bulacan Union — National Union of Building and

Construction Workers

CBA Negotiations have improved with La Union Supervisory union closed in one
day and Calumpit Bag Plant Associates Union closed in three days.

(n) Risk Factor

Political and Economic Factors

The Company and its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the manufacture of
clinker and cement in the Philippines. Cement is one of the basic materials for
building works and sales are highly dependent on the demand for construction
activities and the aggregate growth of the economy as well as political conditions
in the country.

One of the principal factors that may materially affect financial performance is the
level of construction activity in the public and private sectors. Public sector
construction activity has always been a significant part of cement demand.
However, government spending on construction-related activities (e.qg.,
infrastructure and housing) is dependent on various factors mainly budgetary
constraints and political considerations that could impact government's ability to
execute is planned projects.

On the other hand, private sector spending is primarily driven by investors’
confidence in the country, which in turn, is dependent on the country’s economic
and political conditions.
Any perceived political instability or lower-than-expected economic growth could
have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial performance.

Availability of Stable Power Supply

The 15-year contract with TA Oil, now PEC, provides stable and guaranteed
power supply for La Union and Bulacan Plants. The contract also provides island
mode backup power for both Luzon plants during grid failures. In 2016, the
company started to take advantage of the WESM, to the extent the contract
allows, when power prices in the spot market are lower compared to contracted
rates. For the period 2017-2021, the company will be getting a fixed discount
from PEC on contracted generation rates.
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Lugait and Davao Plants, both situated in Mindanao, are now enjoying electricity
surplus compared to previous years where curtailments were prevalent due to
limited generation capacities. The energy surplus in Mindanao resulted from new
coal power plants starting commercial operations in mid-2016 and subsequent
years. It is projected that the additional capacities will provide Mindanao with
surplus power supply in the medium-term.

WESM is not yet available in Mindanao aithough trial operations have started
since June 2017. Also, the Retail Competition and Open Access (RCOA) can
only be launched after WESM has been implemented. Hence, Lugait and Davao
Plants will remain captive customers of Distribution Utility — Moresco | and Davao
Light and Power Company (DLPC), respectively.

The company is exploring measures to manage power costs and at the same time
contribute to sustainability strategy.

Dependence on Key Facilities

Substantially all of HPI's income has been, and will be derived from the sale of
products manufactured at its production facilities in Luzon and Mindanao. Any
proionged breakdown of, or significant damage to, the Company’'s production
facilities could have an adverse effect on the results of its operations. HPI
maintains comprehensive property and casualty insurance policies covering its
production facilities and key assets under an Industrial All-Risk policy. However,
there can be no assurance that the proceeds from HPI's insurance claims would
be sufficient to compensate the Company for all the effects of possible loss and/or
damage. Notwithstanding that, the Company has appropriate processes and
measures in place to further mitigate the risk of any possible loss or damage.

Impact of the Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Based on the 2018 Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Annual Exchange Rate Report,
the Philippine Peso depreciated from PhP49.92 against the US Dollar as of
December 31, 2017 to PhP52.72 as of December 31, 2018. The Peso has
undergone fluctuations during the year with an average rate of PhP52.66. It has
also slid to an 12-year low of PhP54.01 in October 2018. The weakening of the
Peso resulted in the increase of cost of production inputs such as imported fuel,
coal and supplies.

Environmental and Regquiatory Matters

Cement manufacturing involves use of fossil fuel (coal and bunker fuel) and
electric power, and possible emission of dust in the atmosphere, factors that may
adversely affect the environment.

HPI conforms to rules and regulations defined under the following: The Philippine
Environmental Impact Statement System (PD 1586), The Philippine Clean Air Act
1999 (RA 8749), Philippine Clean Water Act of 2004 (RA 9275), Ecological Solid
Waste Management Act of 2000 (RA 9003), and Toxic Substances & Hazardous
& Nuclear Waste Conirol Act of 1990 (RA 6969). Other Applicable Laws &
Regulations are also identified in the Company’s Integrated Management System
Manual.
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In a group-wide program, the Company decided to reduce dust emissions below
the prescribed 150 mg/Nm3 level that the government allows cement plants to
emit under the Philippine Clean Air Act. The Company maintains and operates
modern electrostatic precipitators, bag houses, multi-cyclone and bag filters for
mitigating the dust coming from its plants’ pre-heater towers, kilns and cement mill
grinding systems. With these modern dust control systems in place, HPI's
cement plants kept dust emission levels below the prescribed government
standard. The Company has in place Continuous Emission Monitoring System
(CEMS) in all its four plants. The system provides all information required to
measure the Company’s overall environmental performance and has confirmed
that HPI’s plants are compliant with the existing government standards.

Based on the assessment made on the existing facilities, the Company believes it
complies with the provisions of the Clean Air Act and its implementing rules and
regulations.

HPI's four plants continue to be recognized by the relevant national government
agencies for its environmental programs.

The status of compliance on the conditions stated in the Environmental
Compliance Certificate (ECC) is regularly reported to DENR through the
submission of Self-Monitoring Reports (SMR), Compliance Monitoring Reports
(CMR), and Compliance Monitoring and Verification Reports (CMVR).

Lastly, HPI's four plants are also granted with Treatment, Storage and Disposal
(TSD) Certificate as attestation to Geocycle’s responsible handling and
management of hazardous industrial wastes.

Item 2. Properties

The Company’s major items of property, plant and equipment are located in Norzagaray,
Bulacan; Bacnotan, La Union; Bo. llang, Davao City; Lugait, Misamis Oriental; Mabini,
Batangas; Calaca, Batangas; lloilo; and Manila. The table shows the consolidated
properties of HP! as of December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017.

Table 6 — Plant, Property and Equipment (Consolidated)

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

(In Thousand Pesos)

Machinery and equipment R24,355,667 R23,980,205
Buildings and installations 12,905,681 12,958,244
Furniture, vehicles and tools 940,936 939,071
Construction in progress 6,204,939 4,376,115
44,407 223 42,253,635

Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion
and allowance for impairment loss 25,799,852 24,653,797
Total R18,607,371 R17,599,838

In connection with the principal properties of the Company, there are no existing
mortgages, liens or encumbrances nor limitations in the usage or ownership.

There are no imminent acquisitions of property of significant amount that cannot be
funded either by the Company’s working capital or debt.
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The table below summarizes the significant lease agreements entered into by the
Company as a lessee.

Description Start Date Expiration Date 2018 Lease

Renewal Options

Payments
(in ‘000)
Plants, 01.01.2016 01.01.2041 971,121  The contracts may be renewed
Terminals, or extended upon the mutual
Ports agreement of the Parties.
HO Office 15.11.2014 15.12.2020 35,848 The lease may be renewed

upon the written agreement and
under such terms and conditions
as maybe acceptable to both

parties.

RMX lot 28.08.2008 26.08.2021 11,389 Renewable as may be mutually
agreed by the parties

Industrial 16.01.2013 24.04.2021 7,052 The contract may be renewed or

Warehouse extended upon the mutual
agreement of the Parties.

Others 15.03.2016 15.03.2022 52,512 The contract may be renewed or

(Housing, extended upon the mutual

Vehicles) agreement of the Parties.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is either a defendant or plaintiff in several civil, criminal and labor cases
primarily involving collection and claims for damages. Based on the representation of
management and the opinion of the Company’s external legal counsels, the resolution of
such cases will not result in any significant liability or loss of assets.

Pending material legal proceedings involving the Company are described in Annex A to
the Information Statement.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Except for the matters taken up during the last annual meeting of the stockholders
covered by the Company’s SEC Form 20-IS report, no matter was submitted to a vote of
security holders through solicitation of proxies or otherwise during the calendar year
covered by this report.

IV. COMPANY’S DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Please refer to the Information Statement for the discussion of the identity of each of the
Company’s Board of Directors and Executive Officers including their principal occupation
or employment, name and principal business of any organization by which such persons
are employed.

V.  MARKET FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(1) Market Information

HP! common shares are listed in the PSE. The high and low market prices of HPI shares

for each quarter of calendar year 2018, and that of the past two calendar years, as
reported by the PSE, are shown below:
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Table 7 — Market Prices of HPI Shares

Quarter Period CY 2018

High Low High High Low
January — March 10.84 9.40 15.48 | 15.02 | 13.80 | 13.78
April — June 9.90 7.02 | 13.32 | 13.20 | 15.10 | 15.00
July — September 7.70 6.78 | 1260 | 12.40 | 16.42 | 16.32
October — December 6.92 570 | 10.80 | 10.74 | 16.50 | 16.50

Source: Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

As of February 22, 2019, the closing price of the Company's common shares at the PSE
is P9.43 per share.

(2)  Stockholders
As of December 31, 2018, HP! has 6,452,099,144 common shares outstanding held by
5,327 stockholders. The list of the top twenty stockholders of the Company as recorded by

Stock Transfer Service, Inc., the Company’s stock transfer agent, is as follows:

Table 8 — Top Twenty (20) Stockholders

Rank Name Citizenship Shares (Sum) %

1 UNION CEMENT HOLDINGS FILIPINO 3,906,425,506 | 60.55%
CORPORATION

2 B. V HOLDERFIN DUTCH 1,168,450,996 | 18.11%

3 SUMITOMO OSAKA CEMENT JAPANESE 594,952,725 9.22%
CO., LTD.

4 CEMCO HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 456,689,560 7.08%

5 PCD NOMINEE CORP. (NON- FOREIGN 165,532,141 2.57%
FILIPINO)

6 PCD NOMINEE CORP. FILIPINO 128,881,217 2.00%
(FILIPINO)

7 ANTONIO M. DUMALIANG &/OR FILIPINO 922,363 0.01%
ROSALINDA S. DUMALIANG

8 LEONCIO TiU FILIPINO 705,000 0.01%

9 KAKUGARA AKIHIKO JAPANESE 559,580 0.01%

10 LUIS CO CHI KIAT FILIPINO 511,242 0.01%

11 LUIS ROLANDO GARCIA FILIPINO 419,578 0.01%
FADRIGO

12 JOAQUIN Q. TAN FILIPINO 380,000 0.00%

13 AMERICAN WIRE & CABLE CO., FILIPINO 290,933 0.00%
INC.

14 UNIVERSITY OF SANTO TOMAS FILIPINO 190,750 0.00%

15 RAMON C. CHAN FILIPINO 189,189 0.00%

16 FRANCIS L. ESCALER FILIPINO 186,935 0.00%




Citizenship Shares (Sum})

17 ANG GUAN PIAO CHINESE 184,030 0.00%

18 ISABELA CULTURAL FILIPINO 156,439 0.00%
CORPORATION

19 FRANCISCO C. EIZMENDI, JR. FILIPINO 149,459 0.00%

20 ROSALIA M. AMANDO FILIPINO 141,069 0.00%

Total 6,426,446,756 | 99.60%

(3) Dividends

The Company is authorized to pay cash or stock dividends, or a combination thereof,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors and/or its shareholders.
Dividends paid in the form of additional shares are subject to approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors, the SEC and the stockholders of at least two thirds of
the outstanding shares of the Company. Holders of outstanding shares on a dividend
record date for such shares will be entitled to the full dividend declared without regard
to any subsequent transfer of shares.

Other than the provisions in the loan covenants agreed to by the Company, there are
no other limitations for the Company to declare dividends to its common stock.

Cash dividends were declared in for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 as foliows:

Cash Dividend Per Share (PhP) £0.42 £0.98 £0.87
Amount Declared (PhP) P2 7 billion £6.3 billion £5.6 billion
Declaration Date 18-May-18 26-May-17 | 18-May-16
Record Date 15-June-2018 15-June-17 15-June-16

(4)  Sales of Unregistered Securities Within the Last Three (3) Years

There are no other securities sold for cash by the Company within the last three years that
were not registered under the SRC.

Vi CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(a)  Evaluation System to Measure Compliance with Manual of Corporate Governance

The Company has in place a robust internal control system which is an overall process
effected by the Board, management and other personnel designed to provide reasonable
assurance concerning: (i) the reliability of the financial reporting and statements; (ii)
compliance with laws and regulations; (iii) protection of assets and fraud prevention; (iv)
effectiveness and efficiency of processes. Additionally, in accordance with the Company's
Corporate Governance Manual, the Board is assisted by a Compliance Officer who is in
charge of evaluating and ensuring compliance by the Company, the Board of Directors
and officers with its Manual of Corporate Governance, Code of Corporate Governance for
Publicly-Listed Companies (the CG Code) and all relevant laws, rules and regulations.
The Compliance Officer is currently in the process of developing and establishing, subject
to approval of the Board, a monitoring and evaluation system complete with procedure
that fulfills the requirements of due process, to determine and measure compliance with
the CG Code.
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(b) Measures Being Undertaken to Fully Comply with Leading Practices on Good
Corporate Governance

The Board has established a Corporate Governance Committee which ensures that the
Board and the Company, as a whole, is sufficiently conversant and compliant with the
adopted leading practices in corporate governance. This committee is required to be
composed of at least three (3) independent directors and one (1) non-executive non-
independent director.

There has been no known deviation from the Company's Manual of Corporate
Governance.

(c) Plan to Improve Corporate Governance

The Board always seeks to improve corporate governance of the Company by improving
existing policies, developing and establishing new policies required by the Company's
Corporate Governance Manual and undertaking measures to implement such policies.

THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 (SEC FORM
17-A) WILL BE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST OF STOCKHOLDERS. YOUR
REQUEST MAY BE SENT DIRECTLY TO THE OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE
SECRETARY, AT THE 7TH FLOOR VENICE CORPORATE CENTER, 8 TURIN ST,
MCKINLEY TOWN CENTER, FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY, PHILIPPINES AND A
COPY WILL BE SENT TO YOU, FREE OF CHARGE.
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a.

Material Legal Proceedings

In Re: Petition for Interim Measure of Protection under Rule 5 of
the Special Rules of Court on Alternative Dispute Resolution;
Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. vs. Holcim Philippines, Inc.; SpP
Proc Case No. 377-ML; Branch 95 of the Regional Trial Court in
Mariveles, Bataan

In the Matter of an Arbitration under the 2015 Arbitration Rules of
the Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc.; Seasia Nectar Port
Services, Inc. vs. Holcim Philippines, Inc.; PDRCI Case No. 95-2018

Seasia Nectar Port Services, Inc. (“Seasia”) filed a petition for interim
measure of protection with the Regional Trial Court in Mariveles, Bataan
(“Bataan RTC") against the Company for the alleged purpose of securing
any judgment Seasia may secure from the arbitration case it will
supposedly file against the Company with the Philippine Dispute Resolution
Center, Inc. ("PDRCI"), questioning the Company’s termination of their
Port Services Agreement effective 22 September 2018. In an Order dated
22 November 2018, the Bataan RTC granted Seasia’s petition and issued a
writ of preliminary attachment of the Company’s properties.  The
Company’s motion for reconsideration is pending resolution.

On 14 December 2018, the Company filed a notice of arbitration with the
PDRCI for a declaration that the termination of the Port Services
Agreement is valid and the reversal of the Bataan RTC’s Order dated 22
November 2018,

In the Matter of Waste Pollution Control and kAbatement Case vs.
Holcim Philippines, Inc.; DENR-PAB Case No. NCR-00909-17

On 26 March 2018, the Company received the Pollution Adjudication
Board’s ("PAB’s”) Order dated March 8, 2018, directing the Company to
cease and desist from undertaking any activity and/or operating machines
or equipment generating pollution at its concrete batching plant in Bicutan,
Parafiaque City.

Following the Company’s completion of the poliution control program
approved by the Environmental Management Bureau, presentation of
satisfactory proof of the Company’s compliance to the wastewater
discharge parameters, and satisfaction of its environmental compliance
obligation under Republic Act No. 9275, the PAB issued an Order dated 9
October 2018 formally and permanently lifting its March 8, 2018 Order.



b.

Tax Cases (Parent Company)

The Company filed on June 24, 2014, a Complaint before the Regional
Trial Court of Malolos, Bulacan for the annuiment of the Notice of
Assessment of Business Tax on alleged discovered Unreported Cement
Sales dated February 24, 2014 issued by the Municipal Treasurer of the
Municipality, Bulacan; and, for the reversal of the denial of the Company’s
Protest letter dated April 23, 2014 questioning the 2014 Assessment
Notice.

While this action was pending, the Company received on October 26,
2015, a 2015 Assessment Notice which assessed the Company for alleged
deficiency LBT in the aggregate amount of £118.2 Million Pesos for the
years 2006 to 2015. Unlike the 2014 Assessment Notice which involves
the defendants’ assessment of LBT against the Company based on
purported undeclared gross sales or receipts for the years 2006 to 2012,
the 2015 Assessment Notice concerns the Treasurer’s assessment of LBT
against the Company based on purported undeclared gross sales or
receipts for the years 2006 to 2015. The Municipal Treasurer did not act
on the Company’s protest within the 60-day period provided in Section
195 of the LGC, and thus, on March 21, 2016, the Company filed a
Complaint/Appeal with the Bulacan RTC which sought the
cancellation/nullification of the 2015 Assessment Notice. The two cases
were consolidated before Branch 19 of the Regional Trial Court of Bulacan.
The Company has completed the presentation of its witnesses and
submitted a Formal Offer of Evidence. The consolidated cases are still
pending for resolution.

The Company received an Assessment from the Provincial Assessor and a
Notice of Realty Tax Delinquencies issued by the Provincial and Municipal
Treasurers on December 18, 2012, which demanded a total of 80.3 Million
Pesos in RPT taxes on Company’s machineries and equipment for the
years 2011 and 2012. The LBAA granted Company’s Motion to Post Bond
amounting to 80.3 Million Pesos. The appeal is still pending with the Local
Board Assessment Appeals ("LBAA").

On 23 April 2013, the Provincial Assessor of Bulacan issued a revised tax
declaration on machineries and equipment at the Company's Bulacan
Plant. Thereafter, on 30 June 2013, the Company received an assessment
for the years 2011 to 2013 and a computation of real property taxes for
the first and second quarters of 2013. The Company was assessed for
additional real property taxes in the total amount of 23.8 Million Pesos. On
13 September 2013, the Company received an assessment from the
Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, Bulacan for real property taxes dues
on its 1998 and Additional Line 2 Properties for the third quarter of 2013.
The said assessment also reiterated the previous assessments made for
2011 to 2012 and the first and second quarters of 2013. The Company’s
supplemental appeals, covering the 2013 1% and 2" Quarter RPT
Assessment and September 2013 Assessment with the Local Board of
Assessment Appeals are pending resolution.



On 10 March 2014, the Company received 71 tax declarations and 71
notices of assessment over its machineries for 2014 from the Municipal
Assessor of Norzagaray, Bulacan. Thereafter on 9 May 2014, the Company
received a notice of assessment from the Provincial Assessor of
Norzagaray, Bulacan. On 15 May 2014, the Company also received an
assessment from the Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, Bulacan requiring
it to pay deficiency real property taxes for the years 2011 to 2013 in the
total amount of 129 Million. On 9 July 2014, the Company’s supplemental
appeals with the LBAA covering these assessments are pending resolution.

At the suggestion of the Provincial Governor of Bulacan and the Municipal
Mayor of Norzagaray, Bulacan, the Company paid under protest on 9
December 2014 real property taxes in the total amount of 120 Million
Pesos, allocated as follows; (a) lands: 8.6 Million Pesos; (b) buildings: 3.3
Million Pesos; and (c) machineries: 107.9 Million Pesos. On 9 January
2015, the Company filed three protests with the Provincial Treasurer.
Following the Provincial Treasurer’s inaction over the Company’s protests,
the Company filed its appeal with the LBAA, raising the following issues:
(a) whether the Company is entitled to an annual depreciation allowance;
(b) what is the correct amount that should be credited in the Company’s
favor on account of its real property tax payments from 2011 until the
third quarter of 2013; and (c) whether it is correct to assess interest,
surcharges and penalties on the real property taxes that the Company
attempted to pay on time but which the local government officials refused
to accept in respect of real property taxes for the fourth quarter of 2013
and 2014. This appeal is pending resolution.

On 30 March 2015, the Company received an assessment for deficiency
real property taxes for 2015 in the amount of 49.3 Million Pesos. The
Company paid the assessed amount and filed a protest with the Provincial
Treasurer of Bulacan. Following the Provincial Treasurer’s failure to act on
the Company’s protest within the prescribed period, the Company filed its
appeal with the LBAA, which is pending resolution.

On 31 March 2016, the Company received from the Municipal Treasurer of
Norzagaray, Bulacan an assessment for deficiency real property taxes for
2016 in the total amount of 103 Million Pesos. The Company paid the said
amount and filed a protest with the Provincial Treasurer. Thereafter, on
13 May 2016, the Municipal Treasurer of Norzagaray, Bulacan issued a
revised computation of the Company’s liabilities for 2016 in the total
amount of 46.8 Million Pesos. The Company thus filed a supplement to its
earlier protest with the Provincial Treasurer. Following the Provincial
Treasurer’'s inaction over the Company’s protest, the Company filed an
appeal with the LBAA.



On March 29, 2017, the Company received an RPT assessment
corresponding to its lands, buildings and machineries located at the
Bulacan Plant for the year 2017. The 2017 RPT Assessment and RPT
payment amount to 41.1 Million Pesos. On August 17, 2017, the Company
filed an appeal with the LBAA in respect of its payment under protest of
the 2017 RPT Assessment in the amount of 41.1 Million Pesos. The LBAA
has not yet acted on this appeal.

On March 26, 2018, the Company received a computation of realty taxes
in respect of the RPT due on the Company’s Bulacan Plant for the year
2018 in the amount of 52 Million Pesos. On the same date, the Company
paid the RPT due on machineries under protest in the amount of 41.1
Million Pesos the Company also paid the RPT due on other properties in
the Company’s Bulacan Plant. The LBAA has not yet acted on this appeal.

On 28 December 2018, the Company paid under protest 40.5 Million
Pesos, representing the real property taxes assessed by on its properties
at its Bulacan Plant, citing, among others, the failure of the Municipal
Treasurer to exempt the anti-pollution devices, use the correct fair market
values of some of the equipment and machineries, and consider
depreciation allowance.

On 14 January 2019, the Company filed a position paper with the LBAA,
summarizing all the issues relating to the real property taxes assessed on
the Company’s properties in its Bulacan Plant from 2011 to 2018.

Tax Cases (Subsidiaries)

a.

HPMC received a termination letter from the BIR in May 2018 relative to
the payment of deficiency income tax, value-added tax, expanded
withholding tax, withholding tax on compensation and documentary stamp
tax for taxable year 2014 in an aggregate amount of 11.68 Million Pesos
inclusive of penalties and interest,

HPBSC received a final assessment notice from the BIR in February 2018
for alleged deficiency income tax, expanded withholding tax, withholding
tax on compensation and documentary stamp tax covering the taxable
year 2014 in the aggregate amount of 28.07 Million Pesos inclusive of
penalties and interest. The BIR issued its final decision on disputed
assessment in August 2018 at an aggregate amount of 3.01 Million Pesos.
The Company paid such amount on the same month.

SCCC received a final assessment notice from the BIR in July 2018 for
alleged deficiency income tax, value-added tax and expanded withholding
tax covering the taxable year 2015 in the aggregate amount of 2.04 Million
Pesos inclusive of penalties and interest. The BIR released its final decision
on disputed assessment on October 8, 2018 at an aggregate amount of
1.2 Million Pesos. The Company paid such amount on the same month.



SCCC received a preliminary assessment notice from the BIR in November
2016 for alleged deficiency income tax and value-added tax covering the
taxable year 2011 in the amount of 2.5 Million Pesos, inclusive of penalties
and interest. SCCC's protest remains pending with the BIR.

CACI received a final assessment notice from the BIR in December 2014
for alleged deficiency income tax and value-added tax covering the taxable
year 2011 in the amount of 2.5 Million Pesos, inclusive of penalties and
interest. CACI's protest remains pending with the BIR.

MGMC received a final assessment notice from the BIR Revenue Region in
September 2018 for alleged deficiency income tax and value-added tax
covering the taxable year 2015 in the amount of 16.52 Million Pesos,
inclusive of penalties and interest. MGMC submitted its reply to FAN
including the additional documents for reinvestigation/reconsideration last
October 2018 and December 2018, respectively. MGMC’s protest remains
pending with the BIR Revenue Region.

CHI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017. The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018.

ECLI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017. The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018.

HSSI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2015, 2016 and 2017.
The BIR has not made any determination of deficiency taxes as at
December 31, 2018,

LHPI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017. The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018.

MGMC has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2016. The BIR has
not made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018.

RRI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017. The BIR has not
made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018.

SWCVI has an ongoing tax audit for national taxes in 2017. The BIR has
not made any determination of deficiency taxes as at December 31, 2018.
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Holcim Philippines, Inc.
H 7th Floor Two World Square

Phone +63 2 459 3333
Fax +63 2 459 4444

O|Ci m McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio www.holcim.com

Taguig City 1634
Philippines

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Holcim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Group”) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statement including the schedules attached therein, for the year
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as Management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including
the schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the shareholders.

Navarro Amper & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the shareholders,
has audited the financial statements of the Group as at and for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 in accordance with Philippine Standards
on Auditing, and its reports to the shareholders, have expressed their opinion
on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such audit.

). R ot

Tomas I. Alcantara
Chairman

J william Stull
esident

T&susa Natividad L. Rojas
Chief Financial Officer

Signed this 22" day of February, 2019
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... INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC.

7th Floor, Two World Square

McKinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Holcim Philippines, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consalidated statements of cash flows for the
years then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including 2 summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (the Code
of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidénce
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016,
was audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
March 1, 2017.

Deloitte. OO O




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

We identified the following key audit matter:

Key Audit Matter

Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized in the consolidated
financial statements which is attributable to
the cement operations of one of the Group's
plants. Under PFRS, the Group is required to
annually test the goodwill for impairment.
This annual impairment test is significant to
our audit because the aggregated balance of
goodwill amounting to P2.64 billion is
material to the consolidated financial
statements and represents 5.59% of the total
assets of the Group as at
December 31, 2018.

In addition, Management conducts annual
impairment tests to assess the recoverability
of the carrying values of goodwill. This annual
impairment test involves a number of key
sensitive judgments made in determining the
inputs used in the assessment process.

The Group’s disclosures about goodwill as at
December 31, 2018 are disclosed in Note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audi rform n nses th

QOur audit procedures focused on performing a
detailed understanding on the Management's
assessment process and challenging the key
sensitive judgments applied as follows:

We assessed and challenged the reasonableness
of the Group’s position on the possible
impairment of goodwill including consideration
of various factors such as historical business
performance, current vyear developments,
current risk evaluations, business plans, outicok,
revenue  potential and other market
considerations.

We ailso compared the projected revenues and
cash flows, margin growth rates and earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation ‘and
amortization to the historical performance of the
cash-generating unit (CGU), Management plans
and analysts’ reports on market outlook. We also
focused on the Company's disclosures about
those assumptions to which the outcome ¢f the
impairment test is most sensitive; specifically,
those that have the most significant effect on the

determination of the recoverable amount of
goodwill.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the SEC
Form 17-A for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s reéport,
and the SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2018, which are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover this other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or with our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statementis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a2 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lével
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always
detect &8 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respornsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation,

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consslidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SuBsy

()
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINAnCH, ARgeg

-~ Y T ————— oy
1% & Bzt om e gy e LI
Bdy Corrveniig W

Stesonnnic Kecorts aere 812 1

temise Diviatae

L POSITION
————
o ———____iOtES
{In Thousands)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Casts and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net 8 P 5,399,853 P 1,945,797
Inventories - net 9 4,005,445 3,439,049
Other current assets 1o 5,127,343 3,800,792
e 11 830,300 835,558
Totat Current Agsets 15,362,541 10,021,196
Hon-current Assets
Investments 12 4,249,699 4,468,357
Proparty, plant and equipment - net 13 18,607,371 17,599,838
Gondwilt 14 2,635,738 2,635,738
Intangible azsets - net 14 27,542 28,714
Deferred income tax assets - net 10 - 455,242
Retirement benefit asset 31 3,581,507 -
Other non-current assets 15 2,731,343 378,487
Total Hon-current Assets 31,833,300 25,566,376
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Loans payable 15 £9,125,849 $4,177,902
Trade and other payables 17 11,574,971 7,862,742
Income tax paysbie 321025 265,684
Total Current Liabilities 21,021,845 12,306,328
Hon-current Liabilies
Petirement benefit lability 3 - 845,154
Provision 20 70,947 81,342
Deferred income tax liabilities -~ net -39 830,288 -
Tota! Hon-current liabifites $01,235 926,496
__P21923080 13232824,
Shareholders' Equity
Capital stock 21 6,452,099 6,452,099
Additional paid-in capital 8,476,002 8,476,002
Other reserves 21 2,344 (1,430}
Reserves for remeasurement gain(loss) on
retirernent benefits - net seind £ 2,719,531 (350,987)
ined earnings 21 7,607:112 7,773,468
Equity attributable to equity holders of the 25,257,088 22,349,152
Parents Company
Hon-controtling interest 16,073 5,59
25,273,161 2,354, 74
ol it
o PO L £a7,196,241 P35,587,572

"
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HOLCIM PHILIPP! INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
LIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS angy OYHER w“pﬂﬁtm INCOME

cONSO sudited Figures for 3016

wWith Comparative
-~ .. forthoYoarsEndedDecember3y
'_____....p-a—-"'"_
Notes 2018 2017 2016
w w e
{in Thousands, Except Per Share Amourits)
. P35,623,113 $34,740,761 P40,33%
m 2 850,205 28494432 75804 833
eross Profit v 5,772,908 6,246,339 11,831,271
General and administrative expenses 23 (1,235,721} (1,260,864} (1,753,005)
ceting sat 24 (815,597) {911,505) {591,496}
and other financial Income 8,29 33,128 21,707 19,529
Intere N 124,344 278,166 162 480
Otners-net. 2B St - SR
W £ mem‘m 3:551:25” 4%5 91526:945
W 30 1,0@5@85 1,576,617 2,379,833
proftt for the Year 2,545,393 2,689,798 8,847,113
profit for the year attributable to:
holders of the parent company 2,544,411 2,688,485 6,845,856
: 982 1,313 1,257

__Non-controlling Interest
o &545‘393 P 2‘88?9‘796 P 6‘847‘113

omercmmmhensiveimmemmbe
Wmmmm(ﬂmuem

period:
Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement -
benefits 31 4,401,952 (387,421) 79,852
Income tax effect . {1,320,586) 116,226 {23,956}
3,081,366 {271,195) 55,896
Other reserves 3,774 4402 3,774
Net other comprehensive Income not to
be reciassified to profit or loss in subsequent
- 3,085,140 256,793) 59,670

hensive Income. __ p5,630,533 P 2,423,005 P 6,906,783

Total
Totat comprehensive income for the yéar attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company ' 5,618,703 2421878 §,905,492
Non-controffing interest 11,830 1,127 1,288
P 5 630,532 P 2‘4235095 P 6‘906‘?83

Total mreheam Income

Basic/ Diluted Earnings Per Common Share of
Net Income Attributed to Equity

Holders of the Parent Company

Sex Notes 1o Consoidated Financlat Stetements.

p 0,39 P 0.42 P06
MR ‘_W: .
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HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
with Corriparative Audited Figures for 2016

For the Years Ended Decémber 31

Notes 2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Income before income tax P 3,551,258 P4,266,415 P 9,626,945
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 13,14 1,173,199 1,373,405 1,326,175
Interest and financing charges 27 327,804 107,428 41,754
Retirement benefit expense 31 106,105 76,634 85,307
Other fosses - net 20,28 22,472 49,464 &
Allowance (reversal) for inventory obsolescence 10 17,503 19,954 (132,833)
Provigion for doubtful accounts 9 9,260 17,579 4,391
Unrealized foreign exchange (gains) losses - net 5,961 5,202 (8,104)
Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and
equipment i3 3,610 (115,760) 5,130
Provision for fully mined-out assets 20 - 73,327 -
Interest and other financial income 8,29 {33,128) (21,707) {19,529)
Share in undistributed earnings of an associate 12 (122,898} {143,615) {86,761)
Income before working capital changes 5,061,146 5,708,326 10,842,275
Decrease (Increase) in:
Trade and other receivables {581,415) (117,041) 59,923
Inventories {1,354,447) {389,973) 638,128
Qther current assets 48,834 (164,693} 45,681
Increase (Decrease) In trade and other payables 3,141,683 1,465,430 {177,699)
Cash generated from operations 6,315,801 6,502,049 11,408,308
Defined benefit contributions 31 {70,059) {138,854) (80,201)
Settleménts on defined benefit 3 (1,950) (4,083} -
Income taxes paid (1,088,495) (1,940,245}  (3,095,540)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,155,287 4,418,867 8,232,567
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additions to property and equipment 13 {1,926,729) (2,584,780) (1,879,751}
Increase in other non-current assets 15 {2,408,639) (18,469) {147,945)
proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment 28 61,259 180,841 101,606
Dividends received 29 341,556 24,705 -
Interest received 8 25,868 20,910 19,529
Net cash used in investing activities {3,906,685) {2,376,793) {2,006,561)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
payments of;
Cash dividends 21 {2,712,296) (6,315,149) (5,618,916}
Loan:payable i6 {8,335,826) (2,322,000} {2,999,831)
Interest and financing charges 27 (27,495) {84,833) {17,447)
Proceeds from avaiiment of loans 16 13,283,676 6,500,000 2,000,000
Net cash generated from {used In) finanding activities 2,208,059 (2,221.982)  (6,636.194)
Effects of Exchange Rate Changes (2,615} 589 (4,894)
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,454,056 {179,319) {415,082)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 1,845,797 2,125,116 2,540,188
Cash ” Equivalents, End P 5,399,85§ P1,945,797 P 2125116

Ko Notes to




HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Holcim Philippines, Inc. (HPI or the “Parent Company”) and all of its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), except Wellborne International Group Limited
(WEB), were incorporated In the Philippines and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The Parent Company is primarily
engaged in the manufacture, sale and distribution of cement and cementitious
products.

The plant sites of the Parent Company are in Davao City and in the provinces of
La Union and Bulacan while the plant sites of Mabinl Grinding Mill Corporation and
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation are in the provinces of Batangas and
Misamis Oriental, respectively. The registered office address and principal place of
business of the Parent Company is at 7th Floor, Two World Square McKinley: Hill,
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

The Parent Company is majority-owned by Union Cement Holdings Corporation
(UCHC), a company incorporated in the Philippines. The ultimate parent company of
the Group is Lafarge Holcim Limited.

The Parent Company’s shares of stocks were listed in the Philippines Stocks Exchange
on June 17, 1996. Total shares registered and outstanding as at December 31, 2018
and 2017 is 6.5 billion.

Status of Operations

Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. (ECLI) was incorporated and registered with the SEC on
August 9, 2012, On January 1, 2013, ECLI started its full operation servicing the
distribution, transport and placing of concrete, as well as transport of cement .and
specialty products. On November 29, 2018, the Board of Directors (BOD) of HPI
approved the closure and dissolution of ECLI. ECLI is in the process of comptleting
regulatory requirements for its eventual dissolution.

HUBB Stores and Services, Inc. (HSSI) incurred losses in 2018 and 2017 amounting to
P71.7 million and P69.5 million, respectively, resulting to accumulated deficit of
P156.6 million and P91.6 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
However, Management has taken appropriate actions by implementing strategies that
will assist in improving the results of operations and maintaining financial stability.
Management is currently reviewing its current business model to improve HSSI's
results of operations going forward. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

2. FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
PRESENTATION

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), which includes all applicable
PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), Philippine
Interpretations Committee (PIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) as
approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and Board of
Accountancy (BOA) and adopted by the SEC,

IR
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Basis of Preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for:

+ financial instruments measured at amortized cost;

¢« financial instruments which are valued at fair value;

e derivative liabilities measured at fair value;

o inventories at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV); and

¢ defined benefit asset or obligation recognized as the net total of the fair valie of
plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

s provisions measured at its best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation, with discounting if the effect of time value of money is
material.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of PFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of PAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in PAS 2 or
value in use in PAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are gobservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical 3ssets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

« Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. All amounts are
rounded in the nearest thousand peses, except when otherwise indicated.

e [
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COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP

Details of the Parent Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
as follows:

Ownership and Voting
Interest
2018 2017
Held by HPI
WEB @) 100.00% 100.00%
Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. (ECLI) © 100.00% 100.00%
Holcim Philippines Business Services Center, Inc.

(HPBSCI) 100.00% 100.080%
Hubb Stores and Services, Inc. (HSSI) 100.00% 100.00%
Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation (HPMC) 99.62% 99.62%
Held by WEB
Mabini Grinding Mill Corporation (MGMC) 100.00% 100.00%
Held by HPMC
Alsons Construction Chemicals, Inc. {Alchem) ® 99.62% 99.62%
Bulkcem Philippines, Inc. (Bulkcem) 99.62% 99.62%
Calamba Aggregates Co., Inc. (CACD 99.62% 99,62%

(a) A company incorporated in British Virgin Islands
(b) Ceased commercial operations effective December 31, 2013
{c) Ceased commercial operations effective December 31, 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standard Effective in 2018

The Group adopted all accounting standards and interpretations as at
December 31, 2018. The new and revised accounting standards and interpretations
that have been published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
approved by the FRSC in the Philippines, were assessed to be applicable to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Amendments to PFRS 2, Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 includes:

a. The amendment added guidance that introduces accounting requirements for
cash-settled share-based payments that follows the same approach as used for
equity-settled share-based payments.

b. The amendment has introduced an exception into PFRS 2 so that a share-based
payment where the entity settles the share-based payment arrangement net is
classified as equity-settied in its entirety provided the share-based payment would
have been classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement
feature.

¢c. The amendment has introduced the following clarifications:

»  On modifications, the original liability recognized in respect of the cash-settled
share-based payment is derecognized and the equity-settled share-based
payment is recognized at the modification date fair value to the extent
services have been rendered up to the modification date.

« Any difference between the carrying amount of the tiability as at the
modification date and the amount recognized in equity at the same date would
be recognized in profit and loss immediately.

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendments did
not have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Company does not have any cash-settied share-based payment {ransactions that

contain a performance condition.
’ ‘ 1
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Amendments to PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments with PFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts

The amendments provide two options for entities that issue insurance contracts within
the scope of PFRS 4:

« an option that permits entities to reclassify, from profit or loss to other
comprehensive income (OCl), some of the income or expenses arising from
designated financial assets; this is the so-called overlay approach; and '

o an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 for entities whose
predominant activity is issuing contracts within the scope of PFRS 4; this is the
so-called deferral approach,

The application of both approaches is optional and an entity is permitted to stop
applying them before the new insurance contracts standard is applied.

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendments did
not have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Group does not have any insurance contracts within the scope of PFRS 4.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)

The Group has applied PFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) and the related
consequential amendments to other PFRS Standards.

The Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective restatemaent,
Consequently, The Group did not restate comparatives in respect of the classification
and measurement of financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and general
hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 introduced new requirements for:
a) classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities;

b) impairment of financial assets; and
c) general hedge accounting.

(a) Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of PFRS 9 are required to be
measured subsequently at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically:

« debt instruments that are held within a business mode! whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured subsequently at amortized cost;

» debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income {(FVTOCI);

« all other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

VSRR
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Despite the aforegoing, the Company may make the following irrevocable
election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

« the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination in other comprehensive
income; and;

» the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accournting mismatch.

This standard also contains requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and derecognition requirements, Specifically, PFRS 9 requires that
changes in the fair value of the financial liability attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability be presented in other comprehensive income {OCI), unless the
recognition of the effects of changes In the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, b
ut are instead transferred to retained earnings when the financial Hability is
derecognized,

The management of the Group assessed that the application of this phase of PFRS 9
did not have a significant impact on its statement of financial position as its current
financial assets carried at fair value are not significant.

Loans as well as trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are
expected to give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and
interest. Thus, the Group expects that these are continuously to be measured at
amortized cost under PFRS 9. However, the Group analyzes the coptractual cash fiow
characteristics of those instruments in detail before concluding whether all those
instruments meet the criteria for amortized cost measurement under PFRS 9.

{b) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment model under this standard reflects expected credit losses (ECL), as
opposed to Incurred credit losses under PAS 39. Under the impairment approach of ‘this
standard, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognized. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses should be updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

In particular, PFRS 9 requires the Group to measure the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial insttument has increased significantly since initial recognition, or if the
financial instrument is a ‘purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.
However, If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition (except for a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset),
the Group is required to measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-months ECL. PFRS 9 also requires a simplified approach for measuring
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets and lease recelvables in certain circumstances.

The Group assessed that the application of this phage of PFRS 9 did not have a significant
impact on its equity due to the nature of its loans and recelvables and they have
performed a more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable and ‘supportable
information, including forward-looking elements to determine the extent of the impact.
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{¢) Generai hetlge accounting

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge
accounting. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify
for hedging Instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about the
Group's risk mariagement activities have also been introduced,

The Group assessed that the application of this phase of PFRS 9 did not have a significant
impact as it does not apply hedge accounting on any existing hedge relationships.

PFRS 15, Revenue fromr Contracts with Customers

The standard combines, enhances, and réplaces spetific guidance on recognizing revenue
with a single standard. An entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods of services.

1t defines a new five-step model to recognize revenus from custormer contracts.

s Identify the contract(s) with a customer

« ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

+ Determine the transaction price

» Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

+ Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performarice obligation.

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the ameéndments did not
have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group
has only one distinct performance obligation and satisfies it at a point in time, which is to
deliver the promised cement goods or cementitious products.

Amernidments to PFRS 15, Clarifications to PFRS 15

The amendments in the standard addresses three topics namely identifying performance
obligations; principal versus. agent considerations, and licensing and provide some
transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

« Added a clarification that the objective of the assessment of & promise to transfer
goods or services to a customer is to determine whether the nature of the promise;
within the context of the contract, is to transfer each of those goods or services
individually or, instead, to transfer a2 combined item or items to which the promised
goods or services are inputs.

+ Clarification on how to assess control in in determining whether a party providing
goods or services is & principal or an adgent

o Clarification on when an entity’s activities significantly affect the intellectual property
by amending the application guidance.

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendments did not
have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group
has only one distinct performance obligation and satisfies it at a point in time, which is to
deliver the promised cement goods or cementitious products.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
The annual improvements address the following issues:

Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments include the deletion of short-term exemptions stated in the appendix
of PFRS 1; because they have now gerved their intended purpose.

Amendments to PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that the election to measureé at fair value through profit or
loss an investment in an associate or a joint.venture that is held by an entity that is a
venture capital organization, or other gualifying entity; is avallable for each investment.
in an associate or joint yenture on an investment—by—ihves‘tment basls, upon initial
recognition.

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements as the Group s neither a first time adopter of PFRS nor a venture
capital organization. Furthermore, the Group does not have any associate or joint
venture that is an investment-entity.

philippine Interpretation IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes 8@
non-fonetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the paymeft or receipt of
advance consideration pefore the entity recognizes the related asset, expense of
income. It does not apply when an entity measures the related asset, expense or
income on injtial recognition at the fair value of the consideration received or paid at a
date other than the date of Initial recognition of the non-monetary & sef or
non=monetary liability.

The management of the Group assessed that the application of the amendments did
not have an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial staterents. This is because
the Group already accounts for the transactions involving the payment or receipt of
advance consideration in & foreign gurrency in a way that is consistent with the
amendments.

New Accounting Standard Effective after the Reporting period Ended
pecember 31, 2018

PFRS 16, Leases

This standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize
assets and liabilities for all leases uniess the lease term is 12 months or 1ess

(i.e. short-term lease) or the underlying asset has a low value (i.e. lease of low-value
assets).

A coftract Is, or contains, a {ease if it conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has poth the right to direct the identified asset’s use and to obtain
substantially all the -economic benefits from that use. An asset is typically identified by
being explicitly specified in a contract, but an asset can also be identified by being

implicitly specified at the time it is made available for use by the customer.

Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with PFRS 16's approach to
lassor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, BAS 17,

The standard Iis effective for annual reporting periods beginning on oF after
January 1, 2019.

The management of the Group has assessed the impact of the new standard and will
recognize corresponding right of use asset and lease liability with corresponding lease
expense and iriterest.




PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
The amendments include:

Changes regarding symmetric prepayment options

Under the amendments; the sign of the prepayment amount is not relevant, i.e.
depending on the interest rate prevailing at the time of termination, a payment may
also be made in favor of the contracting party effecting the early repayment.
The calculation of this compensation payment must be the same for both the case of
an early repayment penalty and the case of an early repayment gain.

Clarification regarding the modification of financial liabilities

The ameridments contain a clarification regarding the accounting for a modification or
exchange of a financial liability measured at amortized cost that does not result in the
derecognition of the financial lability. An entity recognizes any adjustment to the
amortized cost of the financial liability arising from a modification or exchange In profit
or loss at the date of the modification or exchange. A retrospective change of the
accounting treatment may therefore become necessary if in the past the effective
interest rate was adjusted and not the amortized cost amount.

The amendments are effective for periods ‘beginning on or after January 1, 2019,
Eartier application is permitted.

The management of the Group does not anticipate that the amendments will have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have any modification of financial liability measured at amortized cost.

PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarify that an entity applies PFRS 9 including its impairment
requirements, to long-term interests in an assoclate or joint venture that form part of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method 5
not applied. ‘
The amendment is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted.

The management of the Group does not anticipate that the amendmients will have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Group does not have
jong-term interests in associates or joint ventures.

New Accounting Standards Effective After the Reporting Period Ended
December 31, 2018 - Adopted by FRSC but pending publication by the HOA

The Group will adopt the following once it becomes effective.

1FRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

This interpretation applies in determining the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under PAS 12, Iacome Taxes.

An entity has to consider whether it is probable that the relevant authority will accept
each tax treatment; or group of tax treatments, that it used or plans to use in its
income tax filing.

« If the entity concludes that it is probable that a particular tax treatment is
accepted, the entity has to determine taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits or tax rates consistently with the tax
treatment included in its income tax filings.

. If the entity concludes that it is not probable that a particalar tax treatment is
accepted, the entity has to use the most likely amount or the expected value of
the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The decision should be based ohn
which method provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty.




An entity has to reassess its judgements and estimates if facts and gircumstances
change.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning oh or after
January 1, 2019, Earlier application is permitted,

The management of the Group is still evaluating the impact of the new interpretation
on the Company’s determination of taxable profit/loss, untised tax losses, unused tax
credit and tax rate.

Amendments to PAS 19, Plan Amendment, Curtaliment or Sattlement
The amendments in Plan Amendment, Curtaiiment or Settlement are:

. If a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is now mandatory that
the current service cost and the net interest for the period after the
remeasurement are determined using the assumptions used for the
remeasurement.

. 1In addition, amendments have peen included to clarify the effect of a plan
amendment, curtailment or settiement on the requirements regarding the asset
ceiling.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted.

The management of the Group is still evaluating the impact of the amendments.
Annual Improvements to PERSS 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to PFRS 3 and PFRS 11, previously held interest in a joint operation

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify that when an eritity obtains control of a business
that is a joint operation, it remeasures. previously held interests in that business.
The amendments to PFRS 11 dlarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a
pusiness that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously neld
interests in that business.

Amendments to PAS 12, Income tax consequences of payments -on financial
instruments classified as equity

The amendments clarify that the requirements in. the former paragraph 528
{to recognize the income tax consequences of dividends where the tranisactions or
events that generated distributable profits are recognized) apply to all income tax
consequences of dividends by moving the paragraph away from paragraph 52A that
only deals with situations where there are different tax rates for distributed and
undistributed profits.

Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalization rate -on
general borrowings.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019
Earlier application is permitted.

The management of the Group is still evaluating the impact of the amendments.

PERS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disciosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of
PFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully
represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of - financial
statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's finandial
position, financial performance and cash flows.




The key principles in PFERS 17 are that an entity:

« - identifies as insurance contracts those contracts under which the entity accepts
significant insurance fisk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uhcertain future event (the insured
event) adversely affects the policyholder;

« separates specified embedded derivatives, distinct investment components and
distinct performance obligations from the insurance contracts; '

« divides the contracts into groups that it will recognize and measure;
« recognizes and measures groups of insurance contratts at:

» @ risk-adjusted present value of the future cash flows (the fulfilment cash
flows) that incorporates all of the available information about the fulfilment
cash flows in & way that is consistent with observable market information;
plus (if this value is a liability) or minus (if this value is an agset);

« an amount representing the unearned profit in the group of contracts
(the contractual service margin);

o recognizes the profit from a group of insurance contracts over the period the entity
provides insurance cover, and as the entity is released from risk, If a group of
contracts is or becomes {oss-inaking, an entity recognizes the loss immediately;

« presents separately insurance revenue (that excludes the receipt of any
investment component), insurance service expenses (that excludes the repayment
of any investment components) and insurance finance income or expenses; and

. discloses information to enable users of financial statements to assess the effect
that contracts within the scope of PFRS 17 have on the financial pcsmnn,fﬂnantia!
performance and- cash flows of an entity. '

PFRS 17 includes an optional simplified measurement approach, -or premiurm allocation
approach, for simpler insurance contracts.

The standard is effective for periods beginning’ on or after January 1, 2021.
Earlier application is permitted.

The _management of the Group does not anticipate that the new standard will have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does
not have insurance contracts.

Amendments to PAS 1 and PAS 8, Definition of Material
The amendments relate to a revised definition of 'material’:

information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.

Three new aspects of the new definition include (1) obscuring; {ii) could reasonably be
expected to influence; and (i) primary users.

The amendments stress especially five ways material information can be obscured:

« If the language regarding & material item, transaction or other event is vague or
unclear;

« if information regarding a material item, transaction or pther event is 'scattered in
different places in the financial staternents;

« if dissimilar items, transactions or other events are indppropriately aggregated;

s If similar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately disaggregated;
and

« if material information is hidden by immaterial information to the extent that it
becomes unciear what information is material.
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The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020.
Eariier application is permitted.

The management of the Group i still evaluating the impact of the new standard.

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definitlon of Business
The amendments are to:
« clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets

must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute t6 the ability to create outputs;

+ narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and
services provided to customers and by removing the reference to an ability to
reduce costs;

« add guidance and illustrative exampies fto help entities assess whether a
substantive process has been acquired;

« remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs; and

+« add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whethet
an acquired set of activities and assets is not & business.

The amendments are effective for business.combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after

January 1, 2020 and to asset ‘acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that
period:

The management of the Group is still evaluating the impact of the new standard.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Parent Company and all subsidiaries it controls. Control is achieved when the Parent
Company has power over the investee, is exposed, of has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.

The Parent Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of these three elements
of control. When the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

The Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether or not the Parent Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give

it power, including:

o the size of the Parent Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

+ potential voting rights held by the parent Company, other vote holders or other
parties;

« rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent Company has,
or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time

that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.




Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company gbtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent Company joses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or joss -and other
comprehensive income from the date the Parent Company gains control until the date
when the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries are
attributed to the owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controliing interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Parent
Company and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having deficit.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year
as the Parent Company, using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized gains and losses are eliminated.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Parent Company.

When the Group joses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets {including goodwiil), and fiabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(l.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
speciﬂed/permitted by applicable PFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under PFRS 9, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investmenit in an associate or a joint venture.

Business Combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group,; liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognized. in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the fiabilities agsumed are
recognized at their fair value except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee
penefit arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with PAS 12,
Income Taxes and PAS 19, Employee Benefits, respectively;

« liabilities and equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree or shar -based payment arrangement of the Group entered into 1o
replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with PFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

» assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance ‘with
PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.




Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any) is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proporticnate
share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made onh a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interest are measured at fair value or, when applicabie, on the basis
specified in another PFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in 2 business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included
as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the centingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the measurement period (which cannot exceed one year
from acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the
excess of the cost of business combination over the interest in the net fair value of the
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, Subsequently, goodwill
arising on an acquisition of a business is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognized directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the amount attributable to goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Current Versus Noncurrent Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on

current or noncurrent classification. An asset is current if:

s Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal
operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected to be realized within tweive months after the reporting period, or

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
13
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All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:

e It is expected to be settied in the normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis duetobe settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classifled as noncurrent assets and labilities,
respectively.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group measures financial instruments such as derivatives and financial assets at
fair value through profit or Loss at each palance sheet date.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the jowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
jiabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets or liability and
the level of the fair value nierarchy.

Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments that are measured at fair value are
summarized in Notes 12 (Investments) and 17 (Trade and other payables}.

Financial Assets

Accounting policies applied from January 1, 2018

Initial regognition

Financial assets are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements when
the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are recognized initially at falr value.

Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the Group's consolidated
financial assets, except for investments classified at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at FVTPL are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.




Classification and Subsequent Measurement

All regular way purchases of sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the
basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as follows:

. financial assets that are held within 2 business model whose objective is to coliect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI}),
are subsequently measured at amortized cost;

. financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have
contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

|

'{ N « all other financial assets managed on their fair value basis and equity instruments
| ! are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

i

However, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

y « the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
‘ equity investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which PFRS 3 applies, In
OCl; and

« financial assets that are held within a2 business model whose objective is both to
collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have
contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCL).

Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

—~ The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset Is
C measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumuiative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand,
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset

pefore adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial instruments
other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial asseis that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subseguently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized
cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no loenger
credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are:
« assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; orfand

« assets that are held in a business model sther than h&td‘i‘:o collect contractuat cash
flows or held to collect and sell; or

. assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables,
contract assets, as well as on loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
No impairment loss is recognized for investments in equity instruments, The amourt
of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an ampunt equal to?

« 12-month ECL, Le. lifetime ECL that result from those default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,
{referred to as Stage 1); or

+  full lifetime ECL, Le. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over
the life of the financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial ‘recognition.
For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses.
These are measured as the present vaiue of the difference between the cash flows due
to the Company under the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive arising from the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios, discounted at
the asset’s effective interest rate, ‘

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, oron a collective basis for portfolios
of loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss
allowance is based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using the
asset’s original EIR, regardiess of whether it is measured on an individual basis or @
collective basis.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables, arnounts due from
customers under construction contracts and lease receivables. The expected credit
insses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of

money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12 month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognized Is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 month
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.




Default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default
is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss
allowarice is based on {2-month or lifetime ECL, as default is 2 component of the
probability of default (PD) which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the
identification of a significant increase it credit risk.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Group takes
into account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed
depends on the type of the asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative
indicator used is the breach of covenants, which is not relavant for retail lending.
Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-paymernt on another
obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Group uses @
yvariety of sources of information to assess default which are either developed
internally or obtained from external sources.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a sighificant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group will ineasure the loss
alfowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on 2 financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the Hisk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the. remaining
maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for
the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument
was first recognized. in making this assessment, the Group considers  both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort, based on the Group's historical experience and expert credit assessment
including forward-looking information.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the
asset’s cash flows expire of when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. 1f the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have fo pay. If the
Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of @ financial asset in its entirely, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain/loss that had been recognized in OCl and accumulated in equity is
recognized in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as
measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in OCL is
fiot subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.




On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety; the Company allocates
the previous carrying amourit of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized
and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognized in OCI is
recognized in profit or loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognized in OCI is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no
longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This does not
apply for equity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative
gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset either in its entirety or a portion of it. This is the case
when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off, A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Accounting policies applied prior to January. 1, 2018

Initial fon

Financial assets are recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements when the
Group becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the Anstrument.

Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included In the
initial measurement of the Group’s financial assets, except for investments classified at

Classificat] bseque

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at
FVTPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS) finanicial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the %ime of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on & trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frarme established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets consist of AFS financial assets and loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted In an active market, After initial recognition, loans and
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment and are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater
than twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period, The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the debt instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition, »

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial,

The Group’s financial assets classified under this category include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and due from related parties.
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AFS financiai assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or
are not classified as loans and receivables, HTM investments or financial assets at
FVTPL. :

Listed redeemable notes held by the Group that are traded in an active market are
classified as AFS and are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The Group also has investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active
market but that are also classified as AFS financial assets and stated at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates, interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognized in profit or loss, Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumiulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevaliling at the
end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognized
in profit or loss are determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset.
Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS assets are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose it within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there Is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the investment have been affected.

bi vidence airment

For equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment,

For all financlal assets carried at amortized cost, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

s significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter party; or

« breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organization; or

« the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficuities; or

e« the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider; or ‘
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» observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed naot to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

Financial assets carried at amortiz 14

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of financial assets carried at amortized cost is reduced directly by
the impairment loss, with the exception of trade receivables wherein the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When trade receivables
are considered uncollectible, these are written off against the aliowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed either directly
or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal shall be recognized in the profit or loss.

AFS financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset s considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses recognized on an investment in unlisted equity instrument classified
as AFS are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized on an
investment in unquoted equity instrument classified as AFS are recognized in profit or
loss.

In a subsequent period, if the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be
reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in profit
or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income.




Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially ail the
risk and rewards of ownership of the asset to ancther party. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to contro! the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity is
recognized in profit or loss,

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g., when the Group
retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognized
and any cumulative gain or loss aliocated to it that had been recognized in OCI is
recognized in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that is no
longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents excludes
any restricted cash (presented as part of “Other noncurrent assets”) that is not
avaifable for use by the Group and therefore is not considered highly liquid, such as
cash set aside to cover rehabilitation obligations.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value {(NRV}.
Costs incurred in bringing each inventory to its present location and conditions are
accounted for as follows:

Finished goods and goods in - determined using the moving average

process method; cost includes direct materials,
direct labor and a proportion of
manufacturing overhead costs.

Raw materials, fuel, spare parts

and others determined using the moving average

method; cost includes purchase price and
other costs incurred in bringing these
inventories to their present location or
condition.

The NRV of finished goods and goods in process inventories is the selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to complete the product and make
the sale. The NRV of raw materials, fuel and spare parts and other inventories is the
current replacement cost.
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When the net realizable value of the inventories is lower than the cost, the Company
provides for an aliowance for the decline in the value of the inventory and recognizes
the write-down as an expense in profit or loss. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable value,
is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as
an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets mainly Include advances to suppliers and prepaid expenses.
These are amounts paid in advance for goods or services that are yet to be delivered
and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group within the
noreal operating cycle or within 12 months from the balance sheet date. They are
initially measured at the amount paid in advance by the Group for the purchase of
goods and services and are subsequently decreased by the amount of expense
incurred.

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Parent Company has significant influgnce.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but has no control or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to- those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries. ‘

The Parent Company’s investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the jnvestments in associates are initially
recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investments is adjusted to recognize
¢hanges in the Parent Company's share of net assets of the associates since the
acquisition date. Any goodwill relating to an associate Is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for
impairment.

The consolidated statement of income reflects the Parent Company’s share of the
results of operations of the associates. Any change in OCI of the associate is presented
as part of the Parent Company’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change
recognized directly in the equity of the associates, the Parent Company récognizes its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Parent
Company and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associates.

The aggregate of the Parent Company's share of profit or loss of the associates is
shown on the face of the tonsolidated statement of income and represents profit or
loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associates.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Parent Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Parent Company.

After application of the equity method, the parent Company determines whether it is
necessary to recognize an additional impairment loss on its investments in the
associates. The Parent Company determines at each reporting date whether thers is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Parent Company calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and
recognizes the loss as part of the “Share in undistributed earnings of an associate”
under “Others - net” in the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Parent Company measures
and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.




Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises:

» its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates;

» any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
Management; and

e the initial estimate of the future costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs
either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item
during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during
that period.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation, and impairment losses. Subsequent
expenditures relating to an item of property, plant and equipment that have already
been recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent
expenditures are recognized as expenses in the period in which those are incurred.

Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment
when the Group expects to use them during more than one period. Similarly, if the
spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment, these are accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation Is computed on the straight-line method based on the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Building and installations 20 to 40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 to 30 years
Furniture, vehicles and tools 3 to 10 years

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative
purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
at the time the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recegnized in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents plant and properties under construction or
development and is stated at cost. This includes costs of construction, plant and
equipment, borrowing costs directly attributable to such assets during the construction
period and other direct costs. Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such
time when the relevant assets are substantially completed and available for its
intended use.
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Intangible Assets — Software

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subseguent to initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and the amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any
indication that any of its tangible and intangible assets may have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet availabie for
use are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss Is recognized as an expense,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at the end of each
reporting period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments
Accounting policies applied from January 1, 2018

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset
or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Group or a contract that will or may
be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for
which the Group is or may be obliged te deliver a variable number of its own equity
instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or may be settled other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) held for
trading, or (ii}) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

s it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;
or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolic of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

» it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial hability held for trading or contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

» the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and PFRS S permits the entire hybrid contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain/loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in profit or loss.

However, for non-derivative financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in OCI, unless the recoghnition of
the effects of changes In the liabllity’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair
value of liability is recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in OCI are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to retained earnings upon
derecognition of the financial liability.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL all gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss.
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In making the determination of whether recognizing changes in the liability’s credit
risk in OCI will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Group
assesses whether it expects that the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk will
be offset in profit or loss by a change in the fair value of another financial instrument
measured at FVTPL. This determination is made at initial recognition.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant pericd. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statements of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

A right to offset must be available today rather being contingent on a future event and
must be exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or barkruptcy.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognized by the Group when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial iability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Capital stock

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds,
net of tax.

Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as liabllity in the
Group's consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
declared by the Group’s Board of Directors (BOD).

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent accumulated profit earned by the Group after deducting
dividends declared. Retained earnings may also include effect of changes in accounting

policy as may be required by the standard’s transitional provisions.

Additional Paid-in Capital

When the shares are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the
par value is credited to “Additional pald-in capital” account. Direct costs incurred
related to equity issuance are chargeable to “Additional paid-in capital” account.
If additional paid-in capital is not sufficient, the excess is charged against retained

~garnings.




Accounting policies applied prior to January 1, 2018

ificati requi »
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial Liabilities or as equity v'l:n
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and definitions of a
financial liability and equity instrument.

Financial liabiliti
Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are included
in the initial measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities, except for debt
instruments classified at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

Since the Group does not have financial liabilities classified at ‘FVTPL, all financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized: cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments including alt fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts through
the expected life of the financial liability, or a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
statements of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

A right to offset must be available today rather being contingent on a future event and
must be exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognized by the Group when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange
forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency swaps. The use pf financial
derivatives is governed by the Group’s. policies approved by the Board of Directors,
which provide written principles on the use of financial derivatives.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period. All derivatives are carried as assets if the fair value is positive,
otherwise derivatives are carried as liabilities, The resulting -gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as.a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

All derivatives are carried as assets if the fair value is positive, otherwise derivatives
are carried as liabilities.

Derivatives embedded in rion-derivative host contracts are freated 'as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Provisions,; Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisi

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation; either legal or
constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. ‘

The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of each reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation; its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an agget if itis
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the raceivable
can be measured reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

If it is no longer probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, the provision should be reversed.

Onerous contracts

present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured 8s
provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.




Share-based Payments

ased paymen

Equity-settied share-based payments to employees and others providing sirnilar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments to employees i recognized as expense ofl & straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the eguity-settied employee benefits reserve.

Equity-settied share-based payment transactions with other parties are measured at
the fair value of the goods or services received, except when the fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are maasured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service.

& Leattled share-b
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For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is. recognized for the goods or
services acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the liability, At the end of each
reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair
value of the liability is re-measured, with any changes in fair value recognized in profit
or loss for the year.

Employee Benefits.

Post-emplo
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no fegal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the
periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments
is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due to be settled for
more than twelve (12) months after the end of the reporting period ‘In which the
employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

Defined benefit pian

Net retirement benefits asset, as presented in the consolidated statements of financial
position, is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets, adjusted for the
effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset celling. The asset ceiling is
the present value of any sconomic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
celling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets, are recognized immediately in the consolidated balance

sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to equity through OCI in the period in which

they occur: Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.




Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or
losses on non-routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss.
past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment - occurs.
These amounts are calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Net interest is calculated by applying the single effective discount rate based on
different term-dependent zero-coupon rate bonds to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense
or income in profit or joss.

ECLI’s and HSSI's defined benefit pension plans are governed by Republic Act (RA}
No. 7641, which requires a minimum benefit equivalent to one-half month’s salary for
avery year of service, with six months or more of service considered as one ‘year.
The level of benefits provided dependson the member’s length of service and salary at
retirement age.

plan assets are assets that are held in trust and governed by the Board of Trustees,
which consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives.
The Board of Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for
the definition of the investment strategy. The fair value of plan assets is based on
market price information. When no market price is available, the fair yalue of plan
assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate
that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until
the settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher
than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the
resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 1o
the plen.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expénditure required to settle
a defined benefit obligation Js recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and
only when reimbursement is virtually certain.

The net retirement benefit asset recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in
future contributions to the plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination
of an employee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment pefare the normal retirement date or an emplayee’s decision
to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment,

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when
the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity
recognizes the related restructuring costs. Initial recognition and subsequent changes
to termination benefits are measured in accordance with the nature of the employee
penefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-term employee bensfits, or other
long-term employee benefits.

mplovee leaye entitiemen

Employee entitlements to annual leave dre recognized as & liability when they are
accrued to the employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized
for services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.




Revenue Recognition

The Group generates its sales from selling cement and other cementitious products
stich as dry-mix and aggregates, which are recognized when the: promised goods are
detivered to the customers.

The Group has official written agreements with customers docimented -in .supply
agreements and approved purchase orders. The supply agreements contain -gach
party’s respective obligations.

The Group has only one distinct performance obligation and that is to deliver the
promised goods.

The transaction price of the sale of goods varies from each sales order. The Group
offers variable consideration in form of rebates for select customers on the sale of
cement and aggregates. The rebates to be given to customers were already
determined at the beginning of the year and recorded at the end of each month,
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a sales order with &
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties,

The Group recognizes revenue when it transfers. control of the praduct to-a customer
gither by delivery or by pick-up depending on the terms of the shipment.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be ‘measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend incomie

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment have been established, provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Rental income
Revenue recognition for rental income is disclosed in the Group policy for leases.

Other income
Other income is income generated outside the normal course of business and is

recoghized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and it
can be measured reliably.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefits
related to a decrease In an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be
measured reliably. Expenses are recognized in profit or loss on the basis of: () 8
direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific items of
income; (ii) systematic and rational aliocation procedures when economic benefits are
expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association with income can
only be broadly or indirectly determined, or; (lii) immediately when an expenditure
produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future
economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the staternents
of financial position as an asset. ‘

Expenses in the statements of comprehensive income are presented using the function
of expense method. Costs of goods sold are expenses incurred that are associated
with the goods sold and includes direct materials, direct labor and factory overhead.
Operating expenses are costs attributable to administrative, marketing, selling and
other business activities of the Group.




Value Added Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT,
except when VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is riot recoverable from the
taxation authority; in which case VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included
as part of “Other current assets” or “Trade and other payables” in the consvlidated balance
sheet. ‘

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease 8 based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of ‘a spedfic asset
(or assets) or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that
asset Is (or assets are) not explicitly specified inan arrangement.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership tothe
Group Is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property of, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
jease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there Is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term,
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance Jease. ‘Operating lease payments are
recognized as an operating expense in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Related Party Transactions

A related party transaction i a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
parent Company and a related party, regardiess of whether a price is charged.

parties are considered related if one party has control, joint control, or significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating dedsions. An entity that has a
post-empioyment benefit plan for the employees and key management personnel of the
Group are also considered to be related parties.
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Functional Currency and Foreign Currency Transiation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Peso, which is also the functional
currency of the Parent Company. The functional currency of the Parent Company’s
subsidiaries is also the Peso. The Peso is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Parent Company and its subsidiaries operate. This is also the
currency that mainly influences the revenue from and cost of rendering products and
services. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional

currency.

Transactions In foreign cufrencies are initially recorded in the functional currency fate
prevailing at the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign. currencies are retranslated at the functional currency closing rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. All differences are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income except for foreign exchange differences that gualify as
capitalizable borrowing costs for qualifying assets. Nonmonetary items that are measured
in tetmns of historical cost in & foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rate as
at the date of the initial transaction.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tak expense.

Current ¢

The current tax expense is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from net profit as reported in the statements of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further exciudes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax
expense is calculated using 30% regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate or 2%
minimum corporate income tax rate, whichever is higher.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible tamporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Inaddition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it Is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences assoclated with such
investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at the end of each mpmtiné
period and reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be availabie to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax
rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner In which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

nd deferred tax for the yea

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Earnings per Share

The Group computes its basic earnings per share by dividing profit-or loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity hoiders of the Group by the weighted average nhumber
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit or loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Group and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding are adjusted: for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares,

Events after the Reporting Period

The Group identifies events after the end of each reporting period as those events,
both favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the end of the reporting period
and the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are adjusted to reflect those events
that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.
Non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material,

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components,
All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's Chief
Financial Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group reports separately, information about an operating segment that meets any
of the following quantitative thresholds:

« the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater,
in absolute amount, of the combined reported profit of all operating segments that
did not report a foss and the combined reported loss of all operating segments that
reported a loss; and

» its assets are 10% or more of the combinéd assets of all operating segments.

Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be
considered reportable, and separately disclosed, if Management believes that
information about the segment would be useful to users of the consolidated financial
statements.

For Management purposes, the Group is currently organized into two business
segments: clinker and cement segment and other materials and construction
segments. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary
segment information.

Financial information on segment reporting is presénted in Note 7.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
reporting date, The uncertainties inherent in these judgments and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the assets or liabilities affected in the future years.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following significant judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements:

Determination of control, The Parent Company determines control when it is
exposed,or has rights, to variable returns from Its involvemnent with an entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Parent

Company controls an entity if and only if the Parent Company has all of the following:
a. Powerover the entity;
b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and,

¢. The ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of the Parent
Company's returns.

The Parent Company regularly reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above. The Parent Company determined that it exercises control on-all
of its subsidiaries as it has all the elements of control listed above.

Determination of significant influence.

The Management of the Parent Company exercises its judgment in determining
whether the Parent Company has significant influence over another entity by
evaluating the substance of relationship that indicates the significant influence over its
associates. The recognition and measurement of the investment over these entities
will depend on the resuit of the judgment made.

As disclosed in Note 12, Holcim Mining and Development Corporation {HMDC) is an
associate of the Parent Company. The Parent Company has 40% ownership interest in
HMDC giving the Parant Company a significant influence over HMDC by virtue of its
contractual right to appoint two out of eight directors to the board of directors of that
company.

Lease commiitments - Group as lessee.

The Group has various lease agreements as a lessee. The Group has determined,
based on evaluation of the terms and condition of the lease agreements, that the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the leased properties were retained by
the lessor (e.g., no transfer of ownership at the end of the lease term, lease term-is
not for the majority of the economic life of the asset and the amount of the present
value of the minimum lease payments is not substantially the same as the fair value of
the leased asset). Accordingly, the Group accounts these leases as operating leases;
as disclosed in Note 32.

Arrangements containing & lease

The Group has various supply agreements where it purchases raw and other materials.
The Group has determined that these supply agreements do not contain a jease as the
seller is not required to sell all of its output to the Group and the arrangement does
not convey the right to use the asset, as disclosed in Note 32,
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Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

In making thelr judgement, the Management considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition of revenue set out in PFRS 15 and, in particular, whether the Group hiad
transferred control of the goods to the customer.

Busiress model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI
and the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
Monitoring Is part. of the Group's continuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are hield continues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a charige in business model and so
a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant increase of credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to y2Z-month ECL. for stage '1 assels,
or lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 whern
its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. PFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In -assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased, the Group -takes. into account
qualitative and guantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information.

Functional currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Group, the functional currency of the Group has determined to be the Philippine Peso.
The Philippine Peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates. It is the currency that mainly influences the Group in determining the
costs and selling price of its inventories.

Estimates

The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty as at balance sheet date that have the most significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next
reporting period are as follows:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment.

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are estimated based on the period
over which the property, plant and equipment are expected to be available for use and
on the collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end, and updated if expectations differ
materially from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the property, plant
and equipment. However, it is possible that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recording of depreciation expense for
any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,
There were no changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
in 2018 and 2017.

The Group recognized depreciation expense related to property, plant and equipment
amounting to P1.2 billion and P1.4 billion in 2018 and 2017, respectively, as disclosed
in Notes 13 and 26. The carrying value of depreciable property, plant and equipment
amounted to P18.6 billion and P17.6 billion as at December 31, 2018 snd 2017,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 13,




Impairment of non-financial assets.

PERS requires that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment
indicators are present. If any such indicators exist, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset.

Determining the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, investments in
associates, intangible assets and other nonfinancial assets requires the determination
of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use @nd ultimate
disposal of such assets. Future events could cause management to conclude that
assets associated with an acquired business are impalred.

Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the Group's
finanicial position and financial performance. The preparation of estimated future cash
flows involves significant estimations and assumptions. While the Group believes that
its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in the Group's
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and may lead
to future additional impairment charges under PFRS.

The catrying values of investments in associates, property, plant and egquipment,
and intangible assets are disclosed in Notes 12, 13 and 14, respectively.

Impairment of goodwill.

The Group performs impairment testing of jts goodwill on an annual basis or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Value-in-use is estimated by making an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to apply
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows..
The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on the three-year financial plan approved
by the senior management. The Group has determined that the goodwill is not
impaired. The carrying amount of goodwill amounted to P2.6 billion as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, as disclosed in Note 14.

Estimating loss allowance for expected credit losses.

The Group measures expected credit losses of a finanicial instrument In 2 way that
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. When
measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future rovement of different
~ economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

I addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables,
the Group also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which,
although not specifically identified as requiring 2 specific allowance; have a greater
risk of defauit than when originally granted. This level of allowance is based on the
status of the accounts receivable, past collection experience and other factors that
may affect collectability.

The allowance for doubtful accounts amountad to PZ32.5 million and P223.3 million as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Trade and other receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful accounts, amounted to p4.0 billion and P3.4 billlony as at
Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as disclosed in Note 9.




Retirement benefit costs.

The costs of defined benefit pension plan as well as the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valustion involves
making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rates,
future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long=term nature;
defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions,
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Further details about the
assumptions used are provided in Note 31.

in determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates
of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the
defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific country and is modified accordingly with estimates of mortality
improvements. Future salary increases are based on historical actual salary increases
of the Group.

Total retirement benefit asset amounted to P3.6 billion for December 31, 2018 and
retirement benefit liability amounted to P845.2 million for December 31, 2017;
as disclosed in'Note 31,

Deferred tax assets.

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assets at the end of
each reporting period and reduces these to the extent that it Is no fongér probabie that
sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax assets to be utilized. The Group’s assessment on the recognition of
deferred income tax assets on deductible temporary differences is based on the level
and timing of forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods..
This forecast is based on the past results and future expectations of revenues and
expenses as well as future tax planning strategies. However, there is no assurance
that the Group will generate sufficient future taxable income to aliow all or part of
deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Management also reviews the level of
projected gross margin for the use of Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) and
assesses the future tax consequences for the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and deferred income tax liabilities. Based on the Group's projected margin,
management expects to use the iternized deduction method for the Parent Company
and most of the subsidiaries. HPMC and Mabini expect to use the OSD for the next
three years and Bulkcem and HPBSCI for the next four years.

Total deferred tax assets recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial position
amounted to nil and P P455.2 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
The amounts of temporary différences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, for which no deferred income tax assets as  at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are disclosed in Note 30.

Net realizable value of inventories.

The Group writes down the cost of inventories whenever the net realizable value of
inventories becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration,
obsolescence, change in price levels or other causes, The lower of cost and net
realizable value of inventories is reviewed on a periodic basis. Inventory -items
identified to be obsolete and unusable are written-off and charged as expense in the
consolidated statement of income. The allowance for inventory obsolescence
amounted to P219.2 million and P201.7 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. The carrying values of inventories amounted to PS.1 billion and
P3.8 billion as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as disclosed in Note 10.




Provisions for claims, litigations-and assessments,

The Group Is currently invelved in various legal proceedings and tax assessments.
Management’s estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has
been developed based upon an analysis of potential results. The Group. currently
believes that these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial statements. It is possible however, that future financial
performance could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or effectiveness
of the strategies relating to these proceedings and assessments.

Onerous contracts.

The Group reviews contracts in which the unfavorable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from it.
These unfavorable costs are recognized as provisions and discounted using the
applicable weighted average cost of capital (WACC). As at December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Group's provisions amounted to P70, million and P81.3 million,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 20.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are components of the Group that engage in business activities
from which they may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the Group), which
operating results are regulatly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about how resources are to be allocated to each of the segments and to
assess their performances, and for which discrete financial information is available,
Management reassesses on an annual basis whether there have been any change in
the operating segments or in the reportable operating segments in accordance with
PFRS 8, Operating Segments.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into activities based on their \
products-and has two segrents, as follows:

» Clinker and Cement segment, which manufactures and sells clinker and cement for
both domestic and export customers; and

» Other Construction Materials and services segment, which includes operations
from the RMX business, Helps-U-Build-Better {(HUBB), Speciaity. Products and
Aggregates Trading.

Management monitors the operating resuits of its business segments for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is based on operating EBITDA and is measured consistently
with consolidated net income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. However, the Group’s finance income and charges and
income taxes are managed on a group basis, and are not allocated to operating
segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s. length basis
similar to transactions with third parties.




The Group has determined the Clinker and cemerit segment as. the only reportable
segment. Information on the other segments that are not reportable are combined and
presented as “Others”. Segment revenues, EBITDA, assets, liabilities and other
information for segments as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for each of the three
years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are presented below;

Adjustments
Clinker and
and Cement Others Total _ _ Eliminations  Consolidated
{In Thousands)
2018
Revenue:
Externatl customers P33,227,519 P2,395,594 P35,623,113 P «  P35,623,113
Inter-segment ] 244,313 4,298 248,609 {248,609) -
33,471,832 2,399,890 35,871,722 248,609) 35,623,113
Gperating EBITDA 6,473,381 (1,578,592) 4,894,789 - 4,894,789
Segment assets 37,089,069 457,620 37,546,689 9,649,552 47,195,241
Segment liabilities $,863,298 208,004 10,071,302 11,851,778 21,923,080
Results -
Depreciation, amortization o
and depletion 1,162,998 10,201 1,173,199 - 1,173,199
Other disclosures - ‘
Construction In-progress 86,202,519 2,420 5,204,939 - 6,204,939
2017
Revenue; ‘ ;
Extérnal customers P31,686,117 P3,054,644 934,740,761 P - P34,740,761
Inter-segment 711,828 30,466 242,294 (742,2943 -
32,397,945 3,085,110 P35,483,055 (P 742,294) 34,740,761
Operating EBITDA 7,216,223 (1,768,848} P 5,447,375 - 5,447,375
Segment asseéts 28,249,318 468,858 28,718,176 5,869,396 35,587,572
Segment liabllitles 7,483,328 358,111 7,841,439 5,391,385 13,232,824
Resuilts ~ )
Depreciation, amiortization
and depletion 1,259,411 113,994 1,373,405 - 1,373,405
Other disclosures - ) )
Construction in—emgress 4,373‘695 2»,420 4‘3?6‘115 - 4‘3'75=3,15
2018
Revenue:
External customers P38,364,642 P1,971,166 P40,335,808 P - P40,335,808
Inter-segiment 962,683 28,779 991,462 (991,462) “
39,327,325 1,999,945 41,327,270 (991,462} 40,335,808
Operating EBITDA 12,646,891 {1,834,036) 10,812,855 - 10,812 855
Segmient assets 26,100,036 797,108 26,897,144 6,866,685 33,763,829
Segment liabilities 5,025,027 449,236 6,474,263 1,032,233 1,506,496
Results -
Depreciatior, amortization .
and depletion 1,285,060 41,115 1,326,175 - 1,326,175
Other disclosures ~
Construction in-progress 2,393,050 23,503 2,416,553 - 2,416,553

Inter-segment revenues, other than those outside the Group, ére eliminated upon
consolidation and reflected in the “Adjustments and eliminations” column. All other
adjustments that are part of detailed reconciliations presented further below include
the following:

» Finance income and charges, and foreign exchange gains (losses) on financial
assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments as the underlying
instrumenits are managed on a group basis.

¢ Deferred income. taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated
to those segments as they are also managed on a group basis.
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Following is the reconciliation of segment operating profit to consolidated profit before

income tax:
2018 2017 2016
{n Thousands}

Operating EBITDA P4,894,789  P5447,375 P10,812,855
Depreciation, amortization and - , ‘

depletion ‘ (1,173,199}  (1,373,405) (1,326,175)
Interest and financing charges (311,474) (107,428) (41,754)
Interest and other financial
income 33,128 21,707 19,528
Others - net 108,014 278,166 162,490
Profit before income tax P3,551,258 P4,266,415 P9,626,845

December 31, December 31,

2018 2017
(In Thousends)
Segment assets P37,546,689 P28,718,176
Cash and cash equivalents 5,399,853 1,945,797
Investments 4,249,699 4,468,357
Deferred income tax assets - net - 455,242
Consolidated assets 47,196,241 35,587,572
Segment liabilities 10,071,302 7,841,439
Loans payable 9,125,849 4,177,902
Trade and other payable 1,574,616 947,799
Income tax payable , 321,025 265,684
Deferred income tax liabilities - net 830,288 L
Consolidated liabilities 21,923,080 13,232,824
Geographic Information
2018 2017 2016
(fit Thousands)
Revenues from external customers ‘
Local P35,623,113 P34,731,497 P40,301,385
Export - 9,264 34,423

P35,623,113 P34,740,761

P40,335,808

The Group has no revenue from transactions with a single external customer
accounting for 10% or more of the consolidated revenues. All property, plant and
equipment of the Group are located in the Philippines.

T



CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017
(In Thousands)
Cash on hand and in banks P1,716,133 P1,080,497

Short-term deposits 3,683,720 865,300

P5,399,853 P1,945 797

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are
made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest ranging from 0.44% to 2.0% short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to
P14.6, P21.4 million and P18.3 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016 respectively.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - net

Note 2018 2017
{In Thousands)
Trade
Dealers P 117,752 P 371,873
Retallers 902,135 454,672
Institutional 556,965 598,148
Alternative fuel and raw materials
(AFR)/ready mix ( RMX)/cthers 501,953 604,569
Due from related parties 29 1,754,256 1,226,316
Others 404,908 406,735

Less: Aliowance for doubtful accounts

4,237,969 3,662,313

232,524 223,264
4,005,445 P3,439,049

financial year.

Other receivables consist maini
other than sale of goods,

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have credit terms of 30 to 60

days. Due from related parties and other receivables are collectible within the next

y of collectibles from various parties for transactions
and accrued interest,

Movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts which pertain to trade and other

recelvables are as follows:

\ AFR/RMX/
Note Dealers Retallers ~ Institutional  Others Othars Total
{In Thousands)

2018 . ;

Beginning of vear PS1,650  P27,744 P 7,268 P132,969 P3,624 P223,264
Provisions {reversals) 24 {30,300) 30,746 {2,384) 5831 5,387 4,260
£nd of year 21,359 58,490 4,884 138,800 8,991 232,524
individually impaired 22,718 58,734 5,590 103,235 8,991 159,255
Collectively impaired {1,356) {244 {706) 35,575 d 33,269
2017

Beginning of year P26,684 P64,538 P11,860 P 98,978 73,624 P205,685
Provisions {reversals) 24 24,875 {36,794} {4,592} 33,990 - 17,579
End of year — 51,6359 27744 7,268 132,969 3624 223,264
Individually impaired 49,935 26,387 1,844 P91,758 3,624 173,548
Coltectively impaired 1,724 1,357 5424 41,211 - 49,716

RO
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In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any change
in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the .end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to
the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the BOD believes that there
is no further allowance for doubtful accounts required in excess of those that were
already provided. Aging of past due atcounts but not impaired and credit quality of
trade and other receivable are disclosed in Note 18.

In 2018 and 2017, receivables amounting to nil and P53.9 mitlion, respectively, net of
related rebates amounting to nil and P49.0 miilion, respectively, were written off as
disclosed in 24.

INVENTORIES - net

2018 2017
{In Thousands)

At cost: ‘
Finished goods P 816,403 £ 921,148
Goods in process 1,217,968 650,338
Raw materials 256,895 378,569
Fuel 1,276,493 994,519
Spare parts and others 1,278,803 1,057,934
5,346,562 4,002,508
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence 219,219 201,716
PS5,127,343 £3,800,792

Total inventories charged to cost of sales amounted to P19.9 billion P18.3 billion and
P18.4 billion billion in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, as disclosed in Note 22.
Allowance for inventory obsolescence relates to allowance for spare parts.

The following table shows the movement of allowance for inventory obsolescence as at
Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

{In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year P201,716 Pi81,762
Additions 17,503 19,954
_Batance at end of vear P219,219 P201.716
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Notes 2018 2017
(Iri Thousands)
Advances to suppliers 32 P345,531 P315,825
Prepaid expenses 206,683 178,931
Input VAT 96,875 212,017
Refundable deposit i5 48,019 -
Current portion of long-term financiai ‘ »
receivable 15,29 34,064 32,360
Creditable withholding taxes 32,041 10,387
Advances to employees 507 14,772
Others 66,580 71,266

P8306,300 ... PB35,558

Advances to suppliers represent advances that are applied against subsequent
purchases and are outstanding for less than one year from initial recognition.

Advances to employees are non-interest bearing and generally have terms of 30 days.

Prepaid expenses include rent, insurance and taxes paid in advance that are amortized
within next year.
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INVESTMENTS
Investments as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 consist of the following:

2018 2017
{In Thousands)
Investments in associates P4,245,759 P4,464,417
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 3,940 3,940

P4,249,699  P4,468,357

The details of investment in associates as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

2018 2017
{In Thousands)
HMDC P4,245,759 P4,464,417
Asia Coal

Acquisition cost - 29,162
Write-~off of Investment o= {29,162)
P4,245,759 P4,464,41?

HMDC ~ 40%

HMDC was Incorporated in the Philippines and registered - with the SEC on
October 5, 1987. Its registered place of business is 5% Floor, One Campus Place,
Tower B, 1080 Campus Avenue, McKinley Town Center, Taguig City. HMDC is involived
in mining, processing and sale of quarry resources of mineral rights.

Purstant to the subscription by the RF to 60% of the issued and outstanding capital
stock of HMDC, HPI and HPMC appointed and designated RF as their proxy for their
respective 60% voting shares in HMDC, which proxy is irrevocable until SEC approves
the increase in capital stock. Thereafter, thrée nominees of RF were elected to the
five-member Board of HMDC. As a result, RF has effectively taken over the control of
HMDC. Consequently, the Parent Company accounted for its remaining 40% interest in
HMDC as investment in an asssociate. At the date of the loss of control, the Parent
Company’s investment in HMDC was remeasured at P4.2 billion based on the fair value
of its retained equity in HMDC,

Following are the summarized unaudited consolidated balance sheet financial
information of HMDC as at December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
{In Thousands)
Current assets p1,931,886 P2,251,547
Noncurrent assets 6,163,117 6,951,494
Current llabllities 1,603,543 1,967,730
Noncurrent labilities 5,048,983 4,953,440

Net assets P1,442,477 P2,281,871




Following are the summarized unaudited consolidated statement of income financial
information of HMDC for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
{In Thousands)
Revenues P2,781,093 P2,483,963
Cost and expenses (2,672,655) (2,245,087)
Gross profit 108,438 238,876
Other income 555,057 181,991
Income before income tax 663,495 430,867
Provision from income tax 194,649 (71,830}
Net income P 468,846 P 359,037

Movement of the investment in HMDC in 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017
(In Thousands)

Cost:

Balance, beginning and end of year P4,300,746 _ P4,300,746
Accumulated share in undistributed

earnings:

Balance beginning of year 163,671 86,761

Share in undistributed earnings 28 122,898 143,615

Share in dividends declared by HMDC 29 (322,652) {66,705}

(54,987) 163,671
P4,245,759 P4,464,417

Share in undistributed earnings of HMDC includes the share in net income for the
cumulative preferred shares held by the Parent Company and excludes the Parent
Company's share in any unrealized gross profit from HMDC’s sales to the Parent
Company as disclosed in Note 29,

Asia Coal Corporation (Asia Coal) ~ 28%

The Parent Company has a 28% interest in Asia Coal, which was. incorporated in the
Philippines. Asia Coal ceased operations on November 1, 2014. On March 18, 2009,
the directors and stockholders of Asia Coal approved the shortening of the corporate
life of Asia Coal to October 31, 2009. Asia Coal shall be dissolved and liguidated,
the date of which is subject to the approval of the SEC. The reporting date of Asia Coal
is October 31. On March 1, 2017, the board of directors unanimously approved the
write-off of investment to Asia Coal, ‘ .




13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - net

December 31, Additions/ Uisposals/ Transfers/  December 31,
2017 Depreciation/ Retirements Reclassification 2018 v

(I Thousands)
Cost:
Bulldings. and Instaliations P12,958,244 4 = {P52,563) {P15,739) P12,905,681
Machinery and equipment 23,980,205 12,416 {15,953) 385,133 24,355,667
Furniture, vehicles and tools 939,071 - {22,578) 24,443 940,936
Canstruction in-progress 4,376,368 2,232,013 - (389,837} 6,204,939
42,253,888 2,244,429 (91,094 - 44,407,223
Less sccumulated
depreciation;
Buildings and instaliations 7,845,325 364,571 {1;250) - 8,208,843
Machinery and equipment 16,121,382 749,428 (15,976) - 16,854,834
Furpiture, vehicles and tools 687,343 57,831 {8,999) - 736,175
24,654,050 1,172,027 {26,225) z ,25‘29,9,852
Carrying amount P17,599, 638 P1,072,000 (P64,869) [4 - P:I.Q‘GO?IS?!
December 31, Additions/ Disposals/ Transfers/ Decernber 31;
2016 Depreciation/ Retiremsnts  Reclsgsification 2017
(I Thousands}
Cost:
iand and land improvements P 58,298 P - (P 58,298) 4 - -
Buildings and installations 12,907,565 - {76,946} 127,625 12,958,244
Machinery and equipment 23,555,892 53,797 {41,108) 411,624 23,980,205
Furniture, vehicles and tools 1,025,833 319 (120,249} 33,168 939,071
Construction in-progress 2,416,553 2,530,664 “ {570,849) 4,378,368
39,964,141 2;584,780 {296,601) 1,568 42,253,888
Less accumulated
depreciation:
Land imgrovements 45,347 - {45,347} - -
Builldings and instaliations 7,464,662 436,254 (57,159} 1,568 7,845,325
Machinery and equipment 15,295,383 835,765 {9,766} . 16,121,382
Furniture, vehicles and tools 701,723 89,294 (103,674) - 687,343
23,507,115 1,361,313 {215,946) 1,568 24,654,050
Catrying amount P16,457,026  P1;223,467 {P 80,655) B P17,595,838

Construction in progress includes on-going item replacements and expansion projects
for the Group’s opéerations.

The Group recognized gain (loss) from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
amounting to (P3.6) million, P115.8 million and (P5.1) million in December 31, 2018
2017 and 20186, respectively, as disclosed in Note 28.

Of the total amount of additions to property, plant and equipment, P317.7 million are
still unpald as of Detember 31, 2018,

The proceeds from the sale of property, plent and equipment amounted to
P61.3 million and P180.4 millior in December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Management believes that there is no indication that an Impairment loss has occurred
during the year,




14. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS - net
The movements of goodwill and intangible assets are as follows:

Additions/
December 31, Amortization/ December 31,
2017 Transfers 2018
Goodwill P2,635,738 p - P2,635,738
Intangible assets
Cost:
Software costs 102,085 - 102,085
Project development costs »
and others 38,256 = 38,256
140,341 - 140,341
Less accumulated amortization:
Software costs 95,966 1,172 97,138
Project development costs
111,627 1,172 112,799
28,714 {1,1722) 27,542
Balance P2,664,452 (P1,172) P2,663,280
Additions/
December 31, Amortization/ December 31,
2016 Transfers(a} _ Retiremients 2017
{In Thousands)
Goodwill P2,635,738 P - P - P2,635,738
Intangible assets '

Cost: _
Software costs 122,384 - {20,299) 102,085
Project development

costs and others 38,256 , - - 38,256
160,640 - (20,299) 140,341
Less accumulated
amortization: _
Software costs 104,173 12,092 {20,299) 95,966
Project development
costs
and others 15,661 - - 15,661
118,834 12,092 {20,299) 111,627
40,806 12,092 - 28,714
Balance P2,676,544 P12,092 P - P2,664,452
Goodwill

Goodwill amounting to P2.6 billion relates to the Parent Company's acquisition of WEB
and MGMC on August 14, 2003.

The Group performs its annual impairment test every last quarter of the year:
The recoverable amount of the CGU determined based on value~in-use, is compared to
its carrying amount. An impairment loss is only recognized if the carrying amount of
the CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Future cash flows are discounted using the
WACC.
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The cash flow projections are based on a five-year financial planning period approved
by senior management. Cash flows beyond the five-year budget period are
extrapolated based on cash flows at zero growth. As a result of this analysis,
management has determined that there was no impairment loss in 2018, 2017 and
2016 since the value-in-use exceeds the carrying value of Mabini plant’s cement
operations.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the CGU, management believes that
a change in the discount rate of 1 percentage point would not cause the carrying value
of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assurnptions
Long-term GDP Growth
Discount Rate Rate
2018 8.4% 7.0%
2017 8.7% 7.0%
2016 8.3% 6.5%

Management believes that there is no indication that an impairment loss has occurred
on its intangible assets with definite useful lives. The Group has determined; based on
annual impairment testing that the carrying amounts of intangible assets with
indefinite useful life are not in excess of their net recoverable amounts.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Notes 2018 2017
(In Thousands)

Other financial assets P2,153,490 P 82,106
Guarantee deposits 18, 32 412,561 123,948
Long-term financial receivable 29 130,377 66,244
Deferred input value-added taxes 33,590 55,264
Refundabie deposit 446 48,466
Others 979 2,459

P2,731,443 p378,487

Other financial assets represent both deposits miade for future obligations and
minimum mine rehabilitation fund required by the DENR to cover site restoration cost:
amounting to P2.1 billion and P82.1 million, respectively, As of December 31, 2018,
the Group is already working to close the rehabilitation fund as DENR requirement is
no longer applicable consequent to HMDC deconsalidation.

Refundable deposit represents the cash bond deposited withi the Bureau of Customs
(BOC) in May 2001, representing the safeguard duty of P20.6 per bag of gray Portland
cement imposed by the Department of Trade and Industry {DTI). In Nevember 2001,
the Philippirie Tariff Commission (PTC) subsequently ruled that no safeguard duties are
required for the importation of gray Portland cement. In 2005, the Supreme Court
ruled that PTC's finding is binding on the DTI. In March 2006, the DTI issued an order
nullifying the said safeguard duties. On October 12, 2007, the Group filed an
application with the Batangas Collection District No. TV in view of the BOC's failure to
release the cash bonds despite the DTY's 2006 order. On October 22, 2012, the
Group’s application was favorably endorsed to the Legal Division of the BOC’s Revenue
and Collection Monitoring Group. In August 2015 and as required by BOC's Legal
Division, the Group filed a position paper with supporting documents, including the
DTl's letter stating that there is sufficient basis for the release of the cash bonds.
On October 21, 2015, the Group wrote a letter to the office of the BOC commissioner
on the Legal Division's refusal to rule on the application.
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In November 2015, the office of the BOC commissioner endorsed the Group’s
application to the BOC's Revenue and Collection Monitoring Group and Director of
Legal Services for appropriate action. As at December 31, 2018, the Group's
application is pending resolution by the BOC, Subsequently, MGMC's cash bond in the
amount of P48.0 million was released by BOC and received on February 4, 2019,
thus, reclassified to other current assets, as disclosed in Note 11.

Guarantee deposits represent cash deposits made to suppliers for raw material supply
agreement and various security deposits for rentals are disclosed in Note 32.

Long-term financial receivables represent the outstanding receivable from Holcim East
Asia Business Service Centre B.V. (HEABS) relating to the “Assignment of Know-How"
contract. The Group has entered into a long-term financing agreement with HEABS to
amortize the unpaid balance of the latter as of December 31, 2016 amounting to
P96.3 million or $1.9 million plys any revaluation, over 3 years as disclosed in
Note 29. In 2018 and 2017, part of the financial receivable was classified as current
asset amounting to P34.1 million and P32.4 million, respectively, as disclosed in
Note 11.

Long-term financial receivable aiso represents the receivable from the Group’s third
party service provider for sale of certain heavy equipment in 2008, which will be
settled on or before 2019. Interest income earned from long-term financial recelvable
at an annual interest rate of 4.5% to 7.0% amounted to nil, P0.3 million and
£0.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 20186, respectively.

LOANS PAYABLE

Note 2018 2017
Loans payable - third party P5,200,000 P -
Loans payable - related parties 29 3,925,849 4,177,902

P9,125,849 P4,177,902

In 2018, the Group has availed of various unsecured short-term loans for working
capital purposes from a bank with an average interest rate of 4.66% as well as loans
from its related parties.

In 2017, the Group availed a short<term loan from a bank amounting to
P2.2 billion, bearing interest of 2.8%. This was fully paid in.2017. The Company also
availed various short term loans from its related parties amounting to P4.2 billion as of
December 31, 2017, as disclosed in Note 29, ‘

Total interest expense from loans payable charged to profit or loss amounted to
P279.5 million, P78.8 million and P17.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016 respectively,
as disclosed in Note 27.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note 2018 2017
{In Tthousands)

Trade payable P 3,291,917 P3,372,644
Advances and deposits from

customers. 3,784,328 1,142,565
Due to related parties 29 2,469,414 1,207,533
Accrued expenses 1,647,744 1,804,578
Other taxes payable 165,685 225,428
Non-trade payable 143,124 8,047
Qutput VAT 71,936 83,849
Other payables _Ba3 18,008

P11,574,971 P7.862,742
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Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and normally have payment terms of 30 to
60 days.

Other accrued expenses include interest from interest-bearing cash bonds which-are
refundable anytime upon demand by the customers.

Non-trade payables represent accounts with suppliers opther than production-related
expenses. These are noninterest-bearing and have an average term of three months.
or less. ‘

Advances and deposits from customers represent those that will be applied against
subsequent shipments thus, are generally outstanding for less than 30 days from
initial recognition.

Total amount of intercompany receivables and payables eliminated as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P3 billion and P0.5 billion, réspectively,

Details of the Group's accrued expenses are as follows:

2018 2017
{In Thousands)
Rebates P 726,289 P 722,433
Outside services 320,727 331,284
Employee-related payable 276,101 289,103
Power 189,133 157,159
Irterest payable 31,997 32,117
Project expenses 12,252 42,795
Maintenance 6,845 55,725
Others 84,400 173,962

P1,647,744 P1,804 578

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to various financial risks, which include the effect of changes in
debt structure, equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential and adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Group. The Group does not enter into other derivative op
financial transactions which are unrelated to. its operating business as a risk-averse
approach is pursued.

Financial risk management of the Group is governed by policies approved by
management. It provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific risk areas such as interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
counterparty risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing assets in
excess of liquidity requirements.

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, consist of cash and
cash equivalents and notes payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise funds for the Group’s operations. The Group also has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, advances to employees;
guarantee deposits, restricted cash and trade and other payables which arise directly
from operations. :

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risks
(which include foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarized below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to financial
instruments are set out in Noté 5 to the consolidated financial statements.




 Market risks

The Group is exposed to market risks, such as foreign currency and interest rate risks.
To manage volatility relating to these exposures, the Group enters into derivative
financial instruments, when necessary. The Group’s objective is to reduce,
where appropriate, fluctuations in earnings and cash flows associated with changes in
foreign currency, interest rate and equity price.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrurnent will fuctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group has foreign exchange exposures, arising primarily frem purchases of goods
and services and debt servicing requirements in currencies other than the Philippine
Peso that leads to currency translation effects. Of the Group’s revenues, approximately
nil and 0.03% were denominated in currencies other than the Philippine Peso in 2018
and 2017, respectively.

Due to the local nature of the cement business, transaction risk is limited.
However, income may primarily be in local currency whereas debt servicing and
significant amount of capital expenditures may be in foreign currencies. As a
consequence thereof, the Company may enter into derivative contracts whenever
necessary, which may be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair value hedges,
as appropriate.

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had minimal assets and Habilities exposed to
foreign currency risks.

The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk before
considering the effect of hedging transactions. Included in the table are the Group’s
forelgn currency-denominated assets and lHabilities at carrying amounts:

December 31

2018 2017
In USD JIn PHP In USD In PHP
{In Thousands)

Assets: .

Cash and cash equivalents $1,115 P 58,789 $1,842 P 91,953

Trade and other receivables 7,480 394,330 7.808 389,773

Financial recelvables .. - 1,946 97,144

8,595 453,119 11,598 578,870

Liabiiities: ,

Trade and other payables 713 37,612 256 12,780
Net exposure 882 15,50 11,340 6,

Converted to Phllippine peso at US$1.00: P52.72 as at December 31, 2018 and bs;z.oa: P4592 as at
Decerber 31, 2017

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s income before income
tax {due to changes in fair value of monetary assets and liabilities after considering
the impact of hedging transactions) to & reasonably possible change in U.S. dollar
exchange rate, with all -other variables held constant:

Us Oollar ) ,
Appreciates (Depreciates) Effect on Income
by Before Income Tax

December 31, 2018

Sensitivity 1 10% P41,551

Sensitivity 2 {5%) {20,7753)
December 31, 2017 '

Sensitivity 1 10% P56,609

Sensitivity 2 (5%) (28,305}




In Management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the snd of the reporting period does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

The impact of any change in foreign exchange rate on the embedded currency
forwards of the Group is immateriai.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument
(cash flow interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in financing costs and market value movements
of its debt portfolio related to changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate exposure is mainly addressed through the steering of the fixed/floating ratio of
net debt. To manage this mix; the Group may enter into derivative transactions, as
appropriate. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group has minimal exposure to
interest rate risk.

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that counterparties may not be able to settie their obligations as
agreed, To manage this risk, the Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of
customers.

The Group constantly monitors its credit risk exposures. Counterparties to financial
instruments consist of a large number of major financial institutions. The Group does
not expect any counterparties to fail in meeting their obligations, given their high
credit ratings. In addition, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
with any single counterparty or group of counterparties.

The gross maximum and het maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, except for the following financial assets:

Gross Maximum Exposurat®) Net Maximum Exposure®
December 31X, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents® P5,399, 853 P1,945,214 P5,324,373 P1,870,317

Trade receivables: ‘ _
Dealers 96,393 320,214 - 72,047
Retailers 840,098 426,928 712,462 435,961
Institutional 552,081 590,880 - 254,546
Other Financial Assets** 2,153,490 82,106 2,153,490 82,106

P9,041,915 P3,365,342 P8,190,325 P2,714,977

(e} Gross financial assets before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements or offsetting arrangements.

®) Gross financial assets after taking into account any collateral or other credit
enhancernents or offsetting arrangements or deposit insurance.

*  Excluding cash or-hand,

*%  Included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements
of financial position,

The Group trades only with recognized, credit-worthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all third party customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are rnonitored on an
ongoing baslis to reduce the Group’s exposure to bad debts to minimum.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group,
which consist of due from related parties, advances to employees, AFS financial
assets, and guarantee and refundable deposits, the Group’s exposures arise. from
defauit of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these instruments.




The following tables present the credit quality of the financial assets as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017:

PastDue PastDue

Neither Past due nor Impaired but not and
Class A Class B Class € Impairéd  Dopaired ‘Total
{In Thousanils)
2018
Financial assets at FUTPLY* i
Quoted shares o 176 P - P » P - L - 176
Unguoted shares 3,764 - - L - 3,764

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equlialents -
1,715,550

Cash I banks 1,715,550 = * - b
Shott-term deposits 865,300 - - - - 865,300
Trade @nd other
recelvables
Trade ] )
Daglers 87,563 8,810 - b 21,359 112,752
Retailers 23,744 15,879 804,021 - 58,490 902,135
Institutional 117,198 118,466 816,417 - 4,884 556,965
AFR/RMX/others 2,395 69,217 146,221 141,434 142,686 501,953
Due frorm rélated partles 1,754,256 - - - w 1,754,256
Oither receivables - - 399,803 - 5,105 404,908
Advances to employees* - - 507 - - 507
Other Tinancial agsetg** 2,153,490 - - “ - 2,153,490
Guarantee deposits**= 30,716 - 381,845 - - 412,561
Shiort-term financial 34,064 - = - - 34,064
receivable®
Long-term loan financial
recelvable*** - -

P6, 788,236 P213.372

2017
Financial assets at FVTPL**
Quoted shares P 176 P - P - P - P - 4 176
Unguoted shares. 3,764 - - - - 3,764
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents } )
Cash In banks 1,079,914 - - - - 1,079,914
Short-term deposits 865,300 - - - - 865,300
Trade and other
receivables
Trade ) .
Dealers 25,798 244,639 45,727 = 51,659 371,873
Retaliers 822 ‘894 425,212 - 27,744 454,672
Institutional 1,540 185,967 403,373 = 7,268 598,148
AFR/RM¥Jothiers 235 48,773 194,189 228,389 132,969 604,569
Due from related parties 1,226,316 - - - - 1,226,316
Other receivables - e 403,111 - 3,824 406,735
Advances to employees* - - 14,772 - - 14,772
Other financial assets™*** 82,108 - - - - 82,106
Guarantee deposits®** e - 123948 - - 123,948
Short-term financial
receivable* 32,380 - - - - 32,360
tong-term joan financial
receivable®** 54,721 - 1,523 - = 68,244

$3,383,056 P480,273 P1,615,905  P238.369 P223,264 _ P5,830,897

“Inciided under “Other current assets” In the consolidated statementts of finaricial position.
*XIncluded under “Investments” in the consolldated statements of finandial position.
suknchided under “Other roricutrent assets” In the cansolidated staternents of financial position.

The Group uses the following criteria to rate credit risk on accounts recelvable as to
class:

Class Description

Class A  Collateralized accounts from counterparties with excellent paying habits or
accounts from counterparties with no history of default payment

Class B Secured accounts from counterparties with good paying habits but with
history of default payment

Class € Unsecured accounts




With respect to derivatives, AFS financial assets and cash and cash equivalents,
the Group evaluates the counterparty’s external credit risk rating in establishing credit
quality. ,

The Group has not provided an allowance on past due but not impaired accourits gince
Management believes that there is no change in the credit quality of financial assets
from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of each réporting period.

The tables below show the aging analysis of the Group’s financial assets as at
December 31; 2018 and 2017:

Neither ]
Past Due past Due but not Impaired ~ Past
Nor <30 30-60 §1-90 91-12¢  Due and
Total Impaired Days Days Days Days Impaired
{In Thousands)
2018
Financial assets at FTVRL**:
Quoted shares 1 4 i76 P 176 P~ | p- P~ 4 -
Unguoted shares 3,764 3,764 - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in banks 1,715,550 1,715,550 - - n -
Short-term deposits 865,300 865,300 - - - -
Trade and other recelvables:
Trade receivables from:
Dealers 117,752 296,393 - - - - 21,359
Retailers 902,135 843,645 - - - - 58,450
Institutionst £56,965 §52,081 - - - - 4,884
AFR/RMX/others 501,953 217,833 93,474 28,565 804 18,79% 142,688
pDoe from  related
parties 1,754,256 1,754,256 - - - - -
Others 404,908 299,803 - - - - 5,105
Advances to employees* so7 507 - - - = -
Other Financlal Assetg®»x 2,;153,490 2,153,490 - - - - -
Guarantee depositg*** 412,561 412,563 - - - - -
Short-term financial
receivable* 34,064 34,064 - - - - -
Long-term loan financial
recelvable**> “ - i - -
mg 474 Piz”sé' 65 P604 P18,791 P232,524
2017
Financial assets at FVTPLY*:
Quoted shares P 176 P 176 g o P - Boo= P - P -
Unquoted shares 3,764 3,764 - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in banks 1,079,914 1,078,514 - - - - -
Short-term depusits 865,300 865,300 - - .- = -
Trade and other receivables: -
‘Trade receivables from: ‘ -
Dealers 371,873 320,214 - - - - 51,659
Retailers 454,672 426,928 - - - E 27,744
Institutional 598,148 590,880 - . = = 7,268
AFR/RMXfathers 604,569 243,20 29,786 22,347 8,464 167,802 132,969
bue from  related )
parties 1,426,316 1,226,316 - - - - -
COthers 406,735 403,111 - < - - 3,624
Advances to employees* 14,772 14,772 “ - - = -
Other Financial Assets®¥% 82,106 82,106 - - - - -
Guarantee deposits*** 123,948 123,948 - - - - -
Short-term financial
recelvable® 32,360 32,360 - - « - -
Long-term loan financial
ragelvable**¥ 66,244 66,2494 - - - - e
P5!930!897' P5é79‘234 !’19!‘786

*ncludled under "Other current assets” in the consofidated statements of financial position.
*eIncluded under *Investments” In the consolidated skatements of financis| position.
=a#Inciyded under “Other noncurrént assets™ in the consofidated statements of financial position.




Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in-raising funds to meet
its contractual obligations and commitments. The seasonality of revenue generation
exposes the Group to shortage of funds during slack ‘season and may result in payment
defaults of financial commitments. The Group monitors this risk using & recurring
liquidity planning tool, This tool considers the maturity of both its financial assets and
projected cash fiows from operations. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank credit facilities,
finance leases and purchase contracts. It is responsible for its own cash surpluses and
the raising of loans to cover cash deficits, subject to policies and guidelines approved by
management and, in certain cases; at the BOD level.

The Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and cash equivalents, which are
short-term in nature and unused credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements -at all
times. In addition, the strong credit worthiness of the Group allows it to make efficient
use of the financial markets for finanicing purposes. Asat December 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Group has unutilized credit facilities of P10.1 billion and PO.4 billion, respectively.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets used for
liquidity management as at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Less than 3t
On Demand 3 Muonths 12 Months  >1 to 5 Years _Total

LA AL LS AL e RO B i L L TR LS M i B S St e

{In thousands)
2018
Financial assets ak FYTRL*;
Guoted shares P 176 P - P - P - P 176
Unquoted shares 3,764 - - - 3,764
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash In banks 1,715,550 - - - 1,745,550
Short-term deposits - 855,300 - - 885,300
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables from:
Dealers 21,359 96,393 - - 117,752
Retailers 58,490 843,645 - - 902,135
institutional - 556,965 - 556,065
AFR/RMX/others 284,120 217,833 - - 501,953
Due from related parties - - 1,754,256 - 1,754,256
Other receivables 5,105 - 399,803 b 404,908
Advances to employees* “ - - 507 507
Ottier Financial Assetg®* - “ - 2,153,490 2,153,490
Guarantee depositg*** - - - 412,561 T 412,561
Short-term financial recelvable™ e - 34,064 - 34,063

Long-term loan financial )
recelvableses - - w 130,377 130,377

P2,088,864 P2,580,136 P2,188,123 P2,696,935 P9, 553,758

2017
AFS financial assets**:
Quoted shares F 176 P - P - | 4 - P ize
Ungquoted shares 3,764 - & - 3,764
Loans and recelvables:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash in banks 1,079,814 o = - 1,079,914
Short-term deposits - 865,300 - - 865,300
Trade and other receivables:

Trade receivables from: ‘
Dealers 51,659 320,214 - - 371,873
Retallers 27,744 426,928 - - 454,672
Institutional 7,268 590,880 - - 598,148
AFR/RMX/others 361,368 243,201 - - 604,569

Due from related parties - - 1,226,316 * 1,226,316
Other réecelvables 3,624 = 403,111 - 406,735
Advanceés to employees* 1,335 " 13,437 & 14,772
Other Financial Assets*** - - - B2,106 82,106
Guaranteé deposlts®** - - “ 123,948 123,548
Short-term financial receivable* 32,380 - 32,360
Long-term financlal recetvableX** - - - 66,244 66,244

$1,536,8582 P2,446,523 Pi,675,224 p272,298 P5,5930,897
Slpchidad under "Other current assets” in the ronsulidated statements of financial position;
*sIncluded under ‘Investments” in the consulidated statements of financial position.
*sxincluded under "Other nonicurrent assets” in the consolidated statements of financial position..




The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than 310
On Demand . 3 Months 12 Months >1 to 5 Years Total

(1 thousands)
2018
Other financial llabifitles:
Trade and other payables: » _
Trade 73,201,917 A P - P 3,291,917
Accrued expenses and .
nontrade payables 1,790,868 “ “ - 1,790,868
Due to related parties 2,469,414 - - - 2,469,414
Advances from customers 645,484 - - - 645,484
Other pavables 819 - [ - 819
P8,198,507 | A P - p - P8,198.502
2017
Other financial labiiities:
‘Trade and other payables:
Trade P3,372,644 | P - Fo- P3,372,644
Accrued expenses and
nontrade payabies 1,812,625 - - - 1,812,625
Due to related parties 1,207,533 - - - 1,207,533
Advances from customers 645,484 - - - 645,484
Other payables 18,008 - - - 18,098
P7,056,384 P~ P P~ P7,056,384
*mcluded under "Trade and other payables” account In the conspligated statements of financial position,
Capital ent policy

The Group considers equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Comipany
as Its capital. The Group’s objactives when managing capital are to secure the Group’s
ongoing financial needs to continue as a going concern as well as to cater for its
growth targets in order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to fraintain & cost-efficient and risk-optimized capital structure.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the
changes in economic conditions, its business activities, investment and ‘expansion

program and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital, among others, on the basis of gearing ratio. Gearing ratio
is calculated as net financial debt divided by total equity in the consolidated Balarice
sheets as shown in the table below:

2018 2017
Loans payable - third party P 5,200,600 P -
Loans payable — related parties 3,925,849 4,177,902
Customers’ deposits (Cash Bond)* 496,305 497,035
Financial debt 9,622,154 4,674,937
Less cash and cash equivalents 5,399,853 1,945,797
Net financial debt 4,222,301 2,729,140
Total equity 25,273,161 22,354,748
Gearing ratio 16.7% 12.2%

*Inchuded as part of "Trade and other psyables”

The Group's target is to maintain a gearing ratio in the range of no more than 100
percent.

Total equity increased by 13% in 2018 due to net remeasurement ‘gain arising from
retirement benefits.
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20.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of each class of the Group’s finandial instruments, Is equal to
their carrying amount as at December 31, 2018 and 2017. The following methods and
assumptions sre used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
for which it is practicable to estimate such value;

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Advances to Employees,
Restricted Cash, Long-term Financial Receivable, Loans Payable and Trade and Other
Payables. Due to the short-term nature of the transactions, the fair values of these
instruments approximate the corresponding carrylbg values as at end of each
reporting period.

Derivative Liabilities. The fair values of the embedded currency forwards with notional
amount of US$3.8 million are calculated by reference to current forward exchange.

Financial Assets at FVTPL, The fair values of publicly traded instruments -are
determined by reference to quoted market prices as at the end of each reporting
period. Investments in unquoted equity securities are carried at cost net of any
impairment invalue.

Long-term Financial Recelvable and Guarantee Deposits. These are carried at cost,
less any impairment in value, which approximates their fair values calculated using the
discounted cash flows method.

Fair Value Hierarchy

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group's financial instruments measured at
fair value include only the quoted equity securities, classified as financial assets at
FVTPL (Level 1).

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group does not have financial instruments
whose fair values are determined using inputs that are not based on observable
market data (Level 3). There were no reclassifications made between the different fair
value hierarchy levels in 2018 and 2017.

PROVISIONS
2018 2017
{In Thousands)
Other provisions P70.,947 Pg1,342

Other Provisions

Other provisions include provisions for probable claims arising from assessments and
other litigations and onerous contracts involving the Group. The timing of the cash
cutflows of these provisions is uncertain as it depends upon the outcome of the
Group's negotiations and/or legal proceedings, which are currently origoing with the
parties involved, as disclosed in Note 32.

in December 2017, the Group recognized a one-time loss amounting to P73.3 million

which can be found in Note 28 - “Others” net representing the net present value of
stranded costs for the lease of fully mined-out assets of HMDC.
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EQUITY

a. Capital Stock
The composition of the Parent Company’s capital stock Is as follows:

Number of
Shares
Authorized - P1 par value
Preferred shares 20,000,000
Common shares $,980,000,000
Issued, fully paid and outstanding ~ Commeon shares; 6,452,099,144

The Parent Company has one class of common share which carries voting rights and
right to dividends but none for fixed income.

The preferred shares are cumulative and nonparticipating and entitled to preferential
dividend rate when declared by the BOD of the Parent Company. There were no
preferred shares issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The Parent Company’s common shares were registered/listed on June 17, 1996.
Jotal shares registered and outstanding as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is 6.5
billisn. These shares are held by 5,265 and 5,407 stockholders as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. There have been no recent changes in the
number of shares registered and outstanding.

b. Other reserves represent the Group's share in the performance compensation
scheme of the Lafarge Holcim Group.

¢. Retained earnings

The Parent Company’s retained earnings available for dividend declaration as at
December 31, 2018 amounted to P3.7 billion based on the guidelines set in the
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended {2011),

Cash dividends declared by the Parent Company are as follows:

2018 2017 _2016
Cash dividend per share P0.42 ~ POSB PO.87
Amount declared P2.7 billion P6.3 billion P5.6 billion
Declaration date May 18, 2018 May16,2017  May 18, 2016
Record date June 15, 2018 Junel5,2017  June 15, 2016

on Juiy 10, 2018; the BOD of HPMC deciared cash: dividends totaling P346.7 million
{(P150 per share) far stockholders on record as at August 9; 2018. The said amount is
still outstanding as of December 31, 2018.

On June 9, 2017, the BOD of HPMC declared cash dividends totaling P392.4 million
{P170 per share) for stockholders on record as of June 19, 2017. The dividends were
subsequently paid last July 31, 2017.




22. COST OF SALES

Notes 2018 2017 2016

{In Thousands)

Raw, packaging and production

materials P11,591,060 P11,221,156 P12,450,876
Power and fuel 32 8,349,252 7,031,290 5,894,267
Transportation and ‘ )

communications 2,921,701 3,095,213 2,540,851
Outside services 2,289,278 2,348,646 2,538,500
Personnel 25 1,450,752 1,366,274 1,521,162
Repairs and maintenance 1,323,772 1,246,306 1,373,369
Depreciation and amortization 26 1,113,238 1,277,207 1,252,284
Taxes and licenses 296,167 301,992 271,920
Rent 32 155,841 250,107 288,540
Insurance 109,848 115,631 119,936
Others 248,396 240,600 152,832

P29,850,205 P28,494,422 P28,504,537

Others. include inter-unit production freight, provision for write-offs of spare parts and
pther miscellaneous expenses.

23, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Notes 2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)
Personnel 25 P 470,083 P 440,099 P 484,111
Software implemeritation costs 327,335 128,484 204,792
Qutside services 174,678 478,499 744,934
Office expenses 79,412 58,416 89,427
Taxes and licenses 62,980 29,0727 55,651
Depreciation 13,26 51,146 73,947 66,588
Transportation and communications 20,168 19,586 22,134
Directors’ fees 11,900 12,550 =
Entertainment, amusement and
recreation 356 143 786
Others 37,663 20,065 84,672

P1,235,721 P1,260,864 PL,753,095

Others include rent, training expenses, community services and expenses related to
the Group's ongoing internal projects.

24, SELLING EXPENSES

Notes 2018 2017 ..2016
{1 Thousands)

Personnel 25 $321,928 P260,942 P240,215
Advertising 183,344 287,459 165,498
Cutside services 99,618 110,107 76,154
Transportation and communication 50,932 69,727 42,483
Taxes and licenses 22,927 20,000 -B,658
Office expenses 20,292 37,038 34,560
Rent 32 13,238 8,045 -
Provision for doubtful accounts 6,9 9,260 17,575 4,191
Depreciation 26 8.815 22,251 7,303
Write-off of receivable 9 - 53,907 -
Others 85,244 32,495 12,434

P815,597 P911,505 P591,496

Others include rent, insurance, utllities and expenses related to the Group's ongoing

internal projects.

59




25,

26.

27.

28.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2018 2017 2016
{In Thousarids)
Salarles; wages and employee benefits P1,563,857 P1,398,797 P1,514,222
Retirement benefit costs 88,990 117,666 130,783
Training 23,326 27,556 45,441
Others 566,590 523‘,296 555,042

P2,242,763

P2,067,315 92,245,488

Retirement benefit costs above excludes net interest cost, clagsified as part of interest

and financing charges, as disclosed in Note 27.

DEPRECIATION; AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT

Notes 2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)
Property, plant and equipment
Cost of sales 22 P1,112,066 P1,265118 P1,237,125
General  and  ‘administrative 23 v
expenses 51,146 73,947 66,588
Selling expenses 24 8,815 22,251 7,303
1,172,027 1,361,313 1,311,016
Intangible assets
Cost of sales 22 1,172 12,092 15,159

P1,173,199 P1,373405 P1,326,175

INTEREST AND FINANCING CHARGES

Details of interest and financing-charges are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017 2016
{In Thousdnds)
Interest on loans payable 16,29 P279,517 P 78,803 P17,447
Net Interest cost on defined benefit
obligation 31 43,092 22,092 23,253
Accretion of provision for site
restoration cost and others 5,195 6,533 1,054
P327.804 P107,428 P41,754
OTHERS ~ net
Deatails of Others - net are as follows:
Notes 2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)
Share in undistributed earnings of an
- associate ) 12 P 122,898 P143,615 P 86,761
{Loss) gain on sale of properties - net 13 {3,610) 115,760 {5,130)
{Loss) gain on saleof by products and ;
other revenue {9,477} 86,478 78,580
Foreign exchange gain - net 20,797 5,468 744
Fully mined-out assets 20 - (73,328) -
Loss on remaining obligation for ,
excluded properties - {28,890) -
Write-off of investment 12 2,182 (619) -
Others {8,446) 29,682 1,535
P124,344 p278,166 P162,480
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or
indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also
exist between and/or among entities which are under common control with the
reporting - entity and its key management personnel, directors or stockholders.
In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely the Jegal form.

The Group has transactions with the following related parties:

Parent:

+ Clinco Corporation

« Cemco Holdings, Inc. (Cemco), a subsidiaty of Clinco

+ Union Cement Holdings Corporation (UCHC), a subsidiary of Cemco

Subsidiaries of Cemco, a stockholder of HPI:
s Lafarge Holdings (Philippines) Inc. (LHPI)

« Calumboyan Holdings, Inc. (CHI)

+ Seacem Silos, Inc. (881)

Subsidiaries of Lafarge Molcim Limited

. Holcim Trading Pte. Ltd., Singapore (Holcim Trading)
« Holcim Technology and Services (HTSX)

+ Holcim Technology (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (HTPL)

+ Holcim Group Services Ltd. (HGS)

+ Holcim East Asia Business Service Centre B.V (HEABS)
+ Other Holcim Group affiliates

Associate of HPI and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018:
» Holcim Mining and Development Corporation (HMDC)

» Holcim Resources and Development Corporation (HRDC)

+ LafargeHolcim Aggregates Inc. (LHAI)

*+ Sigma Cee Mining Corporation {(SCMC)

»  APC Propetties, Inc. (APC)

» Quimson Limestones, Inc. (QLI)

» Lucky One Realty Ventures, Inc. (LORVI)




The following table summarizes the related party transactions and outstanding
balances as at and forthe years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2038 2017
: Qutstending  Transactions Qutstanding
Related Transactions Receivatie during the Recelvabile .
Parties HNature during the Year  {Fayabie) Year {Payable) Terms Conditions:
{in thousands)
Parent
UcHE
Noninterest-beuring,
Payrment of offsetting, due and Unsecured,
expenses P 588 ® 5317 P 127 {F 5,317 demandabile unguaranteed
Interest-beadng, to be
settied in cash, due and  Unsecured,
Short-term loan 1,840,699 {1,840,699) - - demnndable: utigudranteed
o be settled In cash, diie  Unsetured,
interest expense 30,910 (28,438) - - and demandable unguaranteed
Noninterest-bearing,
offsetting, due and Unsecured,
Dividends 1,640,699 ot - Z demandable  ungusranteed
Cemco
Nonintersst- beéaring,
Payment of offsetting; due and Unsecured,
expenses 1,290 {6,420} - {5,130} demandable unguseantesd
Interest-bearing, to be
. settied In cash, due and Unsecured,
o~ Short-term loan 905,636 27,636 1,000,000 {878,000) demandable usguaranteed
y To be settled in cash, Qe  Unseégured,
! Accrued Interest 2,745 - Q04 (832) and demandalile unguaranteed
Interest-bearing, to be
settled in cash, due and Unsecured;
Long-term ipan 261,845 381,845 - - demandable unguarantiéad
) To be settied in cagh, due  Unsecured,
Interest Income 18,872 5,293 - . and demandable . - ‘unguarantsed
Dperating To be settied In ¢ash, due ‘Unsecured,
Experises 23,457 23487 - - and daimandable unguarantesd
) To be settled incash, du€ Unsecured,
Dividends 181,810 - - - and demandable Unguaiantesd
Chinco
Noninterest- bearing, Unsecursd,
Payment of offsetting, dueand  anguaranteed,
expenses 813 1,336 790, 823 demandable not impaired
Under common
sharehoider
HTSX
Noninterest- bearing,
Purchases andfor ) offsetting, due.and Unsecured,
expense 1,539,231 368 1,44 26,871 demandable unguarantesd




2018 2017
Qutstanding Transsctions Outstamﬁng

Related Tramacﬁms Recelvable  duringthe.  Receivable _
Par it. (P Year {Payable) Yerms Conditions
Noninterest- besring,
Purchises dndfor offsetting, due arut Unsecured,
Bxpense 1,337/238 . (630,720) 2090033 . (45.42%) .  demendable ungusranteed
HYPL
Noninterast: besring,
Purchases and/or offsetting, due and Unsecured;
sxpénse 1498 {1,486) - - demandable uliguaranteed
Honinterest- besring, to  Unsecured,
te coliected In cashi, due  unigusrantéed,
Advances {20,162) 79 {1:099) 20,236 and demandable not Impal .
HEABS
Noninterest- bearing, & v
be setthed in cast, due Unsetured,
Service contract 441,166 {59,031} 515,387 (54,977 snid demandable ungusranteed
Nonintérest- bearing, to Unsecured,
e collected I cash, due - Unguaranteed,
Sale of assets {39,723} - - 39,723 pnd demandabile ot impatred
Honinterest: baarng, Unsecured,
offsewng, dug and usguarantead,
Vatious charges 7:368 5,507 54,081 79,538 able notimpsired
LHPT
Interest-bearing; to be
setted In tash, due and Unsecired,.
Shart-term loan 1,104,849 {1,845,150) 2,850,000 (2,950,0’00} derhandatile unguarariteed
‘ o be setifed in cash; Unsecured,
Accrued Interest 77,564 {33,180} 20,232 {18,614) due and demandable unguaranteed
Non<interast bearing; Unsecured,
) ) ) offsatting, due and unguarantesd,
Various charges {42,850} (8,774) 615,007 44,706 demandal ot )i red
-1 4
Interest-beafing, to be
) settled (n cash, due and tnsecured;
Short-tarm loan 280,000 {240,000} - - demandable unguarantesd
To be settled in cash, Unsecured,
Accrued interest 2,828 {2;6032) = * due and demandable unguaranteed
€HI
Intefest-bearing, to be
sertled in cash, dueand Unsecured,
Short-term loan aso,000 ® 350,000 {350,000) demaridable uriguaranteed
; To be settied In cash; Unsecured,
Acrrued Interest 2,812 - 3328 {303) - due and demandable .  unguaranteed
Non-interest bearing, Unsecored,
offsetting, due and unuaranteed,
Yarious Charges - £32 832 632 demandable not impaired
LAFSA . .
Nonintérest- tiearing, to
) besettied i cash, due Unsécured,
Expat recharges 52834 (22,619) 18,561 {18,964)  and demandable uriguaranteed
‘ Noninterest- bearing,; to :
be-settied incash, due Unsecured,
Expat Charaes a8a P08 - - and demandable unguaranteed
HGRS ’ £y
Noninterest- banring; Unisecured;
]  offsetting, dueand unguaranteed,
Various Charges 8,025 5,634 10,753 7,755 demandabis Aot impaired
Noninterest~ bearing, .
Purchases snd/or . offsetting, due and Unsecured,
expernises 166,694 {49,185) 78,917 {78,634) demandable unguarantesd
Asspciates
HMDE
Unsecured.
To be coliected in tash,  ungusranteed,
Interest on loan - 299 200 299 dueiand demandabie ot impaired
Noninterest- bearing, to - . Uhsacured,
Sale and transfer o be collected, dueand  unguaranteed,
of assets “ 78,629 105,971 437,478 detmdabia not impalred
Honinterest- bearing, Unsecured,
Expenses from 3 offsetting, due. and ungusranteed,
virious charges 274,798 205,617 38,256 96,601 denamdsble ot impaired
i Noninterest- bearing, t6
Purchases of ) . be settied in cash, due WUnseciired;
quarried materialg 884,116 $311,941) 816,242 {2331,075) and demandable unguaranteed
HNoninterest- beating, to )
. .. be seftled in cash, due Uriseciired,
In~piant tilling 119,608 {124,835} 91,820 {91,825 and demandable ungusranteed
Honinterést: bearing, 4
) 3 be settied in cash, due Unisecured;
Asset Leasing 104,463 {67,476) 108,363 {17,467 and demandable unguarantesd
Noninterest- bearing, to
Saig of Motorpool be collected Incash, due  Unsecured,
Assets - 1,908 1,406 1,406 #nd demandatle unguiranteed
Noninterest- bearing, t
be'colincted incash, due  Unsecured,
Service coritract - - B34 433 and demandable unguarsnteed

T



2048 2037
Ouistanding.  Transactions - Outstanding
Related Transactions Receivable during the  Recelvable
Parties Nature during the Year  {Payable) Year {Payable) Yerms Conditions
Noninterest: bearing, to
be collected in cash,
Dividend 323,852 - 66,705 42,000 demandable Not #ppicable
HRDC
hionintm bearing;
Expenises from offestiing, dusand Unsecured,
various charges 105,869 (1,328} 175,550 (105,869) dersandable unguarantesd
Nosintarest- beadng,
Purchases of ) . -offsetting, due and Unsécured,
guarried materials 343,335 {136,975} 198,509 {9.179) demandable unguarantesd
Trangler of mining
vights and related Noninterest~ bearing, 1o Unigecured,
site restorations be coliscted in tash, due  unguaranted,
costs 128,931 173,208 138,590 183,368 and demandable not impaired
Noninterast- bearing; Unsecured,
to be coliected in cash,  unguaranteed,
AdVanLes. 74,991 185423 215,548 184,500 uua and demandable not impaired
Noninterast- bearing, )
to be settied in cash, Unsecured,
Asset Lease 16,313 (1,359) 13,594 {970} dusand demandable  unguasrsntesd
Purchase of Noninterest- bearing, Unsevured,
Quisreied Materials offsetting, dusand ungusranteed,
afil/or Expenses 1,209,837 (315,942) 1,066,598 (439,233} demandable ot impaired
MNoninterest- bearing,
) to bé collected in cash; Unsecured,
T Advances (74,933) 18,207 194,981 90,130 due and demandable  unguarantesd
Noninterest- bearing,
Aszet Lease andfor g, dus aid Unsecured,
expenses 12,372 {5,840) 1,686 42,750} demandable unguaranteed
Noninterest- bearing, Unsecured,
Purchases and/fot ng; due and ungugranteed,
LHAL exnpenses 749,608 {315,942} 1,066,598 {419,233 demandable potimpaired
Noninterest- bearing,
, o be collected in cash, Unsecired,
Advances {78,923} 1%.207 194,951 90,130  due and demandable unguarantesd
) HNoninterest- bearing,
Asset Lease sri/or ) offsetting, due and Unsiecured,
expenses 12,372 {5;840) 4,896 {3,750 ‘demandable ungusrantesd
Remnwest bearing, Unsecured,
te collected In cash,  inguaranteed,
ARC Advances - 52,204 105,204 53,204 due and demaridable not impaired
Noninterest- bearing,
Asser Lease and/or ) ) bifsetting, due and Unsectired,
expenses 642 {2640} 15998 {1,998) demandable uniguaranteed
) Honiiterest- beariig, Unsecured,
Expenges from offsetting, due and usguaranteed;
various charges 1,759 3,861 2,083 2,108 demandable not impaired
Nonititerest- bearing;
PN Varidus . offsetting, due and’ Unsecured,
} . reimbursements - z 1,907 {1,907} ernandable unguaran
Nonirterest- bearing, Unsecured,
to be collected In cash,  unguaranteed,
QLx Advances - 77,314 77,470 77,314 due and demandable not impaired
Noninterest- bearing,
Purchases and/or ) - due and Unsecured,
expenses - (1,001} 1,001 (1,001}  dernandsble ungusrantesd
’ Hondnterest- bearing, Unsecured,
Expernises from ) i ) offsetting; due and unguarantesd,
varigus charges 5 1457 4,044 1,487 demandable nst impaired
Noninterest- bearing, Unsecured,
.. to be collected in cash,  unfuaranteed,
SCHMC Advances - 656 - “$86 - due and demandable piot impaired
Noninterest- bearing, Unsecored;
Expetises from offsetting, due and unguaranteed;
various charges 160 173 i3 A3 demandable not impaired
) Noninterest- bearing, :
LORVE ) to be settied i cash, tngecured,
Foreshore lease 55,773 {34,098) 88,773 {45,457} . due and demanduble  dnguarantesd




-

2018 2017
Gutstanding  Transactions Qutstanding

Related Yronsactions  Recelvable  duringthe  Recelvable
partios Rature during the Year {Payable) Yeat, ble Terms
Noninterest-
bearirg, offsetting, _
Huaxin . purchases and/or o due and Unsecured;
Cement Expense - - 137,324 {20,861) deémandable urigusraritesd
Noninterest-
bearing, offsetting, Urisecured,
Advances $4,561 84,561 - - due and demandable ung paranteed
Noninterest-
Expenses from bearing, offsetting,  Unsecured,
QOthers __ vatious charges (A7) - - 17 due and demandable unguaranteed
Othe
Huid:n
Group
Affiliates
Noninterest- bearing,
Purchases andfor ) offsetting, due and Ungectired,
Expense 253,861 {234,497) 16,625 (3,713) demandable ungusranteed
Noninterest- bearing, Unsecured,
offsetting, due and unguaranteed,
Variglis Charges 9,608 8,467 18,193 10,263 demandable not impaired
Notes 2018 2017
{In THousands)
Due from related parties 9 91,75_4,2_56 p1,226,316
Due to related parties 17 2,469,414 1,207,533
Net Due from (to) related parties (P715,158) P_18,783
Notes 2018 2017
(I Thousands)
Loan receivable from related party 15 p 381,845 P -
Loan payable to related parties 16 3,925,849)  (4,178,000)
Loans receivable (payable} (P3,544,004) (P4,178,000)
Parent

UCHC. In April 2018, the company entered into a short-term loan agreement with
UCHC, lender, amounting to P200 million which will be collected after three months
from the date of the agreement. On June 28, 2018 this loan was extended -until
June 30, 2019. The applicable interest rate of the loan is equal to the prevailing
interest rate of 2.96% per annum which shall be due and payable monthly in-arrears,
net of any applicable withholding taxes. Additional loan was executed last
September 1, 2018 amounting to P1.64 billion with. interest rate 4.86%. The said
toans are still outstanding as of December 31, 2018 and related interest expense for

the year amounted to P30.9 million based on the terms of the agreement;

Cemco., ©On September 28, 2018, the Group entered. a long-term loan to
Cemco amounting P381.8 million with 5.30% per annum interest to be paid-on of
pefore September 28, 2020. Interest earned as of December 31, 2018 amounted to
P18.5 million. Operating expenses paid on behalf by the parent Company for the year

2018 was amounting to P73.5 million.

Clinco. The Group paid the 2018 audit fees in behalf of Clinco amounting to

P0.5 million during the year,




Entities under Common Sharaholder

a.

f.

HEABS. On January 1; 2015, the Company entered into a servite contract with

HEAB for business process outsourcing and other information technology enabled
services.

HTSX. Effective January 1, 2013, a new contract with HTSX came into force
introducing the application of new Industrial Franchise Fee (IFF). The new
agreement is aligned with the Organization for Economic Ca-nperattan and
ﬁeveiopment (OECD) principles and takes into account arm’s length transfer
pricing principles.

The IFF shall cover ali intellectual properties and value-adding solutions derived by
the Group. IFF is an annual charge payable guarterly and is based on fair
assessment of economic value of intellectual properties and wvalue adding
soltitions,

HTSX also renders managerial and project support services tokthe Group.

Total expenses incurred in 2018 and 2017 amounted to PL.5 billion and
P1.4 billion.

Holcim Trading. The Group imports clinker, cement and raw materials, such as
gypsum and granulated blast furnace slag:

HTPL. On January 1, 2014, the Group entered into a service agreement with HTPL,
for support services, The new service agreement is complementary to the existing
Franchise Agreement. The services shall be based on all costs and expenses
incurred by HTPL plus a certain mark-up. This agreement will be in effect unless
and until superseded.

LAFSA. The Company has an outstanding liability amounting to P12.6 million
pertaining to expat recharges and outstanding receivable of P1.0 million for expat
services charged to LAFSA for the year 2018.

Other Holcim Group Affiliates. The Group’s transactions with Other Holcim Group
Affiliates include intercompany charges for salaries and wages of Inbound and
outbound expatriates, and other expenses related to operations.

The Group had an outstanding payable to LH Energy Solutions amounting to
P148.1 million relating to the purchase of fuel, pet coke and coal in 2018.

The Group had an outstanding payabie to LH Shipping amounting to P42.7 million
relating to time-chartered shipping in 2018.

HGRS. On January 1, 2017, the Group entered into an agreement for the
“Administrative Support” which include activities in the field of administration a5
well as clerical and operational support. The administrative support fee is
calculated based on the allocated costs plus mark-up and ‘other indirect costs in
connection of rendering such support.

LHPI. The Group loan originally amounting to P2.4 billion in 2017 was partially
settled on February 28, 2018, April 13, 2018, and July 27, 2018 with 2,91%
interest. The loan balance currently amounts to P19 biﬂlcn with - 5.38% p.a
interest to be paid on or before September 19, 2019, Interest eéxpense for year
2018 and 2017 amounted to P77.6 million and P20.2 million, respectively.

5SI.  On October 25, 2018, the Company availed a short term loan amounting
P240.0 million with interest of 6.4203% p.a. to be paid on or beforg
October 25, 2019. Interest expense for the year 2018 was amounting to
P2.8 million.




birect and Indirect Associates

a. For 2018 and 2017, the Group has an existing service agreement with HMDC for
the quarry operations, wherein HMDC provides quarry and related services for a
fee plus operating costs charged back to the Group.

b. 1In 2018, HMDC declared dividends for its Class A and Class B preferred shares, as
well as for its Common A and Common B shares. The Group received dividend
payment amounting to P322.7 million from HMDC.

¢. InJanuary 2016, the Group has entered into various lease agreements with HMDC
effective 2016 and its subsidiaries APC, HRDC, QLI and LORVI for certain plant
sites and terminals from various locations. The term of the leases is for 3 period
of 25 years.

d. The Group sold/transferred various assets to HMDC such as warehouses,
motorpools and software in 2017,

& LHAI had a total purchase of aggregates amounting to P1.2 billion and P1.1 billion
for 2018 and 2017, respectively. As at Decémber 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group
had a total payable of P315.9 million and P419.2 million, dué and outstanding at
the end of each year.

f. The Group grants non-interest bearing advances to HMDC, HRDC, LORVI and LHAL
for working capital requirements. The Parent Company has advances to HMDC as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, amounting to-P32.9 million, respectively

Retirement Benefit Funds

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Paréent Comipany’s defined benefit retirerment

. fund has investments in HMDC's shares with a fair value of P596.3 million representing

60% of the total ownership, as disclosed in Note 12.

All of the funds’ investing decisions are made by the Retirement Comrmittee,
the composition of which includes certain officers and employees of the Parent
Company. The power fo-exercise the voting rights rests with the Board of Trustees.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settiement occurs in cash.
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables
or payables. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group has not recognized any
impairment losses on receivables relating to amounts due from related parties.
This assessment is undertaken each financial year through a review of the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Amounts due from related parties is included In “Trade and other receivables” and
amounts due to related parties is included in “Trade and other payables” accounts in
the consolidated statements of financlal position.

Total amount of intercompany receivables eliminated as at December 31, 2018 and
2017 arnounted to P2.1 billion and PO.5 billion, respectively.

Total amount of intercompany payables eliminated as at December 31, 2018 and 2017
amounted to P3.1 billlon and PO.6 billion, respectively,

Key Management Personnel

The following are the details of the compensation of key management personnel:

2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)
Short-term employee benefits P162,357 P187,802 P184,753
Retirement benefits cost 9,638 126,371 12,148

P171,094 P324,273 P196,901




30.

INCOME TAX
Components of income tax expense charged to profit or loss are as follows:

2018 2017
{In thousands) /
Current tax expense P1,040,921 P1,564,310
Deferred tax expense (benefit) {35,056) 12,307

P1,005,865 P1,576,617

The reconciliation between the statutory and effective income tax of the Group is as
follows:

2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)
Profit before incorne tax P3,551,258 P4,266.415 P9,626,945
Provision for income tax at statutory
income tax rate P1,065,377 P1,279,924 p2,888,083
Change in unrecognized deferred
income tax assets 20,517 {10) (802}
Income tax effects of:
OSD vs. itemized deduction 12,702 343,353 {48,353}
Nondeductible experses 3,375 3,221 4,927
Interest and other income subject to
tax other than RCIT {4,107) {6,410} {5.478)
Income not subject to income tax {34,710) (48,115) {183)
Reversal of deferred income tax .
asset/ liability {73,406) {987} {1,793
Deferred taxes deferred upon
transfer s & {30,674}
Expired NOLCO 16,117 5,640 383
Others - 1 {26,278)
Income fax at effective tax rate P1,005,866 _P1,576.617 PZ2,779,832

The components of the Group's net deferred income tax as at December 31,2018 and
2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
{in Thousands)
Deferred income tax assets: »
Charged to profit or loss for the year P 624,570 P486,973
Charged to equity - 116,226
Unrealized foreign exchange losses - 3
624,570 ; 603,202
Deferred income tax liabilities ,
Charged to profit or loss for the year 130,634 145,923
Charged to equity 1,320,586 e
Unrealized foreign exchange gains 3,638 2,037
1,454,858 147,960
Net deferred tax asset (liability) (P_830,288) P455,242

Deferred income taxes for temporary differences for HPMC and HPBSCI affecting gross
income were recognized using the effective tax rate of 18% as they availed of OSD as
its method of deduction for income tax purposes. Management forecasts that HPMC
and Mabini-will be using OSD in the next three years and HPBSCI and Bulkcem in the
next four years.




Deferred income tax assets for the following deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, have not been
recognized as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been incurring losses for
sorne time and may not be used {o offset taxable profits or tax liabilities of any other
entity other than that of the entity from where such deductible temporary difference
arose:

2018 2017
I Thousands)
Carryforward benefit of NOLCO P64,324 P143
Excess MCIT over RCIT 447 25
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets P64,771 P168

The following NOLCO can be clalimed as deduction against future taxable income:

Date Incurred Expiry Date NOLCO
{In Thousands)
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2019 P 15,355
December 31, 2017 Decernber 31, 2020 78,697
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2021 119,360
p214.412

NOLCO incurred by ECLI in 2014 amounting to P16 million and NOLCO incurred: by
CACI in 2014 amounting to P74 million expired in 2017.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Defined Bénefit Retirement Plans

HPI and HPMC have distinct funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans
(the “Plans”). The Plans cover all permanent employees, each administered by their
respective Retirement Committees or Board of Trustees.

ECLI and HSSI, on the other hand, provide retirement benefits in accordance with
Republic Act 7641, "Retirement Pay Law”. Under the existing regulatory framework, it
requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the
absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided however that the employee’s
retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be
less than those provided under the law. The law does not require minimum funding of
the plan. The Group also provides additional post employment healthcare benefits to
certain sehior employees in the Philippines. These benefits are unfunded.

The following tables summarize the components of retirement benefit costs,
the funding status and the amounts recognized as retirement benefit liability of the
Group:

Details of retirement benefit costs are as follows:

Note 2018 2017 . 2016
(In Thousands)

Current service cost P 106,105 P 76634 PB7,730
Net interest cost 27 43,092 22,092 23,253
_Curtailment gain - {2,423)

Retirement benefit costs recognized
in profit or loss v 149,197 98,726 108,560
Remeasurements recognized in OC {4,401,952) 387,421 {79,852}
_Retirement benefit (gain) cost (P4,252,755) P486,147 P 28,708

A

9




N

Remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement benefits consists of:

2018 2017 2006
{In Thousands)

Actuarial gain (loss) arising from:

Changes in assumptions P 352,162 (P290,879) P 26,649

Experience adjustments 33,673 (82,314) (50,32
Gain (loss) on plan assets* 4,016,117 (14,228) 103,528

Total gain(loss) recognized in OCI P4,401,952 (P387,421) P79,852

*Excluding amounts recognized in net interest cost.

The reconciliation of benefit (asset) liabllity recognized in the consolidated financial
position foilows:

2018 2017

{In Thousands)
Present value of benefit obligation P 958,700 P1,3680,371
Fair value of plan assets {4,540,207) {515,217}
Balance at end of year (P3,581,507) P 845,154

The breakdown of the retirement plan (asset) liability per entity follows:

2018 2017
{In Thousands)
HPI P 266,227 P485,219
HPMC (3,848,197) 358,195
ECLY {151) 1,307
HSSI 614 433

(P3,581,507) __ P845,154

Movements in the retirement benefit (asset) liability are as follows:

2018 2017
(In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year P 845,154 P501,944
Retirement benefit costs. 149,197 98,726
Contributions (70,059) {138,854)
Remeasurement gain recognized in OC} {4,401,952) 387,421
Effect of deconsclidation (101,897) -
Benefits paid directly by the Group ‘ (1,950) {4,083)
Balance at end of year (P3,581,507) P845,154

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2018 . 2017
{In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year P1,360,371 P1,096,281
Actuarial losses (gains) {385,835) 373,193
Interest cost 66,782 44,992
Current service cost 106,105 76,634
Benefits paid (188,723) {230,729}

Balance at end of year P 958,700 P1,360,371




The changes inthe fair vaiue of plan assets are as follows:

Note 2018 2017
{In Thousands)

Balance at beginning of year P 515,217 P594,337
Contributions 70,059 138,855
Galn (loss) on plan assets* 4,016,117 {14,228)
Interest income on plan assets 23,690 22,900
Effect of deconsolidation 101,897 -
Benefits paid {186,773) (226,647)
Balance at end of year P4,540,207 P515.219

*Excluding amounts recognized in net interest cost,

The fund is administered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the duly
Authorized Person or Trustee of the Plan. The Authorized Person or Trustée is
responsible for investment of the asséts. Based on the overall direction set by a
Retirement Fund Committee, the Trustee proposes an investment strategy and as
approved by the Retirement Fund Committee, executes such strategy. The Trustee
defines the investment strategy based on the investment instructions found in the
Trust Agreement. When defining the investment strategy, the Trustee takes into
account the Plan’s objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity. The investment
strategy is defined in the form of a long-term target structure (investment policy). The
control, direction, and management of the fund shall reside in and be the sole
responsibility of the Trustee.

The percentages of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

2018 2017
HPI HPMC HPL HPMC
Cash and receivables 13.07% 1.85% 8.7% 13.7%
Investments in debt securities: _
Government securities 0:72% 31.80% 2.9% 29.5%:
Corporate debt securities 4.66% 29.59% 5.7% 23.8%
5.38% 61.39% 8.6% 53.3%
Investment in equity securities
Construction;, infrastructure, o
property and mining 78.64% 6.32% 78.0% 11.5%
Holding firms 1.38% 18.19% 1.5% 9.6%
Power and utilities 0.39% 2.27% 1.3% 4.4%
Banks 0.40% 4,91% 0.9% 3.5%
Telecommunications 0.02% 1.26% 0:1% 1.5%
Others 0.72% 3.81% 0.5% 2.5%
B81.55% 36.76% 82.7% 33.0%
100.00% 100.00% 100.0% 100.0%

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and the present value of the pension
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate and future salary increases.
Due to the tomplexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions,. All assumptionis
are reviewed at each reporting date,




Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond vields; if the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Curréntly the plan has a
relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt instrumerits and real estates,
Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the pension fund
considers it ‘appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be
invested in equity securities and in real estate to leverage the return generated by the
fund.

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the government bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an ificrease in the return on the plan’s debt
investments,

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will-increase
the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As such, an Increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation ‘of the plan assets and the present value of the
defined benefit obligation were carried out at December 31, 2018 by an
independent actuary The present value of the defined benefit 0bligati0n, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the prujectad
unit credit method.

Discount rate is determined by calculating the single effective discount rate
determined by discounting the projected benefit payments using different
term-dependent zero-coupon rates at the end of the reporting period.

The principal assumptions used in determining the retirement benefit liability of the
Group as at December 31 are as follows:

) 2018 2017 2016
Discount rates 7.1% 4.8% -5.0% 4.5% -4.8%

Future salary rate increases 5.0% 5.00% 5.0%




The. sensitivity analysis below has been -determined based on reasonably possible
changes of each significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at the end
of the reporting period, ‘assuming all other assumptions were held constant:

Increase Effect on defined benefit obligation

(decrease) HPI HPMC ECLY HSS1
{In Thousands)
2018
Discount rate
Sensitivity 1 0.5% P608,121 P367,444 P P-
Sensitivity 2 {0.5%) 557,020 339,193 - -
Futtre salary rate
increasas
Sensitivity 1 0.5% 556,660 338,991 " -
Sensitivity 1 (0.5%) 608,276 367,528 - -
2017
Discount rate ‘
Sensitivity 1 1% (P 90,508) (P52,148) {ris1) (P79}
Sensitivity 2 {1%) 108,006 62,230 195 o8
Future salary rate
increases
Sensitivity 1 1% 104,817 60,393 197 99
Sensitivity 1 {(1%) (89,732) {51,701} {165) (81}

The Management and its trustee bank reviews the performance of the Plans on &
regular basis and assess whether the Plans will achieve an investment return which;,
together with contributions, will be sufficient to pay retirement benefits as they fall
due. The Group also reviews its solvency position on an annual basis ahd estimates,
through the actuary, the expected contribution to the Plans in the subsequent vear.

The funding requirements are agreed between the Plan Trustees and Group,
in consideration of the contribution advice from the Plan Actuary.

The tables below show the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as
at December 31:

HPI ____HPMC ECLI HSSY
(In Tholisands)

2018
Within-one year P 51,483 P 19,046 P~ P o~
More than one year to

five years 210,830 101,100 - -
More than five years 403,049 40,951 - -
2017
Within one year P 37,432 P 15314 p - g -
More than one yéar to

five years 202,069 157,674 342 -

More than flve vears 406,128 245,745 1,477 -




Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

HPI has a defined contribution plan whergin the obligation is limited to the specified
contribution in the defined contribution plan. Total retirement benefits cost related to
the defined contribution plang amounted to P42.1 milllion, P41.0° million and
P45.5 million for the vears ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Total consolidated réetirément benefit costs recognized in the consolidated statements
of income-are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
{In Thousands)

Expense recognized for: ‘
Defined benefit plans P 149,197 P 98,726 P108,560
Defined contribution plan 42,098 41,032 45,476

Retirement benefit costs 191,295 P139,758 P154,036

32. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a. Leases

The Group has a number of lease agreements covering plant sites, office spaces,
warehouses, bulk terminals and various equipment that ‘are accounted for as
operating lease with periods ranging from one year to twenty-five years. Bulk of
the comimitments pertains to lgase of vessels being used to transport cement and
land agreements. The Group records rental expense on a straight-line basls over
the base, non-cancellable lease terms. Any difference between the calculated
expense and amount actually paid is recognized either as prépaid or accrued rent,

Prepaid of accrued rent is reflected as curent Or noncurrent asset and liability,
respectively, depending on its expected reversal date, Operating lease expense
recognized in the consolidated  statements of profit or loss and -othef
comprehensive Income amounted tc P171.4 million, P263.3 million and
P132.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 22, 23
and 24.

Future minimum lease payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows;

2018 2017
, {Irr Thousands)
Within one year P1,046,907 P 794,574
After one year but not more than five years 1,553,256 1,416,189
More than five years 2,134,418 2,826,844

P4,734,581 P5,037,607

b. Lawsuits

The Group is either a defendant or plaintiff In several legal cases primarily
involving collection and claims for damages. Based on the assessment of
management and the opinion of the Group’s external legal counsels; the resolution
of such cases will not result to any significant liability.

The disclosure of additional details beyond the present disclostres may seriously
prejudice the Group's position and negotiating strategy. Thus, as allowed by
PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, only general
descriptions were provided.




¢. Construction agreements with Theidi Construction Corp..(TCC)-

On August 1, 2018, the Group entered into two construction agreements with TCC
for La Union Poro Port Projects to support our on-going capital expeénditure
projects. Detalls and terms of the agreements are as follows:

i. Dredging Works Project

TCC shall conduct the dredging works as well as supply manpower, tools,
equipment, machinery, permits, cleararices and supervision necessary for the
completion of the project. The project is estimated to be completed in
January 2019,

i, Jetty Rehabilitation Project
TCC shall deliver structural steel and building matérials and rehabilitation works

at the jetty which includes repair of five (5) heavy damaged corroded piles.
The project.is to be complated by March 1, 2019.

d. Electricity Supply Agreement (ESA)

On December 26, 2013, Bulacan and La Union plants entered into a 15-year
electricity supply agreement with Phinma Energy Corporation (PEC). .PEC also
supplies electricity to the Mabini grinding plant under a 10-year power supply
agreement which commenced June 26, 2014. The related expense under this
contract is recognized as part of "Power and Fuel” account in the Cost of Sales,
as disclosed in Note 22.

e. Sales Agreement with Petron Corporation (Petron) and SL Harbor Bulk Tefminal
Corporation (SLH)

HPI has awarded the contract for the supply of automotive diesel oil to Petron and
supply of bunker fuel to SLH. The agreements cover the period November 1, 2017
to October 31, 2020. The related expense under this contract is recognized as part
of "Power and Fuel” account in the Cost of Sales, as disclosed in Note 22.

Service Agreement with Misamis Oriental -~ 1 Rural Electric Service Cooperative,
Inc. (MORESCO-1)

On November 26, 2012, the Group entered into'a Sub Transmission Line Whealing
Service Agreement with MORESCO-1 for supply of electric power exclusively for the
operation and requirement of Lugait plant. The related expense under this contract
is recognized as part of “Power and Fuel” account in the Cost of Sales; as disclosed
irn Note 22,

g. Davao Light Service Contract

The Group aiso entered into a contract with Davao Light and Power Company
(DLPC) for electric service to the Group's plant in Davao commencing on November
14, 2013 and thereafter until the contract is terminated. The related expense under
this contract is recognized as part of “Power and Fuel” account in the Cost of Sales,
as disclosed in Note 22,

h. Kalayaan - Davao Cement Mill Project 01 ~ EP

On.August 14, 2017, HPI entered into a supply agreement with Huaxin Cement Co.
Ltd for mechama:ai and electrical engineering and process control equipment and
civil engineering design required for the cement mill system to be put into
operation in the existing Davao Plant,

Roller Press Project

This contract agreement was enteréd into by the Group on November 20, 2017 with
Kisen International Construction Co., Inc. for the construction and mstallatwn of the
new roller press system and its auxiliaries at ‘La Union Plant. The Rolier Press
Project was completed in January 2019 ahead of schedule.
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34.

j. Others

There are contingent liabilities for tax assessments occurring in the ordinary course
of business. On the basis of information furnished by the Group’s legal counsels,
management believes that none of these contingencies will materially affect the
Group’s financial position and financial performance..

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (EPS)
Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:

2018 2017 2016
(In Thousands)

Consolidated profit for the year
attributable to common equity

holders of the Parent Company P2,544,411 $2,688,485 P6,845,856
Weighted average number of common

shares - Issued and outstanding 6,452,099 6,452,099 6,452,099
Basic/diluted EPS of profit attributable

to equity holders of the Parent ;

Company 0.39 0.42 1.06

Basic EPS is computed based on weighted average number of issued and outstanding
common shares during each year. Diluted EPS is computed as if ‘the potential
common share or instrument that may entitle the holder to common share were
exercised as at the beginning of the year. Where the Parent Company does not have
any potential common share or other instruments that may entitie the holder to
common shares, difuted EPS is the same as basic BPS,

There are no dilutive financial instruments in 2018, 2017 and 2016, hence, diluted EPS
is the same as basic EPS.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS

a. Clean Air Act

The Clean Air Act and the related IRR contain provisions that have an impact on the
industry as a whole, and to the Group In particular, that needs to be complied with
within 44 months from the effectivity date or by July 2004. Based on the assessment
made on the Group’s existing facilities, management believes it complies with the
provisions of the Clean Alr Act and the related IRR.

b. Clean Water Act

On February 4, 2004, the Senate and House of Represéntatives passed The Clean
Water Act and the related IRR which contain provisions that have an impact on the
industry as a whole, and to the Group in particular. Based on the assessment miade on
the Group s existing facilities, management believes it complies with the provisions of
the Clean Water Act and the related IRR,

¢. Ecological Solid Waste Management Act.

On December 12, 2000, the Senate and House of Representatives passed
The Ecological Solid Waste Management Act which contains provisions that have an
impact to the Group. As an attestation to Geocycle’s responsible handling and
management of hazardous industrial waste, the Group has Treatment, Storage and
Disposal (TSD} Certificate,

HPI's four plants continued to be recognized by the relevant national goverrment
agencies for its environmental programs.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As of February 13, 2019, the Mabini Plant temporarily ceased Its operation in
compliance with the order of the Department of Environment and natural Resources -
Environmental Management Bureau (DENR - EMB) directing the Parent Company to
cease operation of the Mabini Plant. The Parent Company will file with the DENR-EMB
& Motion for Reconsideration with prayer to lift such order. The cessation of the
operations of the Mabini Plant is expected to be only temporary and will not have a
material impact on the business of the Parent Company.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were reviewed and recommended for approval
by the Audit Committee on February 18, 2019, The same weére approved for issuance
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on February 22, 2019.
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DECLARATION
December 31, 2018

Holcim Philippines, Inc.

7th Floor, Two World Square, Mckinley Hill, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Items Amount
(In Thousands)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, Beginning 4,059,321
Adjustments:

Deferred tax asset (384,383)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as Adjusted, Beginning 3,674,938
Net Income based on the face of AFS 2,871,928
Less: Non-actual/Unrealized Income Net of Tax**

Unrealized foreign exchange gain net (except those attributable
to Cash and Cash equivalent) . (11,015)
Deferred tax expense charged to profit or loss
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS (144,878) (155,893}
Net Income Actual/Realized 2,716,035
Less: Dividend Declaration during the period (2,709,882)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as Adjusted, Ending 3,681,091




Company: Holcim Philippines Inc. (HPI)

lllustration of relationships between the company and its ultimate parent company, middle
parent, and it's subsidiaries

As of December 31, 2018

Lafarge Holcim Lid.

CLINCO
60%
h 4
CEMCO 60%
v 18.11%
UCHC PUBLIC HOLDERFIN
7.08%
60.55% 14.26%
12% :
HPI
v
\4 v \4 h 4
WEB ECLI HSSI HPBSCI HPMC
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.6%
\4
| MGMC
88% A4 A 4
BPI CACI ACCI
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
COMPANY NAME PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
CLINCO Clinco Corporation Investment holding in CEMCO
CEMCO Cemco Holdings, Inc. Investment holding in UCHC and HPI
UCHC Union Cement Holdings Corporation Investment holding in HPI
HPI Holcim Philippines, Inc. Manufacture and distribute cement products
HPMC Holcim Philippines Manufacturing Corporation Manufacture and distribute cement products
BPI| Bulkcem Philippines, inc. Purchase, lease, sale of real properties
CACI Calamba Aggregates Co., Inc. Mining, Processing and sale of quarry resources
ACCI Alsons Construction Chemical, Inc. Manufacture, use and sale of admixtures
WEB Wellbourne International Group Limited Investment holding in MGMC
MGMC Mabini Ginding Mill Corporation Manufacture and distribute cement products
ECLI Excel Concrete Logistics, Inc. Distribution of concrete and cement products
HPBSCI Holcim Philippines Business Services Center Inc. Business process outsourcing and other information
technology enabled services
HSSI Hubb Stores and Services, Inc. Retail operations




Holcim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
List of Effective Standards and Interpretations under the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS) as of December 31, 2018.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative v
characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement 1 Management Commentary v
PFRSs Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality v
Judgments

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial v
(Revised) |Reporting Standards

) Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
)\ Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled v
Entity or Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions v
for First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from

Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinfiation v
and Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

- Amendments to PFRS 1: First-Time Adoption of v
PFRS

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

- Amendments to PFRS 1: First-time Adoption of v

International Financial Reporting Standards
(Changes to the Basis for Conclusions only)

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 1: Deletion of short-term 4
exemptions for first-time adopters

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled v
Share-based Payment Transactions

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle v
- Amendments to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting
Condition

Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment 4
Transactions

PFRS 3 Business Combinations v
(Revised)

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle v
- Amendments to PFRS 3: Accounting for
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Contingent Consideration in a business
combination

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 3: Scope of Exception for
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 3: Previously held interest
in a joint operation*

Amendments to PFRS 3: Definition of a Business*

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments with PFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Annual Improvements to PIFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in methods of
disposal

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date
and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date
of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Hedge Accounting
Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 7: Servicing contracts and
Applicability of the amendments to PFRS 7 to
condensed interim financial statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of
Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets
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PFRS 9

Financial Instruments (2014)

Amendments to PFRS 9: Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation*

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Consolidated Financial
Statement: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10:Transition Guidance and
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Sales or contributions
of assets between an investor and its
associate/joint venture*

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 1: Joint Arrangements:
Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 11: Previously held
interest in a joint operation*

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance and
Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 12: Clarification of the
scope of the standard

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 13: Fair Value
Measurement (Amendments to the Basis of
Conclusions only, with consequential amendments
to the Bases of Conclusions of other standards)

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to PFRS 15: Clarifications to PFRS
15

PFRS 16

Leases*

PFRS 17

Insurance Contracts*
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Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 1: Comparative
Information

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to PAS 1: Definition of Material*

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

AN BN B N BN

Amendments to PAS 8: Definition of Material*

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period

AN

PAS 12

Income Taxes

«

Amendment to PAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendment to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 12: Income tax
consequences of payments on financial
instruments classified as equity*

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 16: Servicing Equipment

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation

Amendments to PAS 16: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

Amendments to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

PAS 17

Leases

PAS 19
(Amended)

Employee Benefits (2011)

Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 19: Discount rate: regional
market issue

Amendments to PAS 19: Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement*

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
of Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendment to PAS 21: Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization*

PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclosures

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management
Personne/

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit
Plans

PAS 27
(Amended)

Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 27: Transition Guidance and
Investment Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

PAS 28
{Amended)

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to PAS 28: Sales or contributions of
assets between an investor and its associate/joint
venture*

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 28: Measuring an associate
or joint venture at fair value

Amendments to PAS 28: Long-term Interests and
Joint Ventures *

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

PAS 32

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights
Issues

Page 5 of 10




Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
-Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Equity
Distributions

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 34: Interim Reporting of
Segment Assets

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 34: Disclosure of
information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial
report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Amortization

PAS 40

Investment Property

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
- Amendments to PAS 40: Clarifying the
Interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 When
Classifying Property as Investment Property or
Owner-Occupied Property

Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment
Property

PAS 41

Agriculture

Amendments to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration
and Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2

Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and
Similar Instruments

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease

IFRIC S

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds
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IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-
14: Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

IFRIC 21 Levies

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments*

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro

SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives

SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an
Entity or its Shareholders

SI1C-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

PIC Q&A Clarification of criteria for exemption from

No. 2006~ |presenting consolidated financial statements

02 [Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2013-02 and PIC Q&A
No. 2017-01]

PIC Q&A Valuation of Bank Real and Other Properties

No. 2007- |Acquired (ROPA)

03
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PIC Q&A Rate used in discounting post-employment benefit

No. 2008- |obligations [Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2016-01]

01

(Revised)

PIC Q&A Financial statements prepared on a basis other

No. 2008- |than going concern [Amended by PIC Q&A No.

01 2013-02 and PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]

PIC Q&A Basis of preparation of financial statements

No. 2010- |/Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2017-01 and PIC Q&A

02 No. 2018-13]

PIC Q&A Current/non-current Classification of a Callable

No. 2010~ |Term Loan

03

PIC Q&A Common Control Business Combinations

No. 2011-

02

PIC Q&A Accounting for Inter-company Loans [Amended by

No. 2011- | PIC Q&A No. 2015-01 and PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]

03

PIC Q&A Costs of Public Offering of Shares [Amended by

No. 2011- |PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]

04

PIC Q&A Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed Cost

No. 2011- |/Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2016-01 and PIC Q&A

05 No. 2018-13]

PIC Q&A Acquisition of Investment Properties — Asset

No. 2011- |Acquisition or Business Combination?

06

PIC Q&A Application of the Pooling of Interests Method for

No. 2012- |Business Combinations of Entities under Common

01 Control in Consolidated Financial Statements
[Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2015-01 and PIC Q&A
No. 2018-13]

PIC Q&A Cost of a New Building Constructed on Site of a

No. 2012- | Previous Building

02

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2013

No. 2013~

02

PIC Q&A Accounting for Employee Benefits under a Defined

No. 2013- | Contribution Plan Subject to Requirement of

03 Republic Act (RA) 7641: The Philippine Retirement

(Revised) |Law

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2015

No. 2015-

o1

PIC Q&A Conforming changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2016

2016-01

PIC Q&A Accounting Treatment of Club Shares Held by an

No. 2016- | Entity [Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]

02
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PIC Q&A Accounting for Common Areas and the Related

No. 2016~ |Subsequent Costs by Condominium Corporations

03 [Amended by PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]

PIC Q&A Application of PFRS 15 “"Revenue from Contracts

2016-04 with Customers” on Sale of Residential Properties
under Pre-completion Contract

PIC Q&A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2017*

No. 2017~

o1

PIC Q&A Capitalization of operating lease cost as part of

No. 2017- |construction costs of a building

02

PIC Q&A Elimination of profits and losses resulting from

No. 2017~ |transactions between associates and/or joint

03 ventures

PIC Q&A Related party relationships between parents,

No. 2017- | subsidiary, associate and non-controlling

04 shareholder

PIC Q&A Frequently asked questions on the disclosure

No. 2017- |requirements of financial instruments under PFRS

05 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures [Amended
by PIC Q&A No. 2018-13]

PIC Q&A Accounting for collector’s items

No. 2017-

06

PIC Q&A Accounting for reciprocal holdings in associates

No. 2017- | and joint ventures

07

PIC Q&A Requirement to prepare consolidated financial

No. 2017- |statements where an entity disposes of its single

08 investment in a subsidiary, associate or joint
venture

PIC Q&A Accounting for payments between and among

No. 2017- |/essors and lessees

09

PIC Q&A Separation of property and classification as

No. 2017~ |investment property

10

PIC Q&A Transaction costs incurred to acquire outstanding

No. 2017- | non-controlling interest or to sell non-controlling

11 interest without a loss of control

PIC Q&A Subsequent Treatment of Equity Component

No. 2017- | Arising from Intercompany Loans

12

PIC Q&A Voluntary changes in accounting policy*

No. 2018-

01

PIC Q&A Non-controlling interests and goodwill impairment

No. 2018~ |test*

02
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h

PIC Q&A Fair value of property, plant and equipment and

No. 2018~ |depreciated replacement cost* v
03

PIC Q&A Inability to measure fair value reliably for

No. 2018- |biological assets within the scope of PAS 41, 4
04 Agriculture*

PIC Q&A Liability arising from maintenance requirement of

No. 2018~ |an asset held under a lease* 4
a5

PIC Q&A Cost of investment in subsidiaries in separate

No. 2018- |financial statements when pooling is applied in v
06 consolidated financial statements*

PIC Q&A Cost of an associate, joint venture, or subsidiary

No. 2018- |in separate financial statements [Amended by PIC v
07 Q&A No. 2018-13%]

PIC Q&A Accounting for the acquisition of a non-wholly

No. 2018~ |owned subsidiary that is not a business* v
08

PIC Q&A Classification of deposits and progress payments

No. 2018~ |as monetary or nonmonetary items* 4
09

PIC Q&A Scope of disclosure of inventory write-downs*

No. 2018- v
10

PIC Q&A Classification of land by real estate developer*

No. 2018- v
11

PIC Q&A PFRS 15 implementation issues affecting the real

No. 2018- |estate industry

12

PIC Q&8A Conforming Changes to PIC Q&As - Cycle 2018*

No. 2018- v
13

PIC Q&A Accounting for Cancellation of Real Fstate Sales*

No. 2018~ v
14

PIC Q&A Classification of Advances to Contractors in the

No. 2018- | Nature of Prepayments: Current vs. Non-current* v
15

* These are the new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that are effective for
annual period beginning on or after the reporting period ended December 31, 2018.
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Holcim Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

“For the Calendar Year
Financial KPI Definition ended December 31
2018 2017
Current/Liquidity ratios
. Current Assets
t Rati 73% 81%
Current Ratio Current Liabilities : °
Quick Ratio Current Assets — Inve.nto.q./f Prepayments 48% 49%
Current Liabilities
Solvency ratio/Debt-to-equity ratio
D . . Total Liabilities o o
ebt to Equity Ratio Touty 87% 59%
Asset to Fquity Ratios
Asset to Equity Ratio/ Total Assets
1269 159%
Equity Multiplier Equity % 59%
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio
Interest Coverage Ratio/EBITDA Net Operating EBITDA
17.6 63.5
Interest Cover Net Interest
Profitability Ratios
Return on Assets Net Income 6.1% 7.8%
Average Total Assets
Return on Equity Net Income 10.7% 11.1%
Average Total Equity
Operating EBITDA Margin Ope';gt“gjsgm 13.7% 15.7%
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